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Corporate Information

ANCE-E

Board of Directors

Executive Directors:

Mr. Liu Kaijin (Chairman)

Mr. Wu Bin (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Wu Xuze (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Zhou Shuhua

Non-Executive Director:

Mr. Liu Longhua (Vice Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. Huan Xuedong
Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan
Mr. Liang Zequan

Audit Committee

Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan (Chairman)
Mr. Huan Xuedong

Mr. Liang Zequan

Remuneration Committee
Mr. Liang Zequan (Chairman)

Mr. Liu Longhua

Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan
Nomination Committee
Mr. Liu Longhua (Chairman)

Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan

Mr. Liang Zequan

Authorised Representatives

Mr. Liu Kaijin
Ms. Wong Kwan Lai

Exg
HBTES:
IR 55 2 (27
98 5% (AVE )
RBIR 5 4 (7T ABA)
IR+
FHTES:
2IpE2E 5tk (I /)
BYUFHUTES:

BREE AL
RIBRFE

BRERE]
R 88 48 5 4 (%)
BRE L
REBR L
FWEES
RBR I (E)
Bk E
R 88 48 55
REZEST
2IpE2E 5E k(27
R 848 5%
RIS

REAR

2IE L L
BEEEXL



Corporate Information (Continued)
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Corporate Information (Continued)
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Definitions

B

“Audit Committee”

[EXEEE

“Board”

3§

“CG Code”
[EXERSA

“Company"”/“China Dredging ENV”
[RAR]L/THERLER]

“Contractual Arrangements”

B %]

“Director(s)”

[E%]

"Group"

(&M

"HK$"
%7l

“Jiangsu Fengyu”
[THEF]
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the audit committee of the Board
EEeEZZES

the board of Directors

B8

the code provisions as contained in “Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report” set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (as
amended from time to time), which are adopted (with modification) by the
Board as its corporate governance code

EFHRAIM ST EAEONIEEE RTRIREEE ARSI TR
X (EARFERT)  EFSCWMEBATRBERREREXERTA

China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited

FEFZRFRIZERABR AR

a series of contracts, brief details of which are set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report, pursuant to which all
economic benefits and risks arising from the business of Jiangsu Xingyu are
transferred to Xiangyu PRC

—RANEH BNEHRAFRES T B HRERM T8 B IHEFHE
BREARN —UKEBENDKAROIERZENFHEH

director(s) of the Company
KARES

the Company and its subsidiaries

EN/NSIDYE =SNG

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BT BBEECER

Jiangsu Fengyu Property Development Co., Ltd.*, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company
IHEFEXARAF  ARA—HE2ENE QA
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Definitions (Continued)

B=(E)

“Jiangsu Jiaolong”

[T & B 5E

“Jiangsu Xingyu”/

“PRC Operational Entity”

CIgEF ]
(FEEEER]

“Listing Rules”

[EmARA

“Model Code”
[Z%=F Al

“Mr. Liu”
[8l5%E]

“Ms. Zhou"
A%+

“Nomination Committee”

REZEEE]

"PRC"
(B

Jiangsu Jiaolong Salvage Harbour Engineering Co. Ltd.*, a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company
IHREITEMBIREARAR  ARA—fE2EWERA

Jiangsu Xingyu Holdings Group Limited* (formerly known as Jiangsu Xingyu Port
Construction Company Limited*), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
THRBEFEREFRERAR BB IKEFERZER AR AAa —H
2EWERF

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (as amended
from time to time)
B 22 P8 25 £ AR R (A BFHEET)

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (as amended from time to time)
FHRAME TN ETBETAEFETEARRINEETR(ET

B ER])

Mr. Liu Kaijin, chairman and an executive Director (who is the spouse of Ms.
Zhou)
TREFHNTESIRELE BALX T ZEB)

Ms. Zhou Shuhua, an executive Director (who is the spouse of Mr. Liu)

MTEEFRARELT (RBIKEZEB)

the nomination committee of the Board

E=gRA%ZBE

the People’s Republic of China
hE ARKM



Definitions (Continued)

= (&)

“Remuneration Committee”

(FHESS

“RMB"”
AR

“Reporting Period/Review Period”

(R HE EREAE

"SFO"
[RHERHERH]

“Shareholder(s)”
[ R

“Share(s)”

B3]

“Share Option Scheme”

[ B8 M ST &

“Stock Exchange”

[ BB 32 P

“Xiangyu Environment
Protection”

[AFRR]
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the remuneration committee of the Board

E=eyMEEe

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

ARE  RBEAEREH

for the year ended 31 December 2016
RE-T—AE+-A=+—ALEE

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (as
amended from time to time)
BEEOESNEERESF KBGO (ETEHERT)

shareholder(s) of the Company
NN 423

ordinary share(s) of the Company
RARAFzEBR

the share option scheme of the Company approved by Shareholders on 24 May
2011
RERZE——FRAZTHUEMEZRNATERETZ

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEABERXSMARLA

Jiangsu Xiangyu Environment Protection Equipment Company Limited*, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

TIHATRARRBAERLDA ARA—H2ENB QA
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Definitions (Continued)

B=(E)

“Xiangyu PRC"
(AFHE]

“Xiangyu Water Management”

(AFKK]

*  For identification purpose only

Jiangsu Xiangyu Port Constructing Project Administration Co. Ltd.*, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company

THATEZIRERARAR  ARA—RME2EWBE R A

Jiangsu Xiangyu Water Management Company Limited*, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company
TEAFRBEERRAR  ARA—HE2ENE R A

* EHRHE
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Financial Summary

MBHE

The following is a summary of the published results and assets AT AAEBERBAERERREEND AHEE

and liabilities of the Group for the past five financial years. UREENRBERE -
Results E

Year ended 31 December
BEZ+t=-A=+—HILLEE

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
ZE-RE T-hF ZFTMWNFE —T-—=F —FT-—_F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTRT ARBTT AR®FTIT AREFTIT AREBTT
(audited) (audited) (audited) (audited) (audited)
(RE®X) (fe &%) (F& &%) (Fe &%) (Fe &%)

Revenue Wy 25 667,154 700,996 910,592 973,615 966,027
Profit (loss) before tax & %% Al i Al (E548) 122,220 (237,333) 162,145 259,817 294,886
Income tax (expense) P57 (B %) # &

credit (46,970) 46,822 (53,566) (78,535) (80,494)

Net profit (loss) and & F| (&518) F 58 &
total comprehensive & E W 5 (FI %)
income (expense) FERE 75,250 (190,511) 108,579 181,282 214,392

Net profit (loss) and AT~ A fEAS
total comprehensive i K| (E518) % 58

income (expense) PEAEE &
attributable to: () #zs -
Owners of the ViN/NEIESF N
company 68,794 (197,864) 92,524 164,757 199,495
Non-controlling FEIE R =
interests 6,456 7,353 16,055 16,525 14,897

75,250 (190,511) 108,579 181,282 214,392
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Financial Summary (Continued)

MBHEE)

Assets and Liabilities EERESE

31 December
R+=—A=+-—H

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
ZE-RE ZE-hF ZEWNFE —ZT—=F —ZT—=F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARBTT AR®FTIT AREFTIT AREBTT
(audited) (audited) (audited) (audited) (audited)
(RERX) (&%) (&%) (&%) (&%)

Non-current assets IEMENE E 2,441,565 2,492,129 2,054,209 2,026,550 1,577,510
Current assets mE)E E 1,389,083 1,385,034 1,414,379 1,384,822 1,019,689
Current liabilities mENEE (1,445,784)  (1,601,679)  (1,139,464)  (1,278,906) (955,466)
Non-current liabilities 3E7RB) & & (115,362) (152,067) (394,209) (402,315) (97,858)

Net assets BEFE 2,269,502 2,123,417 1,934,915 1,730,151 1,543,875




Financial Summary (Continued)

MBEHEE)

Statement of Financial Position of the

Company

The statement of financial position of the Company as at the end

of the reporting period is as follows:

Annual Report 2016 —E—NFEFIR

N 7] Y B B AR OR R

ARRRREHROPHARRRMOT

2016 2015
—E-XRE —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET R AREFIT
ASSETS EE
Unlisted investments in subsidiaries RHBARIZIFLEHEE 259,214 259,214
Amounts due from subsidiaries & UL B B A Rl A 7R IB 979,465 971,202
Other receivables H {th jE W 58 — 14
Bank balances and cash RITHE B IR ® 173 1,415
1,238,852 1,231,845
LIABILITIES =R
Other payables H h & - 518 8,716 8,146
Bank borrowings RITEE — 7,698
Amounts due to directors e EE B 1,875 18,318
Bonds payable ERES 246,381 —
Convertible bonds AR E & — 246,510
Derivative financial liabilities embedded in MARBREEENITESRAEE
convertible bonds — 7,030
256,972 287,702
TOTAL ASSETS LESS TOTAL LIABILITIES BEERBERE 981,880 944,143
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXK#E
Share capital P& K 123,483 102,045
Reserves (note) & (Bt at) 858,397 842,098
981,880 944,143

1
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China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited FREIFABRIERER LT

Financial Summary (Continued)

MBEE (R

Statement of Financial Position of the

Company (continued)

AN F B B AR OR &R )

Note: Hiat -
Reserves of the Company ARRHFEE
Share Other  Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
B EE Hit & ZitEE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT AREFT AR F T AR®F T
At 1 January 2015 R—_ZF—RF—HA—H 520,567 165,238 (147,625) 538,180
Loss and total comprehensive FREBREARAX B
expense for the year — — (44,642) (44,642)
Placing of shares % 7 B2 & 348,560 — — 348,560
At 31 December 2015 R-_ZF—H1F
+=-—A=+—H 869,127 165,238 (192,267) 842,098
Loss and total comprehensive FREBREERAZ B
expense for the year — = (37,554) (37,554)
Placing of shares f% 17 Bt & 53,853 — — 53,853
At 31 December 2016 R-ZT—RE
+=-—A=+—H 922,980 165,238 (229,821) 858,397




Group Chart

SEERE

The following sets out the corporate structure of the Group as at

31 December 2016:

Annual Report 2016

ERRE

China Dredging Environment
Protection Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands)

TEINRAEER —F—

ZE-REFR 13

RE+ZA=+—HHK

FERLRRERARAR
(REASHBEMRL)
80% |100% 100% 100%
China Haimian City Investment Huaian Shi Xiangyu Power Wealth Group n n n q h %
Group Limited Technology Microfinance Ltd. (BVI) Limited )él::'g);: D[?:‘?t':g Ee L('inr::::szr:felﬂl?:;:'e'm'ted
(incorporated in HK) (incorporated in the PRC) (incorporated in the (incorporayte din HK) Britisthir in Islands)
RESRE T SERTAFRE British Virgin Islands) ﬂi?%ﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬂil ﬁ$,ﬂ&gﬁmﬂﬁ
BREBERAT ARARERAD HERBEVERLR e (NERBEEBRRY)
(REBEMAL) (RAPEEMAL) (REBELZRBEMRL) N .
|100%
Power Wealth
Engineering Limited
(incorporated in HK)
HEIRERAR
(REBEMRL)
|
100% 100% 100%
Jiangsu Xingyu Holdings Group Ltd.*  VIE Contractual Jiangsu Xiangyu Jiangsu Xiangyu Million Able
(incorporated in the PRC) Arrangements Port Constructing Water Management e e ]
(Note 1) (Note 2) Project Administration Co. Ltd.* Company Limited* (incorporated in HK)
IHEFEREEMEBRAT @ ------------- (incorporated in the PRC) (|ncorporated in the PRC) Eﬁ%ﬁlﬁﬂﬁ
(R B A L) R IHATERIRERERAR ABERAT (REREMAT)
(Ff&E1) HUANRY (RAREIER AR L) (WPI?EWBZI) :
| (BiEz2) 100%
51% 100% | 100% 100%
Jiangsu Jiaolong Salvage Ranos0XIovh Jiangsu Xingyu Jiangsu Lifu Infrastructure gandetjanavijEnyiichment

Harbour Engineering Co. Ltd.*
(incorporated in the PRC)

Environment Protection
Company Limited*
(incorporated in the PRC)

Construction Co., Ltd.*
(incorporated in the PRC)

Commerce Co. Ltd.*
(incorporated in the PRC)

Profection Equipment
Company Limited*
(incorporated in the PRC)

IHRETEMBIRERAR IHREFERERAT IHNEERRBRRERAF e =
e SIHEFHARRERAF N 5 IHATRRAREERAR
(ReRE AR L) (RAREMET) (R EIEMAR L) (R B AR L) (RAEEMAT)
100%
: Jiangsu Xiangyu Environmental
J:;a:‘?esll;;?:ny‘uczr.og;ﬁy Protection Industry
(incorporated in the PRC) . Developme_nt Ltd*
TRUTEEERAT (incorporated in the PRC)
(RPEEMARL) IHATRREXBRERAR
(FAHBIEMARL)
100%
Yancheng Juranzhijia Home
Building Material Commercial
Management Limited*
(mcorporated in the PRC)
HRERZ RREEM
BXEEERAR
(R EERAL)
Notes: B &t -
1. Mr. Liu and Ms. Zhou are the registered holders of the registered capital 1. BlEAERAXTAIGRFAMERANEZHEBA -

in Jiangsu Xingyu, and Ms. Zhou holds all her equity interest in Jiangsu

Xingyu as trustee for Mr. Liu.

2. On 19 April 2011, Jiangsu Xingyu, Xiangyu PRC, Mr. Liu and Ms. Zhou 2. n=

B RHE -

entered into the Contractual Arrangements, pursuant to which all ?Ei&ﬂﬁj:ﬂj
economic benefits and risks arising from the business of Jiangsu Xingyu EWATE KB N =
are transferred to Xiangyu PRC.

3. China Haimian City Investment Group Limited was acquired on 23 3. RZE

November 2016.

* For identification purpose only

%Iﬁﬁﬁ’&? s
* E M5

RERZTERBKENE

EARFEENTHETHM

Z——FWHA+TAR IHEF AFHE - 2
U%?# it

TR BT X E
BYEETATHE-

RET—A-T=ZBRBETREEUTKE
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Chairman’s statement
EF RS




Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

EFRE®E (B)

To Shareholders,

The year 2016 was a challenging year. The delay and/or the
prolongment of the tendering and/or the decision-making process
for construction of government projects, resulting in a slowdown
in the infrastructure and reclamation dredging business and the
environmental protection dredging business, and the fierce
horizontal competition imposed a large pressure over the Group's
operation. In face of the unfavourable factors, the Group
continuously strengthened daily operation and management and
obtained certain achievements. In the financial year of 2016, the
Group recorded a total revenue of approximately RMB667.2
million, representing a decrease of 4.8% as compared with the
total revenue of approximately RMB701.0 million for the financial
year of 2015, and a gross profit of approximately RMB233.1
million, representing a slight increase of 2.8% as compared with
the gross profit of approximately RMB226.7 million for the
financial year of 2015, and the overall profit margin also increased
from 32.3% to 34.9%. In 2016, the Group turned loss into profit,
and recorded a profit attributable to Shareholders of
approximately RMB75.3 million as compared with a net loss
attributable to Shareholders of approximately RMB190.5 million
for the financial year of 2015.

The Group commenced property management business in 2016,
and currently manages “JE#A 7 5 & JE (Easyhome Yancheng
Shopping Mall*)”, a 8-floor shopping mall constructed by the
Group. The project will become another source of long-term
stable income to provide stable cash flow support for the Group’s
further development of environmental protection dredging
business in the future.

As environmental protection is still a significant subject of the
work of central government and people’s livelihood, the
government attaches great importance to the environmental
protection industry and will launch favourable policies on a
continued basis to support the development of dredging industry.
We are convinced that such favourable policies will generate more
opportunities, which will facilitate the elimination of factors
detrimental to operation. The Group will further exert and
consolidate its advantages in terms of operation and management,
and endeavour to seize and create more business opportunities to
promote the Group’s business growth.

Annual Report 2016 —ZT—XFEFHf

BEBR

ZE-AFRANKEMN—F EYHBRNEBEMONR
ZER/RERRARBEFEEN SRR EWEK
PIREFBE M AR MEEHEZ I RIRRGEZEE
EREE BINLEAENINRSE ALEEN
BEBEBERIENED HASERBEEREY TR
Z TEHMADERLER ME—TRE - R
T-AEFUBREE AEEZSRARIHARE
667,200,0007T B — T — A EHHREFHEDHA
R #701,000,000 7T ) 48 U 25 T P& 4.8% + £ F Bl A
ZE-RFHMEFENLHARY226,700,0007T 1
F+2.8% & #) A R 233,100,000 7T + £ 82 FE F| K K
BT —RAFPRFEENNE  A3R3% AR
349% - REBEEB AR R_T— R NFHHRFE
B 15 0% B8 E (G 8w B 49 AR # 75,300,000 - T =&
—AFMBFEEFEEI AL ARY190,500,000

JC ©

AEEBE-_T-R"FERBTREDEETEER
AREEEAAKREETERZN\BRASIERZR
EEWE] WEBBKAS —HPRABENEA
KE - NERKESERE-FSHRRRIZED
RERBEMNHREESRIIE -

ENRREARTFREFIEMEERENEX
TR BRASEERRFRER BYRERTER
B R M B BOR B TR BPIAR S R S M A R
BELAEZHE BPRBEE-—BFUARTHNEE
MAE AEESE-—SERBIRIEEFHEES
EE-BHALETRAEEZAK  REAKER
BHEE -
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

ETRE®E (B)

The year 2017 will be full of challenges and opportunities. In order
to better cope with challenges and rise up to difficulties, as a
supplier that has provided professional dredging services for years
and a frontrunner with advanced management, quality clients and
an excellent reputation in the industry, we will insist on the
traditional dredging business and environmental protection
dredging business, our two principal businesses, and stay loyal to
our clients to provide them with quality service while keeping on
robust and prudent operation strategies despite of great
difficulties.

Liu Kaijin
Chairman and Executive Director

29 March 2017

—E TR AETANKEREEBEN—F BT E
FREYSERE DHm L AEEELAE—FER
EZFEBNEERERBRERE  MMEA—E
ERAKE BRERZEHEEFPMGBFEEO0MBY
THEHBER ERENMUEREE RASHKE
TFTEREEANMBRRGEZEMANETEES - AR
BMOBRFMATFRERSNRE - BFEE
MR AE & KRS o

FERPTEF

2IB9E

—E—+F=ZA=-+N1H
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Management
Discussion and Analysis

3l BEC &
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China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited FREIFABRIERER LT

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEEEN WK (&)

Overview

The Group is primarily engaged in dredging business, which can
be divided into three main operating and reportable segments,
namely, (i) capital and reclamation dredging business (the “CRD
Business”); (i) environmental protection dredging (“EPD”) and
water management business (the “EPD and Water Management
Business”); and (iii) other works operated in marine sites such as
salvage and hoisting works (the “Other Marine Business”). In
addition, the Group also commenced property management
business (the “Property Management Business”) in respect of the
management of B4R 7 K e JE (Easyhome Yancheng Shopping
Mall*) during the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, the Group turned around from an
net loss of approximately RMB190.5 million in the financial year of
2015 to a net profit of approximately RMB75.3 million.

Financial Review

Revenue

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded a drop by about
4.8% in total revenue from RMB701.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2015 to about RMB667.2 million. As regards the
CRD Business segment, the revenue generated during the
Reporting Period was approximately RMB354.0 million, which
represented a decrease of approximately 3.6% compared to the
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2015. The decrease was
due to the slowdown of the implementation of the construction
projects in the domestic dredging industry, and the drop in
number of newly contracted construction projects as the Group
implemented a more prudent and careful policy in selecting new
projects since 2015. The EPD and Water Management Business
segment recorded revenue of RMB154.7 million, which
represented a decrease of approximately 13.8% from the
corresponding segment’s revenue for the year ended 31
December 2015. The decrease was due to the slow progress in
implementing certain EPD projects. Other Marine Business
maintained stable and contributed a revenue of approximately
RMB153.5 million to the Group for the Reporting Period, which
represented a slight decrease of 0.5% as compared with
approximately RMB154.2 million in the corresponding period of
2015.

BME

AEEFERNRGEER HEANEBADR
“EEXELEREHRDA  NOERZREBRLE
BIERREBHRORERD ()RR EOE MK
EEER(RERIOZMKBEEER]D : (i)E L
REMEMTR MeERTBETR(EMES
X)) ot AEERBRERRAREEEAZR
EWERBEENEERER((MEERER] -

RBEHH AEEEEAR BEAFHOAR
75,300,000 © 1 =& — A EB REE FEIEL
B # AR % 190,500,0007T °

Bt 7% B B8

Iy 2

RpEEE REBRBEEEBWFHS TIYK
HAEE - Z-—AFt+t-_A=1t—BLEENYD
A R #701,000,0007C 8 4 #948%F #H A R &
667,200,0007C - N & ARME - HRERBEERAE
%5 BB 815 Uk 2k 49 A R #5354,000,000 7T © BE =
TE-RAFT A=t BLFENKRIFIRD
H36% WHEBRIHWERREANBEITENT
BREBEHROENE UWLAEEAR _ET—RF
AT EENGREABEABRIEENLE
ERBEERFABETRBERD - BREE KK
BEBEB D BES W E LD AR 154,700,000
T BREE T RAFET A=+ —HILFEMR
JEDEBURE R D #13.8% > WHEBMP2BHRNET
BRARGAEBRIEEREMS - EMEBEER
Bl#RiEs NBREBRAREEERMODAR
# 153,500,000 B —_E—RAFRPHARKE
154,200,000 7T R 8245~ #£0.5%
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEEEN WK (&)

The revenue of the newly developed Property Management
Business segment for the Reporting Period was approximately
RMB5.0 million. The growth of this business segment is subject to
the duration of the marketing and promotion efforts, the
cultivation process of customer base as well as the ultimate
customers’ recognition of the brand and shopping mall.

Operating Cost and Gross Profit

The Group’s operating cost decreased from about RMB474.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2015 to about RMB434.0
million for the Reporting Period, representing a decrease of about
8.5%. Such decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease in
business volume, drop in oil price and tighten cost controls.

The Group recorded a gross profit of about RMB233.1 million for
the Reporting Period, representing an increase of about 2.8% as
compared with the year ended 31 December 2015 of about
RMB226.7 million, and the Group’s gross profit margin slightly
increased from 32.3% for the year ended 31 December 2015 to
34.9% for the Reporting Period. Such increase in gross profit was
due to the effective cost control during the Reporting Period.

The gross profit margin of CRD Business segment increased from
about 35.9% for the year ended 31 December 2015 to about
39.7% for the Reporting Period, representing an increase of 3.8
percentage points. Such increase was mainly due to the Group
adopting more stringent thresholds for vetting and selection of
the new projects during the Reporting Period.

The gross profit margin of EPD and Water Management Business
slightly decreased from about 29.9% for the year ended 31
December 2015 to about 28.3% for the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, the gross profit margin of the
Group's Other Marine Business decreased from 14.4% for the
year ended 31 December 2015 to about 11.5% for the Reporting
Period. The drop in the profit margin was due to more intensive
business competition and the rising staff costs which further
lowered the project prices.
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Other Income

Other income decreased by approximately 34.7% to approximately
RMB24.9 million as compared with the year ended 31 December
2015, mainly due to the decrease in interest income in respect of
bank accounts and consideration receivables.

Allowance for Doubtful Debts

As a further prudent measure in managing the account
receivables, an allowance for doubtful debts of aggregate sum of
about RMB11.9 million was made based on the recoverability of
the receivables for the Reporting Period (allowance for doubtful
debts in 2015 was approximately RMB376.6 million in total). The
allowance for receivables was made based on the assessment in
recoverability and the judgment by the management after
considering the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
present value of the original effective interest rate.

Marketing and Promotion Expenses

Marketing and promotion expenses for the Reporting Period was
approximately RMB11.1 million, representing an increase of
28.3% as compared with the year ended 31 December 2015 of
approximately RMB8.6 million, which was mainly attributable to
the launch of series of marketing and promotion activities for the
formal operation of EAZREWE (Easyhome Yancheng
Shopping Mall*) during the Reporting Period.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses for the Reporting Period amounted to
about RMB48.7 million, representing an increase of about 18.1%
from RMB41.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2015. This
was mainly due to the increase in new staff salary cost and utilities
cost as a result of the operation of EAZ FKEa 5 (Easyhome
Yancheng Shopping Mall*), and the increase in professional fees.

Foreign Exchange Difference

Due to the fluctuation in the foreign exchange rate during the
Reporting Period, part of the Group’s bank borrowings and bank
deposits were denominated in United States dollars and Hong
Kong dollars. The foreign exchange difference of RMB39.2 million
was recognised in the Reporting Period (31 December 2015: loss
of approximately RMB30.2 million).
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Finance Costs

Finance costs increased by approximately 25.8% from the year
ended 31 December 2015 of approximately RMB55.6 million to
approximately RMB70.0 million for the Reporting Period.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense for the Reporting Period amounted to about
RMB47.0 million, while the income tax credit amounted to about
RMB46.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Profit for the Period

As a combination effect of the above, the net profit for the
Reporting Period was about RMB75.3 million, while the loss was
RMB190.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2015. Such
gain was mainly attributable to the significant decrease in
allowance for doubtful debts compared with 2015 and the gain
from disposal of Jiangsu Lugang (as defined below) of about
RMB24.3 million for the Reporting Period.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per Share for the Reporting Period was RMB0.055
per Share, while the loss per Share for the year ended 31
December 2015 was RMBO0.19 per Share.

Financial Management Policies

The Group in its ordinary course of business is exposed to market
risks such as currency risk and interest rate risk. The Group’s risk
management strategy aims to mitigate the adverse effects of
these risks on its financial performance in full measure.

As most of the Group's trading transactions, monetary assets and
liabilities are denominated mainly in Renminbi, which is the
Group's functional and reporting currency, and save for
convertible bonds and certain bank borrowing and deposits
denominated in United States dollars and Hong Kong dollars, the
foreign exchange loss recognised during the Reporting Period was
approximately RMB39.2 million (31 December 2015: loss of
approximately RMB30.2 million). The Group is giving full attention
to respond to the related foreign exchange rate risks.
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As current interest rates stay at relatively low levels, the Group has
not entered into any interest rate hedging contracts or any other
interest rate related derivative financial instrument. However, the
Group continues to monitor its related interest rate exposure
closely.

Financial Position

As at 31 December 2016, the total equity of the Group amounted
to approximately RMB2,269.5 million (31 December 2015:
approximately RMB2,123.4 million). The increase was mainly
attributable to the increase of capital due to new shares issued
during the Reporting Period and the income from operation for
the year.

The Group’s net current liabilities as at 31 December 2016
amounted to approximately RMB56.7 million (31 December 2015:
approximately RMB216.6 million). The current ratio, which is
calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities, was 0.96
as at 31 December 2016 (31 December 2015: 0.86).

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group adopts a prudent cash and financial management
policy. In order to achieve better cost control and improve the
usage efficiency of funds, the Group's treasury activities are
centralised and cash is generally deposited with banks and
denominated mostly in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars.

Included in current assets were cash and various bank deposits
which was about RMB49.5 million in total as at 31 December
2016, representing an decrease by about 75.4% as compared
with that of about RMB201.1 million as at 31 December 2015.

During the Reporting Period, the Company issued the
consideration shares in an amount of approximately HK$86.1
million (equivalent to approximately RMB75 million) as the
consideration for acquisition of land use rights with properties and
machines.

The Group’s accounts receivables as at 31 December 2016
amounted to approximately RMB1,361.0 million (2015:
approximately RMB1,121.5 million).
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The overdue receivables as at 31 December 2016 increased by
about 31.3% to approximately RMB1,024.1 million (2015:
approximately RMB780.2 million).

As at 31 December 2016, the total liabilities of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB1,561.1 million (31 December
2015: RMB1,753.7 million). The decrease in total liabilities was
mainly due to the decrease of bank borrowings and accounts and
other payables. The Group’s gearing ratio (calculated by interest
bearing instruments (including bank borrowings, other borrowings
and bonds) divided by total equity) decreased to a level of 36.2%
(2015: 47.7%).

Capital Structure of the Group

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which include
amounts due to Directors, amounts due to non-controlling
interests of a subsidiary, bank borrowings, other borrowings, bond
payable and convertible bonds and equity reserves attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital and
various reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure on a semi-annual basis.
As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on the
recommendations of the Directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through new share issues and share buy-
backs as well as the issue of new debts or the redemption of
existing debts.

The Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and transactions are mainly
denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars. During the
Reporting Period, most of the transactions were denominated and
settled in Renminbi. The Group recorded a net exchange loss
amounting to RMB39.2 million during the Period.
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Charge over Assets of the Group

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s bank borrowings were
secured by pledged bank deposits of approximately RMB15.0
million, charges over certain dredgers, accounts receivables and
land owned by the Group, a property owned by a company which
Mr. Liu has beneficial interest, and personal guarantees by Mr. Liu
and Ms. Zhou. There were also intra-group charges between two
of the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries as a result of the
contractual arrangements, pursuant to which all economic
benefits and risks arising from the business of Jiangsu Xingyu have
been transferred to Xiangyu PRC.

Material acquisitions and disposals

On 9 March 2016, Jiangsu Xingyu entered into a share transfer
agreement with Ms. Xu Xiulan and Ms. Chou Zhaoxiu (collectively
called the “Purchasers”) pursuant to which Jiangsu Xingyu agreed
to sell the entire equity interest of JT#x& BB ER LR EAR A A
(Jiangsu Province Lugang Construction Project Co. Ltd.*) (“Jiangsu
Lugang”), an indirect wholly- owned subsidiary of the Company,
to the Purchasers, among which 98.89% equity interest should be
acquired by Ms. Xu Xiulan and the remaining 1.11% equity
interest should be acquired by Ms. Chou Zhaoxiu. The total
consideration is RMB85.8 million. Jiangsu Lugang is principally
engaged in port and waterway construction and reclamation
dredging business. The transaction was completed on 17 March
2016.

Pursuant to the above share transfer agreement, the Purchasers
shall undertake that after completion of the share transfer, the
Purchasers shall continue to cooperate with Jiangsu Xingyu on its
business to ensure that the operation of investment projects of
Jiangsu Xingyu which tenders have been awarded will not be
affected by the sale of Jiangsu Lugang.
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Capital Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had capital commitments of
approximately RMB125.9 million (31 December 2015:
approximately RMB107.5 million) which mainly included the
construction cost of approximately RMB118.8 million for a hotel.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any material
contingent liability (31 December 2015: nil).

Business Review

The Group recorded an operating revenue of about RMB667.2
million and gross profit of about RMB233.1 million, representing a
decrease of 4.8% and an increase of 2.8% respectively for the
corresponding period last year. The decrease in operating revenue
was mainly due to the slowdown of the construction projects in
domestic dredging industry and the drop in number of newly
contracted construction projects as the Group adopted a more
prudent strategy in selecting new projects as disclosed in the
annual report 2015. The increase in gross profit was due to the
fact that the Group adopted positive cost effectiveness for
dredging projects.

The CRD Business is a core business of the Group. The Group has
undertook and commenced new projects during the Reporting
Period, including the projects in Binhai, Jiangsu and Tangshan,
Hebei. Though revenue generated from the segment decreased
during the Reporting Period, gross profit margin from it remained
increasing, which was attributable to our healthy and prudent
operating strategy, reflected by a better understanding of the
background and a more detailed and thorough due diligence
review of newly contracted constructions, including but not
limited to the feasibility of fund raising, natural conditions and
construction status of the projects, to ensure a reliable capital
return and a more controllable level of gross profit of such new
projects.
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The Group proactively develops and expands the EPD and Water
Management Business segment. The Group recorded a decrease
in revenue during the Reporting Period, which was attributable to
the slow progress in implementing certain EPD projects. Due to
the sludge dewatering equipment produced by the Group for the
sole use of EPD works, our dredging capacity increased by
approximately 2 million cubic meters from 6 million cubic meters
per annum in 2015 to 8 million cubic meters per annum during
the Reporting Period.

Other Marine Business includes marine hoisting, installation,
salvaging, vessel chartering and other engineering services. The
service prices of the segment fell due to the fact of intensified
market competition among hoisting and salvaging business.

The Group completed the construction of a 8-floor shopping mall
located in the core area of Yancheng National High-tech Industrial
Development Zone, Yandu District, Yancheng City, Jingsu
Province. The land where the shopping mall constructed was
acquired by the Group in May 2012 with a gross floor area of
75,600 square meters, mainly used for leasing under the Property
Management Business. The shopping mall was officially named /&
SR FKEEWE (Easyhome Yancheng Shopping Mall*) and
commenced operation on 26 March 2016, positioning as a large
scale home building material-themed shopping center offering
onestop services from furniture, housewares to decoration
materials to customers. Leveraging on the brand of “Easyhome”
and its mode of operation, the Group wishes to improve its
competitiveness to boost the occupancy rate of the shopping mall
and pursue higher profitability.

In addition to the operation and lease of shopping malls, the
Group also commenced the construction of a 17-floor hotel with
200 guest rooms located at the west of Caihong Road, Yancheng
City, Jiangsu Province, with a gross floor area of 20,000 square
meters, which was preliminarily expected to be completed by the
end of 2018. The Group expects to provide ongoing and
diversified source of revenue for the Group and stable cash flows
to the further expansion of the EPD business in the future through
the development of new business.
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Event after end of Reporting Period

On 21 March 2017, the Company entered into a second
amendment agreement and supplemental deed to the original
deed poll (the “Second Amendment Agreement”) with Citic
Capital China Access Fund Limited (the “Bondholder”) in relation
to, among other matters, the extension of the maturity date to 21
September 2017 of an aggregate of HK$243 million three per
cent convertible bonds due 2016 (the “Bonds”) issued by the
Company to the Bondholder under the then general mandate.

Under the Second Amendment Agreement, the Company shall
repay to the Bondholder a sum of not less than HK$15,533,000,
HK$62,132,000 and HK$229,467,798 on or before 24 March
2017, 21 April 2017 and 21 September 2017 respectively to fully
redeem the outstanding Bonds. The repayments comprise interests
accrued on and also part repayment of the outstanding principal
amount of the bonds. For more details, please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 22 March 2017.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

The sustained development of our business is owing to the
ongoing contributions of our employees. The Board regards
employees as the Group’s most valuable wealth and is committed
to improving their growth environment, providing them
competitive remuneration packages and safeguarding their health
and safety. As at 31 December 2016, the Group has 645 (2015:
620) employees. The total staff cost for the Reporting Period was
about RMB54.1 million (2015: RMB53.6 million). The Group's
remuneration policy is basically determined by the Directors based
on the performance of individual employees and the market
conditions. In addition to salaries and discretionary bonuses,
employee benefits included pension contributions and options
which may be granted under share option scheme (under which
options to subscribe for Shares that could be granted to
independent non-executive Directors would be subject to the
applicable conditions and independence restrictions as set out in
the Listing Rules).

During the year under review, the Group did not experience any
strikes, work stoppages or significant labour disputes which
affected its operations in the past and it did not experience any
significant difficulties in recruiting and retaining qualified staff.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEEEN WK (&)

Outlook

Looking into the year of 2017, the Group will carry on its efforts
to enhance the effectiveness of its dredging business, and expects
to bring reasonable returns through obtaining more work
contracts by virtue of our rich construction experience on dredging
projects. In addition, the Group will continue to increase its
investment in research in the environmental protection regime to
cover the technological development and research of integrated
usage of relevant resources including soil management and heavy
metal management. With the support under the “One Belt One
Road” strategy, the Group is expanding the business to foreign
markets including Southeast market.

In terms of capital operation, the Group will actively identify and
materialise healthy and feasible financial plans based on the
progress of its construction projects, so as to further optimise the
financial position and enhance the capital base of the Group.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile

EEREREEREN

Board of Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Kaijin, aged 56, the founder of the Group, was
appointed as a Director on 31 May 2010, was re-designed from a
Director to an executive Director on 24 May 2011, and was re-
designed from a joint chairman to the chairman of the Board of
the Group on 23 September 2016. He was the chief executive
officer of the Company for the period from 24 May 2011 to 5
January 2017. Mr. Liu is the spouse of Ms. Zhou, an executive
Director.

Mr. Liu completed his secondary education in 1977. In 2003, Mr.
Liu obtained a certificate as a senior construction engineer from
the Human Resources Bureau of Yancheng City* (B&¥ i A E ).
As his experience and knowledge in the PRC dredging business
grew, Mr. Liu established Jiangsu Xingyu in 2007. Mr. Liu has
been working in the dredging industry of the PRC for over 20
years.

Mr. Liu was a member of the 7th session of the committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of Yancheng
City, Jiangsu Province* (FBI A RBURH A & L& & BN M E
EERE®%E).

Mr. Liu is the chairman of Jiangsu Xingyu and Huaian Shi Xiangyu
Technology Microfinance Ltd. * (EZm TR/ NEEZBR A F)
and the chairman and general manager of Xiangyu PRC, Xiangyu
Water Management, Xiangyu Environment Protection, Jiangsu
Fengyu, Jiangsu Xingyu Commerce Co. Ltd.* (T&EFEEABR
‘A A]), Jiangsu Lifu Infrastructure Construction Co., Ltd.* (I& 1
BEMERMERAR AR, Jiangsu Xiangyu Environmental
Protection Industry Development Ltd.* (T# N FIBRELERES
fR/A7]) (“Xiangyu Environmental Protection Industry”) and
Jiangsu Xingyu Environment Protection Company Limited* (/T &k
HEFEARR AR AR, and has been responsible for overseeing
their daily operations and planning their business strategies. Other
than the above mentioned companies, Mr. Liu is the director of
Power Wealth Group (BVI) Limited, Xiangyu Dredging Company
Limited, Ever Universe Holdings Limited, Power Wealth
Engineering Limited and Million Able International Limited. He is
also a director of Wangji Limited, being a substantial shareholder.

Please refer to the “Directors’ Report” for details of his
discloseable interests in the Company under the provisions of the
SFO.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile (Continued)

ESERSREEEHN (F)

Board of Directors (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Wu Bin, aged 48, has been appointed as a vice chairman of
the Board and an executive Director on 5 January 2017.

Mr. Wu obtained tertiary education qualification. He is the
chairman of Jiangsu Yuangi Property Development Co., Ltd* (T %k
RIEBEFEAGMR AR and has many years of experience in
investment management.

Please refer to the “Directors’ Report” for details of his
discloseable interests in the Company under the provisions of the
SFO.

Mr. Wu Xuze, aged 50, has been appointed as an executive
Director and the chief executive officer of the Company on 5
January 2017.

Mr. Wu graduated from the Party School of Jiangsu Committee of
the Communist Party of China* (Ff )T #%& & ##%) and obtained
tertiary education qualification in economic management. Mr. Wu
has invested in and managed various companies in the PRC and
has acted as chairman, general manager and director of those
companies. He has over 10 years of experience in investment
management.

Please refer to the “Directors’ Report” for details of his
discloseable interests in the Company under the provisions of the
SFO.

Ms. Zhou Shuhua, aged 54, was appointed as a Director on 18
August 2010, and was re-designed as an executive Director on 24
May 2011. Ms. Zhou is mainly responsible for general
administrative work of our Group. She is the spouse of Mr. Liu,
the chairman of the Board and an executive Director.

Ms. Zhou graduated from The Correspondence Institute of the
Party School of the Central Committee of the Communist Party of
China* (dr 4L L E 17 (KI%E8), the PRC in December 1999 and
obtained a graduation certificate for undergraduate courses in
administrative management. She also obtained a graduation
certificate for undergraduate courses in broadcasting in May 2001
from Nanjing Normal University* (g ;R Bl &3 AK22), the PRC.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile (Continued)

ESEREREEBEHN (F)

Board of Directors (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. Zhou acts as a Director for Jiangsu Xingyu, Xiangyu
Environment Protection, Xiangyu Environmental Protection
Industry and Jiangsu Jiaolong.

Please refer to the “Directors’ Report” for details of her
discloseable interests in the Company under the provisions of the
SFO.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Liu Longhua, aged 65, was appointed as the non-executive
Director, the chairman of the Nomination Committee and member
of the Remuneration Committee on 25 April 2012. He was re-
designed from a joint chairman to a vice chairman of the Board of
the Group on 23 September 2016.

Mr. Liu graduated from Tsinghua University and he was accredited
with the qualification of senior engineer. Mr. Liu was the chairman
of Beijing Urban Construction Investment Development Co., Ltd.
("Beijing Urban Construction”), a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (stock code: 600266) and acted as the vice
chairman and general manager of Beijing Construction
Engineering Group Co., Limited* (tRETEBEAREEAT)
and the chairman and party secretary of Beijing Urban
Construction Group Co., Ltd. (@ major shareholder of Beijing
Urban Construction). He has extensive experience in corporate
governance of sizeable state-owned enterprises.

Mr. Liu was the vice chairman of China Construction Industry
Association* (P EIZEE & EI® ) and the chairman of the
Constructor Committee of China Construction Industry
Association* (PEIZEX B EEEM D G K).

BEExgw

HITEE @)

ABXLtHEIHET AFRRF AFRRER
FIBHREESRL -

BRARARHEARBEEFLPERIREATH
Bz m2HAFRIESeHEIMBNO -

FHTES

BIEELELE 65 R -_F-_FWUA-_+EHHA
BZERFATEZTLRAZZEGER XL AH
MEZEERE - BER_F—A"FAA-T=HA
AEBEFEEHEIFRERALE -

BAERERBEERSE BERRITEMER -
sttt nl gk ETRRMBER AR
FHEND(ESEHFR S EMAR) (BRH R :
600266) MEER WEFAIERETIEBEBRE(E
AR EERFRACERIABENETERELL
FHEEEERECARNESERELZ SR
B BERARAELEE R T OEEEELR -

FEEBRITHEEEXRHEASRRPEZE
XphegdEmoggake

31



32

China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited FREIFABRIERER LT

Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile (Continued)

ESERSREEEHN (F)

Board of Directors (Continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Huan Xuedong, aged 66, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 25 April 2012. He is also the member of
the Audit Committee.

Mr. Huan graduated from the Correspondence Institute of the
Party School of the Central Committee of the Communist Party of
China (P RERKIKERL), the PRC with a graduation
certificate for undergraduate courses in party administration. He
also completed his postgraduate studies in Applied Sociology in
Nanjing University (Fa R AE2).

Mr. Huan has served as the Head of Bureau of Township
Enterprises of Yan Cheng City* (&35 m #5380 2 /) and the Head
of Bureau of Water Management of Yan Cheng City* (&&3g 7K
F|f®). Currently, Mr. Huan is the chairman of the Agricultural and
Water Enterprises Association of Yan Cheng City* (B&3{ i 27k
ZH8).

Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan, aged 44, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in 30 November 2012. He is a
member of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee and the chairman of Audit committee.

Mr. Chan graduated from the University of New South Wales,
Australia with a Bachelor of Commerce degree in Accounting and
Computer Information Systems. Mr. Chan is both a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
Certified Public Accountants, Australia. He has extensive working
experience in accounting, investment and corporate finance. Mr.
Chan worked in an international accounting firm for about five
years and currently, he is an investment manager of Sprint Asset
Management Limited.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile (Continued)

ESEREREEBEHN (F)

Board of Directors (Continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Chan is currently an independent non-executive director of
Hao Tin Resources Group Limited (stock code: 474), Far East
Holdings International Limited (stock code: 36) and Shenyang
Public Utility Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 747), whose
securities are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange, and
of Changhong Jiahua Holdings Limited (stock code: 8016) and
Dining Concepts Holdings Limited (stock code: 8056), whose
securities are listed on the growth enterprise market of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Chan acted as an independent non-executive
director of Focus Media Network Limited (stock code: 8112) from
21 April 2015 to 27 November 2015 and L&A International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8195) for the period from 10
October 2014 to 3 March 2017, whose securities are listed on the
growth enterprise market of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Liang Zequan, aged 48, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, a member of the Audit
Committee, the chairman of Remuneration Committee and a
member of the Nomination Committee on 23 September 2016.

Mr. Liang has been the chairman, secretary of the Communist
Party’s committee and the general manager of Chengnan Branch
of Jiangsu Renhe Zhongheng Consulting Group* (T &x{— K
HEA%EE). He is also an independent non-executive director of
Jiangsu Gaohe Intelligent Equipment Co., Ltd. (stock code
831787), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. He
held various positions including the chairman, secretary of the
Communist Party’s general sub-division committee and general
manager of Chengnan Branch of lJiangsu Renhe Zhongheng
Engineering Consulting Real Estate Valuation Co., Ltd* (I&FZAK
RE TREZAEMEREBERA the chairman of Jiangsu
Renhe Zhongheng CPA L|mlted* (/_T_’?ﬁﬂ RPESEMEEME
B2 2 R]), the chairman of Yancheng Renhe Capital Construction
Investment Valuation Co., Ltd* (B8 {— REARZ RS EHEEH
FTEFR /2 7)) and the vice chairman of Yancheng Zhengdao CPA
Limited* (BE3 I8 2 5TAIEBATERAF]). Mr. Liang graduated
from Yancheng Institute of Technology and obtained the Industrial
and Civil Building Engineering professional qualification. He is a
PRC principal senior economist with the qualifications of PRC
certified engineer, asset appraiser and real estate appraiser.

BEExgw

BIYFHTES @

REERBRREREEABR AR (BRMHMAE:
474) - mRIZERBEBR AR 2 (BRH R 36) &
B ABERBEHAERAR 7(Hx1ﬁ1tsﬁ-747)2
BYNTEE EEHFNBIAER LT I
BRI EER Hxﬁﬁﬁ’&?(ﬂxf 5% - 8016) K &R
BEESERER DR (RM RS 8056) v Bz I
HITEE HEBESFNBQIMAIERET - BRAE
NE-_Z—RAFNA-_+—HE-_Z—HF+—
A = + 4 B M Focus Media Network Limited ( B% 17 £t
%ﬁsnz)&@:%—minLﬂJrElﬁ:z +

FZA=ZBR%ED 2 AR~ A] (B Ha
8195)&1?:?%4#4%??% HEBESNERAElx
R -

RERRE 8Bm N_T—RX
BEZERBIUFNTES BERZ
MEzEeXTRERIERZEEKE -

PEEREBRIKCARATELAANERESRE &
ZECLRBEDRARBEE - BN AE KR FEY
BERXGH EMZRARIHe NEREEERNAE
BT (MR :831787) 2 B EHITESE -
ZHEAECEEZERMG BRIHC AT EH IR
BHEHEMEBEERARNESR BEHAXELH
WED AR EEE  ITHRCARPE SR EHA
ERAREZESER HEWCAEAEZRREGHES
BHERARESEE  AKLEWRFEETAIE5

PMIERAREIMESRMA REEEXNERT

2h i%z%ﬁ&%giiﬁmﬁoﬂ%iﬁ
PEESAGEEN YA FEEMEETE

i - éf%.:ﬁéﬁﬂi&%imﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂiéﬁ% c

33



34

China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited FREIFABRIERER LT

Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile (Continued)

ESERSREEEHN (F)

Board of Directors (Continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Liang currently serves as the vice chairman of Jiangsu Province
Real Estate Appraisers and Agents Association* ((L&k& B EE
BHEL4HE), an expert of Jiangsu Cost Advisory Expert
Committee* (L#&EEARAERZEZEE) an executive director
of Registered Accountants Association of Yancheng City, Jiangsu
Province *(T# & BT esta% ), a special auditor of
Audit Bureau of Yancheng City, Jiangsu Province* (T #r& B3
221 /3), the vice chairman of Junior Chamber of Commerce of
Tingfu District, Yancheng City, Jiangsu Province* (T &% B =
RS FEE), a representative of the 7th Congress of the
Communist Party of China of Tingfu District, Yancheng City,
Jiangsu Province* (14T %54 B8 i T = 42 + [ B L %), the vice
chairman of Association of Forensic Sciences of Yancheng City,
Jiangsu Province * (LZREEM T AEZETEHE) and the vice
chairman of Federation of Industry and Commerce of Yancheng
City, Jiangsu Province* (T E&3 T T Bt B == /).

Senior Management

Mr. Xu Wenyue, aged 45, joined the Group in October 2011 and
is the chief financial officer of the Company. He is the head of
accounting department of the Group and is responsible for
overseeing the daily accounting and financial matters of the
Group, both in the PRC and Hong Kong.

Mr. Xu graduated from the profession of accounting of Nanjing
Economic Institute* (FFRACEERR) in 1999. Mr. Xu is a senior
accountant in the PRC (FElE A2 5tA0) and both a member of
the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants (R Bz
=HRM177&) and the China Certified Tax Agents Association (7 B+
5 #5RD 1% E). Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Xu worked in a
listed group in Hong Kong as a financial controller.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile (Continued)

ESEREREEBEHN (F)

Senior Management (continued)

Mr. Lee Chih Chiang Michael (Z&3&%4), aged 67, joined the
Group in April 2011 and is the Group's Chief Engineer of the
environmental protection dredging division.

Mr. Lee obtained a Master of Science degree in Multinational
Operations Management in 1979 from the West Coast University,
Los Angeles, the United States. Mr. Lee has received water
treatment training organised by the National Taipei University of
Technology (formerly known as National Taipei Institute of
Technology) and the Foundation of Taiwan Industry Service.

Mr. Lee has been engaged in the environmental protection
dredging, operation and maintenance for about 20 years. Before
joining the Group, Mr. Lee has worked as a manager or a chief
engineer with several water treatment and environmental
protection dredging companies in Taiwan and the PRC.

Ms. Ding Jiying (T #%82 %), aged 42, joined the Group in
December 2011 as the internal control officer. She is responsible
for overseeing the internal control matters of the Group.

Ms. Ding passed the examinations of the PRC Accountant
Examination (Intermediate level)* (2B HeEMER) and
Nanjing University of Finance and Economics* (FJ REFAL K ER) in
2000 and 2007, respectively, and awarded with the Bachelor of
Management. She is qualified as a PRC Certified Accountant* (&
Bzt 51EM) and China Real Estate Appraisers* (2B fEHD
EEHERD).

Ms. Ding has about 13 years’ experience in accounting, financial
and internal control aspects. Prior to joining the Group, she has
worked in certain sizeable enterprises as financial manager and
also worked in the auditing and business consulting division of a
PRC accounting firm, mainly responsible for internal control review
engagements.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile (Continued)

ESERSREEEHN (F)

Senior Management (continued)

Mr. Yang Xianbo (#55 %£4), aged 52, joined the Group as
general manager of Jiangsu Xingyu in November 2012 and is
responsible for overseeing the Group’s dredging operations.

Mr. Yang has more than 20 years of experience in the dredging
industry. Mr. Yang has been responsible for the development,
implementation and management of a number of national key
dredging projects and he is highly renowned in the dredging
industry. Prior to joining Jiangsu Xingyu, Mr. Yang was appointed
as the deputy director of Changjiang Wuhan Waterway
Engineering Company* (K IH)ZME LEE&EIBFK), a sizeable
state-owned dredging enterprise under the Ministry of Transport (32
BiE#HE). He was awarded with the Certificate of Senior
Engineer in waterways engineering* (38 Ti2 = 4% Ti2A0) by the
Ministry of Communication (32#832F) (now known as the Ministry
of Transport (X:@iE#i%F)) in 2006 and the Certificate of
Registration of Constructor of First Class* (—#&z2iERT) by the
Ministry of Construction (5% 5F) in 2008.

Mr. Wang Julin (E3#k5E4), aged 65, joined the Group as the
chief engineer in August 2010, and is responsible for the
management of the engineering department of Jiangsu Xingyu.
Mr. Wang studied the profession of ports and waterways at Hohai
University GA[/EAE2) of the PRC (formerly known as East China
Technical University of Water Resources (EERI/KF|ER)) from
1974 to 1978. He was awarded the Certificate of Senior Engineer
in waterways engineering by the Ministry of Communications (32
3B#EB) (now known as the Ministry of Transport (32 3:E#El)) in
1998 and was awarded the Certificate of Registration of
Constructor of First Class by the Ministry of Construction (2% 3F)
in 2008.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile (Continued)
EENREREEEEHN (B)

Senior Management (continued) SREERE @

Mr. Wang has over 30 years of experience in the implementation, T A ABBEIOEMBE IR HET B RITH
management and administration of waterways engineering. &K - EMBEAEB 2 BAERIREME T
Before joining the Group, he worked for the engineering 2/ T {E4J15%F - HERMELEBEAKE - BF
department of Changjiang Wuhan Waterway Engineering EEARBR AN FELZEE - HEE FTAENET
Company* (BT EUEATE TI2/B) for about 15yearsand hasheld R EMEBE TR —SHEBE QT EE KB L =
the positions of officer and project manager. He has been E o R—ANANE TAEERETIREMEL
responsible for sizeable dredging projects in the PRC. Thereafter, 223 T{E4J84F » LT T2 KRG R E &
Mr. Wang worked in a subsidiary under Changjiang Wuhan E RS2 TR (—HEEM) Ko aSZFEAME
Waterway Engineering Company* (RIFEMBETIIZER) as a BHHE ARRERTITZHEBEAD -

manager for about three years. In 1996, Mr. Wang re-joined

Changjiang Wuhan Waterway Engineering Company for about

eight years and has held the positions of deputy chief and chief of

the engineering and business department and deputy chief

engineer (constructor of first class). He has been responsible for

the inspection, negotiation and overseeing of various projects and

entering into of relevant contracts.
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Corporate Governance Report
SEERRE

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report
for the Review Period. This report describes how the Group has
applied its corporate governance practices to its daily activities.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Group's corporate governance framework bases on two main
beliefs:

o We are well-committed to maintaining good corporate
governance practices and procedures; and

o We recognise the need to adopt practices that improve
ourselves continuously for a quality management.

The Group has applied these principles and adopted all code
provisions, where applicable, of the CG Code contained in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as our own code of corporate
governance. The Directors consider that the Company has
complied with all applicable code provisions under the CG Code
except for the deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the CG
Code as explained below.

Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. Before 23 September 2016,
Mr. Liu, former joint chairman and chief executive officer of the
Company, was responsible for the day-to-day management of the
Group'’s businesses whilst Mr. Liu Longhua, former joint chairman,
was responsible for the management of the Board. On 23
September 2016, Mr. Liu was re-designated from joint chairman
to the chairman and Mr. Liu Longhua was re-designated from
joint chairman to vice chairman of the Company, so Mr. Liu have
the dual roles of both chairman and chief executive officer of the
Company and the Company has then deviated from this code
provision A.2.1. The Board believed that the balance of power and
authority for the arrangement would not be impaired and this
structure would enable the Company to make and implement
decisions promptly and effectively.
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TREBRE (&)

Corporate Governance Practices (Continued)

The Company understands the importance of complying with
code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code. On 5 January 2017, Mr. Liu
resigned as the chief executive officer of the Company and Mr.
Wu Xuze was appointed the same position. Hence, the Company
has re-complied with the code provision from that date onwards.

Compliance with the Model Code

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as the Company’s code of conduct for
dealings in securities of the Company by the Directors. In response
to specific enquiry made by the Company, each of the Directors
confirmed that he/she had complied with the required standard of
dealings and the code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the Directors throughout the Review Period.

We believe through the operation of an effective board, sound
internal controls, and accountability to Shareholders, we are able
to maximise the value of all Shareholders. The following
summarised the corporate governance practices adopted and
observed by the Group during the Review Period.

Board of Directors

Board Composition

As at 31 December 2016 and up to the date of this annual report,
the Board comprises four executive Directors, one non-executive
Director and three independent non-executive Directors.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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Board of Directors (Continued) EEE g

Board Composition (Continued) EEENAKE

Composition of the Board and its changes during the Review [EIFEHBREEAERAL SEHeNARKRDT
Period and up to date of this annual report are as follows:

Executive Directors: HITESE

Mr. Liu Kaijin 2R EEE

Mr. Wu Bin (appointed on 5 January 2017) ERMEERZE —‘ti— BREBEZF)

Mr. Wu Xuze (appointed on 5 January 2017) RMBEREERZZFT—+tF-—HAEHEZE)
Ms. Zhou Shuhua BRE 2+

Non-executive Director: FEHITES:

Mr. Liu Longhua 2gELE

Independent non-executive Directors: BYEHTES:

Mr. Huan Xuedong BE2REAL

Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan BoR £ 48 % &

Mr. Xu Hengju (resigned on 23 September 2016) ?%'F FhER= %F'?—/‘_\ijlﬂ —+=H&T)
Mr. Liang Zequan (appointed on 23 September 2016) PEREERZZE—R"FNAZ+=—HEZE)

The biographical details of the Directors and the relationships EE=®BEFIS LS 2 B BRI DA FE R
among them are set out in the section headed “Directors’ and [EHERKSHREEEE N —& -
Senior Management'’s Profile” of this annual report.

The Board believes that it has a balanced composition of executive EEZ@HEZ HHTEE - ;HE HITESENBIE
Directors, non-executive Director and independent non-executive #1772 £ #) Zﬂﬁjz e EEe @B
Directors and there is an independent element on the Board, gt A RITHEB I HE -R_E—NF+_FA=
which can effectively exercise independent judgement. As at 31 +—H AAFEE=-ZLBIIEHNTEE LS
December 2016, the Company has three independent non- AREE EE&@E S 85 E - & % ZEHEHREBREA
executive Directors who provide the Group with adequate check @74 W — HESF F MRS 313 EME K3 -
and balance. Each of them is considered to be independent and WA HEBEE SHLZH A ﬂ AE TR - ES A
has complied with the provisions set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing &M S H - BWENBETEERERTR
Rules. All of them are identified as such in all communications that 7 » £ 8 U H % L 8177 % M AREEED
disclose the names of the Directors. Their functions are notonly HEl W AARNEBNEBLZERFREES -
limited to a restricted scope and they have contributed to the

Group with diversified industry expertise, and advised on the

Group’s management and proceedings.

One of the three independent non-executive Directors, namely H=ZBIIERTEEFH i —Z (BIREEL L
Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan, has professional qualifications in 4 ) BEff @1 2 X LR HBETES B AR
accounting or related financial management expertise.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Responsibilities of the Board and Delegation

The Board is responsible for the approval and monitoring of the
Group's overall strategies and policies, approval of business plans,
evaluation of its performance, overseeing the management and in
charge of corporate governance function. It is also responsible for
promoting the success of the Group and its businesses by directing
and supervising the Group's affairs.

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to
executive Directors and senior management while reserving
certain key matters for its approval. Board committees for specific
functions are also set up to ensure efficient Board operations. The
respective functions and responsibilities reserved to the Board and
those delegated to Board committees have been clearly set out in
their respective terms of reference.

Decisions of the Board are communicated to the management
through executive Directors who have attended the Board
meetings.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties of the Company including:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management;

(c)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
in compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and the
Directors; and

(e)  to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Corporate Governance Functions (Continued)

During the Review Period, the Board reviewed the compliance
with the CG Code and the disclosure in this corporate governance
report and the training and continuous professional development
of the Directors.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Prior to 23 September 2016, Mr. Liu Kaijin, former joint chairman
and chief executive officer of the Company, was responsible for
the day-to-day management of the Group’s businesses, while Mr.
Liu Longhua, former joint chairman, was responsible for the
management of the Board. On 23 September 2016, both Mr. Liu
Kaijin and Mr. Liu Longhua were re-designated as the chairman
and vice chairman of the Company respectively, thus Mr. Liu Kaijin
have the dual roles of both the chairman and the chief executive
officer of the Company. On 5 January 2017, Mr. Liu Kaijin ceased
to act as the chief executive officer of the Company and Mr. Wu
Xuze was appointed the same position. Subsequent to the above
changes, Mr. Liu Kaijin, being the chairman, is responsible for the
management of the Board and Mr. Wu Xuze, being the chief
executive officer of the Company, is responsible for the day-to-day
management of the Group’s businesses.

Appointments, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

Each of the executive Directors is engaged on a Director’s service
contract with the Company. The letters of appointment of non-
executive Director and independent non-executive Directors also
set out the specific terms and conditions relative to their respective
appointment. All remuneration paid to executive Directors are
covered by respective service contracts and all remuneration paid
to non-executive Directors are covered by respective letters of
appointment. Details of the terms of appointment of the Directors
are disclosed in the section “Director’s Service Contracts” of the
Directors’ Report in this annual report.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Appointments, Re-election and Removal of
Directors (Continued)

Pursuant to the Articles, any Director appointed by the Board shall
hold office until the next following general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election. Accordingly,
Mr. Wu Bin, Mr. Wu Xuze and Mr. Liang Zequan will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the meeting.

Pursuant to the Articles, at each annual general meeting, one-
third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not
three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not
less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation, provided
that every Director (including the non-executive Director and
independent non-executive Directors) shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Accordingly,
Mr. Liu Kaijin and Ms. Zhou Shuhua will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting in accordance with the
Articles. The retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Orientation is provided to newly appointed Directors upon their
appointments. Each of them will receive a director’'s manual from
the Company which contains a package of orientation materials
on the operations and businesses of the Group, together with
information relating to the duties and responsibilities of directors
under the Listing Rules and statutory regulations.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Board Meetings

The Group adopted the practice of holding Board meetings for
executive Directors regularly and holding Board meetings that
included both executive Directors and non-executive Directors at
least four times every year. The Board will also meet on other
occasions when a board-level decision on a particular matter is
required.

Generally, at least 14-days’ notice for the Company’s regular
Board meeting, and reasonable time for all other meetings, would
be given prior to such meetings. Agenda for a meeting are sent to
all Directors prior to the meeting. The Directors will receive details
of agenda items for decision at least three days before regular
Board meetings.

Throughout the Review Period, the Directors also participated in
the consideration and approval of matters of the Company by way
of written resolutions circulated to them. Supporting written
materials were provided in the circulation and verbal briefings
were given by company secretary of the Company when required.

In order to ensure that Board procedures, and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed, all Directors are able to access the
Company’s company secretary for advice from time to time.
Moreover, upon reasonable request, the Directors will be able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
at the Company’s expense. All Directors were given an opportunity
to include matters in the agenda of meetings for discussion.
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Board of Directors (Continued) EEE g

Board Meetings (Continued) EEg8Em

To ensure a competent Board operation, all Directors gave ARFREEZeNEAERNEFE REOBEHE FEE
sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the Group duringthe ZEE2AAXEEHNEERAZO>HEBEE D - R
Review Period. During the Review Period, 8 Board meetings EEEHIM DRI E TR (T0EEESR
(excluding delegated committees’ meetings) were held and E@e3%) SKEENHFEBRLEIET :
attendance of each Director is set out as follows:

Number of
meetings held
Number of during term
Name of Director attendance of office
fE B A o B 4T
BEEpnE R WERXE
Executive Directors HITEF
Mr. Liu Kaijin BIFEEE 8 8
Mr. Wu Bin {8 5 A4
(appointed on 5 January 2017) (R=ZZ—tF—RABHEZMF) N/A 3 F N/A N3 F
Mr. Wu Xuze RBZEEAE
(appointed on 5 January 2017) (R=ZBE—tF—FRABEZME) N/A 38 A N/A N3 F
Ms. Zhou Shuhua JBREE 22+ 6 8
Non-executive Director HHITEE
Mr. Liu Longhua ZIREELE 8 8
Independent non-executive Directors B/ IF#H iTE FE
Mr. Huan Xuedong BEREE 8 8
Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan BR 8% 22 55 4 8 8
Mr. Xu Hengju wEREE
(resigned on 23 September 2016) (R=Z—AR"FHLA=-+=H&T) 5 5
Mr. Liang Zequan REBRFE
(appointed on 23 September 2016) (R—ZBE—RFLA-_+=HEZMF) 3 3

Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of Board committeesare ZEFECCZNEZZECLZNZ LB AR
kept by the company secretary or other duly authorised person. A EXETABRENHEMBATRE - TESE
All minutes are open for inspection by any Director on reasonable S EABEBMNTAHIWNEETEH -ZECH
notice. Such minutes are recorded in sufficient detail of the FEERMAFMML D EEMEE RIEH AR
matters considered and decisions reached. Draft and final versions TF-EF @ @Z Nl aREReBExE
of minutes of Board meetings are sent to all Directors for their FFTAEZ  UWHBSHELER RREF-

comments and records.
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TRERHE (A)

Board of Directors (Continued)

Directors’ Training

As part of an ongoing process of directors’ training, the Company
updates directors on the latest development regarding the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements from time to
time, to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good
corporate governance practices.

During the Review Period, all Directors participated in appropriate
continuous professional development activities summarised as
follows:

BEExgw

EE=

EREFHBEEIZ D ARRATRAEZES
REABLTRAMEABEREERE 2 &ME

REM UBRFREFETZFHRIMESEYR
HEREARATRZAM -
REBEHE MEEEHE2REBIHFERE

SRR RS N

Reading materials and/or
attending training courses
relevant to the Company’s

business, to their duties and
responsibilities and/or to
corporate governance or

Name of Director regulation
BIEAM R R B
HEZIRERNREE
KATEL BHENBBER
BEEng BEER SCEEARATE
Executive Directors: HITEF -
Mr. Liu Kaijin 2L E v
Mr. Wu Bin {0 5 A4
(appointed on 5 January 2017) (R=ZZ—+tF—RAABHEZF) N/A 73 A
Mr. Wu Xuze RIEE%E
(appointed on 5 January 2017) (R=ZE—t&—ARAHEZMF) N/A i A
Ms. Zhou Shuhua JB R EE A+ v
Non-executive Director: FEHITESE
Mr. Liu Longhua ZIBEELE v
Independent non-executive Directors: B/ FEHTEE
Mr. Huan Xuedong BEERLA v
Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan BR 8% 2 45 4 v
Mr. Xu Hengju wEREE
(resigned on 23 September 2016) (R=ZZE—AR"FENLA=+=HET) v
Mr. Liang Zequan RERTE
(appointed on 23 September 2016) (RZZE—R"FENLAZ+=HEZMT) v

Every newly appointed Director has been provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that he has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as
well as his responsibilities under the relevant statutes, laws, rules
and regulations.

FMEHZENESTHRRHLOZMHARBEIRE
B EREBARANEEREBEALEREH
fGefl =P RAIRZEZR THEEEEEREN
TRE
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Board Committees

Remuneration Committee

The Company has set up a remuneration committee with specific
terms of reference with appropriate modification when necessary,
which state clearly its authority and duties. To keep the
Remuneration Committee’s terms of reference in line with the
Listing Rules amendments, the Board adopted new terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee in March 2012.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include making recommendations to the Board on the Group’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior
management and reviewing the specific remuneration packages
of all executive Directors and senior management by reference to
corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board from time to
time.

During the Review Period, the Remuneration Committee
conducted review of the remuneration policy and structure of the
Directors and senior management which took into account the
prevailing market condition and the responsibilities and
performance of individual members. No change to the terms was
proposed to the Board by the Remuneration Committee. Further,
the Remuneration Committee made recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration package for a newly appointed
Director during the Review Period.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the
remuneration of the members of the senior management by band
for the Review Period is set out below:

In the band of
&

EXZET

FMESS

ARRERLFMEZE S - X H ERHENBER
B(uEBREELEEELR) BB HERENR
A REFHZESNRAERESS LMAAZ
Bl EEBER-ZZT—ZF = AN AT B
ZEoRRaE-

FHZEENIZRECEALCEREZTRSR
EEENERTMERRERBERESTSRAZ
FOLAREEFSTIHMAINGCESSHLAERM
ERZEBUTETRSREEBNHEFITE -

CEME FHZEeHEERSREEENH
BB S REEAE L i ) A R 3R AT T R A
RENBERKRR FTHEZEGUERNESERE
FIERBABER- W HFMEE SN O EE
R LEEEZHFMSTBRESSEHEBRZS -

BREBECEEARTHOTEXBIS SREERE
ABREEHEZHMEERII M T

Number of individuals
BE A

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000

£ % 1,000,0007% 7T 5
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Board Committees (continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

As at 31 December 2016, a majority of the Remuneration
Committee’s members are independent non-executive Directors.

RZE-—RF+_A=+—HB FHZESNRE
RZBRER/BYUFNTEST REEMHE B

During the Review Period, one committee meeting was held and STk ZEZB8eeH SKEHE LieZHER
the attendance of each member as to the said meeting is set out &0 T :
as follows:
Number of
meetings held
Number of during term
Name of Director attendance of office
BB RET
E=pE R E WERRXE
Non-executive Directors: F#ITESE :
Mr. Liu Longhua BIEESLE 1 1
Independent Non-executive Directors: B/ JE#H 1TE F -
Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan PR 66 48 % A& 1 1
Mr. Xu Hengju* rEREE
(resigned on 23 September 2016) (RZE—R"FANAZ+=BEMF) 1 1
Mr. Liang Zequan® RFERTAE
(appointed on 23 September 2016) (M= RENA=-+=BEZEF) 0 0

Mr. Xu Hengju acted as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee
until 23 September 2016. Mr. Liang Zequan was appointed as the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee on 23 September 2016.

Nomination Committee

The Company has set up a nomination committee with specific
terms of reference with appropriate modification when necessary,
which state clearly its authority and duties. To keep the
Nomination Committee’s terms of reference in line with the
Listing Rules amendments relating to board diversity, the Board
adopted new terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
including a board diversity policy in August 2013.

# RIEGEERITFHEESEIRAZ _T—AENA
“+ZB - RERAEER_T—XRNENAZ-+=HE
EEARFHEESREE -

REZ8SE

ARBEKRIIREBZBE - W HIE R E R BEESR
B(wERELESENR)  FEINAEBENE
A -RERBZEENRERESS LMAAE
MEFEZ Ttz EFQ@CR_F—=F
NARMFHRELLZECRERE (BREFES
TAEBR) °
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Board Committees (continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity of
the Board members. The following measurable objectives (the
“Measurable Objectives”) for the purpose of implementation of
the board diversity policy are adopted:

(@) at least 40% of the members of the Board shall be non-
executive directors or independent non-executive directors;

at least 65% of the members of the Board shall have
attained bachelor’s degree or above;

(¢) at least 30% of the members of the Board shall have
obtained accounting or other professional qualifications;

at least 75% of the members of the Board shall have more
than seven years of experience in the industry he is
specialised in;

(e) atleast 50% of the members of the Board shall have China-
related work experience.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the size, structure and composition of the Board,
developing and formulating relevant policies and procedures for
nomination and appointment of Directors, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
succession planning of Directors, and assessing the independence
and appropriateness of the independent non-executive Directors
based on the criteria such as reputation for integrity,
accomplishment and experience in the relevant sectors,
professional and educational background, and potential time
commitments.

The Nomination Committee has reviewed the size and
composition of the Board and the independence of independent
non-executive Directors and also made recommendations to the
Board in relation to the re-appointment of the retiring Directors
and appointment of a Director for the Review Period. The
Measurable Objectives set out above for the purpose of
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy are achieved.
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Board Committees (continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

During the Review Period, one committee meeting was held and
the attendance of each member as to the said meetings is set out
as follows:

BEEZEE@m
REZES @)

REBEME BRT1RZESgH SKNELE
bt eZmaBREMNNT

Number of
meetings held
Number of during term

Name of Director attendance of office
ERERET

EEHY HERE WERXE

Non-executive Director: FEHITESE -

Mr. Liu Longhua* RlgeE i A? 1 1

Independent Non-executive Directors: i/ FE#H iTEF -

Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan PR 8% 48 5T £ 1 1
Mr. Xu Hengju TRIEZ L &

(resigned on 23 September 2016) (RZEBE-—RFAAZ+=BEE) 1 1
Mr. Liang Zequan REBREE

(appointed on 23 September 2016) (R=ZBE—R"FNA=-+=RAEZE) 0 0

Mr. Liu Longhua acted as the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

Audit Committee

The Company has established an audit committee with specific
written terms of reference that have included the duties which are
set out in CG Code provision C.3.3 with appropriate modification
when necessary. To keep the Audit Committee’s terms of
reference in line with the Listing Rules amendments, the Board
adopted new terms of reference of the Audit Committee in
December 2015 to include duties regarding risk management.

The major role and function of the Audit Committee are to ensure
the maintenance of proper relationship with the Company’s
auditor, the establishment of proper review and control
arrangements relating to internal control and risk management
systems, financial reporting and the compliance to applicable
reporting requirements.
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Board Committees (continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

The Audit Committee reviewed the consolidated financial
statements for the six months ended 30 June 2016 and
consolidated financial statements for the Review Period of the
Group, including the Group’s adopted accounting principles and
practices, the continuing connected transactions of the Company,
internal control systems and financial reporting matters (in
conjunction with the external auditor for the annual results). The
Audit Committee also monitors the effectiveness of the external
audit and oversees the appointment, remuneration and terms of
engagement of the Company’s external auditor, as well as its
independence. The Audit Committee endorsed the accounting
treatments adopted by the Company and, to the best of its ability
assured itself that the disclosures of the financial information in
this annual report comply with the applicable accounting
standards and Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules.

As at 31 December 2016, the Audit Committee comprised three
independent non-executive Directors and regular Audit Committee
meetings were held pursuant to its terms of reference. During the
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Review Period, two committee meetings were held in the HEMNEBERLTEBITMAEZESSLSE  SKEHE
attendance of the external auditor, and the attendance of each it @z BERE YT -
member as to the said meetings is set out as follows:
Number of
meetings held
Number of during term
Name of Director attendance of office
BB A ET
EERE R E WEBRE
Independent Non-executive Directors: B/ IF#H i7E F -
Mr. Huan Xuedong BEREE 2 2
Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan’ BR 8% 48 55 A * 2 2
Mr. Xu Hengju wERTE
(resigned on 23 September 2016) (RZE—R"FALAZ+=B&M) 2 2
Mr. Liang Zequan REBRFE
(appointed on 23 September 2016) (R—ZBE—XRFLA-_+=HEZMFE) 0 0

Mr. Chan Ming Sun, Jonathan acted as the chairman of the Audit
Committee.
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Directors’ Interests in Competing
Businesses

None of the Directors or the management of the Company or
their respective close associates (as defined under the Listing
Rules) had any interests in a business which competes or may
compete with the business of the Group, or had any other conflict
of interest with the Group during the year.

The Company has received from each of the Directors an annual
confirmation of his/her undertaking as to non-competition.

Non-Competition Undertakings

The then controlling Shareholders (namely Mr. Liu, Wangji Limited
("Wangji”), Mr. Dong Liyong (“Mr. Dong”) and Shen Wang
Limited (“Shen Wang"), through a deed of non-competition dated
24 May 2011 (“Principal Deed”), have given undertakings
("Undertakings”) to the Company not to directly or indirectly
engage in the business which competes or may compete with the
Group, on terms and conditions as disclosed in the prospectus of
the Company dated 8 June 2011 (”Prospectus”). For details of the
Undertakings, please refer to page 162 to 165 of the Prospectus.

On 2 April 2015, the Company, Mr. Liu, Wangji, Mr. Dong and
Shen Wang entered into a supplemental deed of non-competition
(which was approved by the Shareholders in the Company’s
annual general meeting for the year 2014) to amend certain terms
contained in the principal Deed (”Supplemental Deed”). Pursuant
to the Supplemental Deed, Mr. Dong and Shen Wang were no
longer bound by the Principal Deed nor were they be deemed as
part of the controlling Shareholders for the purpose of the
Principal Deed. For details, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 2 April 2015.
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Non-Competition Undertakings (continued)

The status of compliance with the Undertakings by the controlling
Shareholders during the Review Period is as follows:

(1)  the Board received from each of Mr. Liu and Wangji a
confirmation (i) of compliance with the Undertakings for the
Review Period, and (i) that during the Review Period, neither
they nor their close associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) had any interest in any project or business opportunity
(otherwise than through their interests held through the
Group) which relate to the business activities by the Group;

(2)  none of the Director are aware of any circumstances which
indicate that the controlling Shareholders or their close
associates are in breach of the Undertakings during the
Review Period; and

(3) save for the terms as amended by the Supplemental Deed,
the terms of the Undertakings have remained unchanged
since the Company’s listing on the Stock Exchange in June
2011.

Financial Reporting and Audit

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with applicable statutory requirements and accounting standards
and the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Group adopted the
going concern basis in preparing its financial statements.

A statement by the external auditor of the Company about its
reporting responsibilities is set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

During the Review Period, remuneration in respect of non-audit
services, namely, the review of continuing connected transactions
and preliminary results announcements and tax advisory provided
by CWC CPA Limited amounted to about RMB180,000. The
remuneration in respect of audit service was amounted to about
RMB1,932,000.
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Internal Control and Risk Management

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the
Group's risk management and internal control systems and
reviewing their effectiveness at least annually. The Audit
Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight role in the
Group's risk management and internal controls.

The risk management and internal control systems are to ensure
that the Group’'s assets are safeguarded, relevant rules and
regulations are complied with, reliable financial and accounting
records are maintained in accordance with relevant accounting
standards and regulatory reporting requirements, and key risks
that may impact on the Group’s performance are appropriately
identified and managed. However, the systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failures to achieve
business objectives and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Group has an internal audit function reporting directly to the
Audit Committee. The role of internal audit is to evaluate and
improve the effectiveness of internal control, risk management
and business governance processes. The regular work of the
internal audit covers the major activities of the Group’s operations.

An information disclosure policy is in place to ensure potential
inside information being captured and confidentiality of such
information being maintained until consistent and timely
disclosure is made.

During the Review Period, the Audit Committee not only reviewed
the internal audit's report but also the certain key risk
management and internal control issues identified by the external
auditor. The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the internal
control and risk management systems of the Group, covering all
material financial, operational and compliance controls and
concluded that the key areas of the Groups’ internal control and
risk management systems are reasonably and adequately
implemented to their satisfaction, with room of improvement.
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Company Secretary

Ms. Wong Kwan Lai has been appointed as the company secretary
of the Company with effect from 20 June 2016. The company
secretary is responsible for ensuring good information flow within
the Board and that Board’s policy and procedures are followed as
well as for providing advice on governance matters. For the year
ended 31 December 2016, Ms. Wong confirmed that she had
taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training to
update her skills and knowledge.

Communication with Shareholders and
Investors

General Meetings with Shareholders

The Company communicates with its Shareholders through its
annual report, interim report and statutory and voluntary
announcements. The Directors, company secretary or appropriate
members of senior management, where appropriate, also respond
to inquiries from Shareholders and investors on a timely basis.

The Company’s annual general meeting provides a useful platform
for direct communication between the Board and Shareholders.
Separate resolutions are proposed on each substantially separate
issue at the general meetings. The annual general meeting for the
year ended 31 December 2015 (“2015 AGM") was held on 2
June 2016.

Resolutions put to vote at the general meetings of the Company
are taken by poll. Procedures regarding the conduct of the poll are
explained to the Shareholders at the commencement of each
general meeting. The poll results are posted on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company respectively on the same
day as the poll.

Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.7 of the CG code, independent
non-executive Directors should attend general meetings. All
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) who
held office at time of the 2015 AGM attended the 2015 AGM.
Representative of the Company’s external auditors also attended
the 2015 AGM.
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Communication with Shareholders and
Investors (Continued)

Shareholders’ Rights to Convene Extraordinary
General Meeting and Put Forward Proposals at
General Meetings

In accordance with Article 64 of the Articles, extraordinary general
meetings shall be convened on the requisition of one or more
Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having
the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be
made in writing to the Directors or the Company’s company
secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Directors for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
21 days of such deposit the Directors fail to proceed to convene
such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so
in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Directors shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

There is no provision in the Articles setting out procedures for
Shareholders to put forward a resolution at general meetings.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the
Company to convene a general meeting following the procedures
set out in the preceding paragraph.

In accordance with article 110 of the Articles, if a Shareholder
intends to propose a person other than a Director for election as a
Director at any general meeting, the Shareholder concerned shall
lodge with Hong Kong head office or Hong Kong share registrar
of the Company for the attention of the Board and the company
secretary of the Company (i) a written notice of his/her intention
to propose that person for election as a Director; and (i) a written
notice by that person of his/her willingness to be elected as a
Director together with the necessary information within the period
commencing no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the
notice of the general meeting and ending no later than seven
clear days prior to the date of such general meeting.

ERRRBREEETEE®

i%ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%%ﬂﬂﬁ%&ﬁﬂﬁik%

REBEAUFAG RREIAGER -—BHEH
REXEXEARETNIRARBAEERBERAX
ELREZEARA TS 2 —HRREREA
fleZBEERANEARNEZTGRNART QAW
ERZE UBREFTEHRBEXRERLTEMETE
X ARBRRFIARE -ZAGERZEERE
REMBEARNBIT - WEFEREIZEE IR
2IBAREBRZAE  BREOBRERAA(KE)
ARBARZAEBRARE MARAARIELZER
ATENERREERATEEES RELH
ReMELEZAERX

MATEHERBRRABRRASERIEREZRZE
FRE - BEDBRBRIRRAIKE L —BA
HEFERLARAARARRAE -

RBARE NG WRRENEFARR KRS R
REZEMINZALHEES BEAKRRAKAUAT
NHEXRARAEBEBRERXBTERNES
BRBEEAREFERARFARAMER  ()E
EERZEABALTHERESTNZEEBA : &)
ZEALTRABEERNEDAYN  ERAMFTE
B mEXIXHRBETERFTRIRARRAS
BEZERG UTBERZERAEHMAE
BExBERBIE-



Annual Report 2016 —ZT—XFEFHf

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TREBRE (&)

Communication with Shareholders and
Investors (Continued)

Investor Relations

The Company endeavours to disclose all material information
about the Group to all interested parties as widely and timely as
possible. It has disclosed all necessary information to the
Shareholders in compliance with the Listing Rules. When
announcements are made through the Stock Exchange, the same
information will be made available on the Company’s website.
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company has
issued announcements which can be viewed on the Company’s
website.

Shareholders and investors may at any time send their enquiries
and concerns to the Board in writing to the company secretary at
the Company’s office in Hong Kong or through the e-mail
address: info@cdep.com.hk. Shareholders may also raise their
enquiries in general meetings.

Constitutional Documents

No amendment to the memorandum and articles of association of
the Company was made during the Review Period.
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The Group is committed to fulfilling its corporate social
responsibility through working with the key stakeholders including
the employees, customers, suppliers and Shareholders.

We have given full consideration to issues that are of concern to
major stakeholders and have adhered to the principles of
materiality, completeness, comparability and stakeholder
involvement, all of which form the contents of this report. This
report spans over one financial year from 1 January 2016 to 31
December 2016 and covers information of the Group — our Hong
Kong and China Yancheng headquarters as well as dredging and
property management businesses in the PRC.

This report highlights the Group’s sustainability efforts in
environmental and social aspects as stipulated in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide under
Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules. We shall explain this in terms of
four areas namely, environment protection, employment and
labour practices, operating practices and community investment.

For details of our corporate governance, please refer to the
corporate governance report included in this annual report.

Environmental Protection

Emissions

The Group recognizes the importance of good environmental
management and is committed to protecting the environment.
We factor our environmental concerns into our business processes
and strive to continuing to improve our environmental
performance in compliance with the applicable regulations and
industry-specific guidelines.
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The Group strictly complies with the relevant national maritime
regulations to identify and manage the released substances during
dredging to ensure their safe treatment, transportation, storage,
recycling and disposal. We strive for high accuracy in both
positioning and excavation during the dredging process to ensure
proper removal of excavated materials (including mud and solid
matter) and pollutants and to minimize over-excavation and soil
agitation. We also take anti-diffusion and leakage measures to
ensure high concentrations of inhalation in order to avoid
pollution by the contaminants in their suspended state in the
surrounding water. Besides, in the dredging process the excavated
materials and contaminated sediments are stored on the dredgers
in accordance with the relevant national regulations. We transport
them to the shore through barges or pipeline to avoid their
leakage which may cause secondary pollution to water. Finally, we
arrange qualified recyclers for their disposal.

In the horizons of waste management and recycling, the Group
recorded approximately 6 tons of domestic waste, 13 tons of
kitchen waste and 29 tons of diesel dregs during the Reporting
Period. The Group requires our employees to keep contaminated
substances in separation and treat wastes in classification.
Excavated materials and contaminated sediments in the dredging
process are stored on the dredgers and transported to the shore
according to the relevant national laws and regulations. Other
wastes are stored in specialised storage areas and handled in
accordance with the Standard for Pollution Control on Hazardous
Waste Storage. The Group has commissioned qualified companies
to recycle and declare under the registration system pursuant to
the relevant laws and regulations.

During the Reporting Period, the Group is not aware of any non-
compliance of laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the Group relating to air and greenhouse gases emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste.
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Use of resources

In response to China’s “12th Five-Year Plan” call, the Group
advocates green lighting. The Group uses energy saving lamps for
the lighting system in the newly constructed J&#%A 2 5% Ea5 5
(Easyhome Yancheng Shopping Mall*), which can improve the
power efficiency and accomplish the low-carbon strategy. The
Group requires its employees to make sure that lights and
electronic appliances are switched off before they leave the office
and encourages them to purchase energy-efficient equipment.
During the Reporting Period, the Group had an electricity
consumption of approximately 940,000 kilowatts.

From the perspective of water management, the Group has
provided signs to remind its staff to reduce water consumption.
During the Reporting Period, the Group’s water consumption was
about 8,300 tons.

Environment and Natural Resources

Dredging construction projects affect the environment and natural
resources. The Group is committed to managing the impact of its
operations related to the environment and natural resources and
preventing significant adverse impacts on the environment.

Our environmental protection dredging technology outperforms
the traditional technology as it does not cause secondary pollution
and conforms with the keynote of China’s environmental
protection policies. Our sludge dewatering equipment is capable
of continuous operation and meeting the requirements and
standards of dewatering volume without adding solidification
materials such as lime or concrete during operation. It does not
change the acidity and alkaline property of the mud cake after
dewatering and can be used in sludge soil resource recovery and
reuse or otherwise can be turned into harmless environmental
protection bury. The remaining water after processing is clear and
up to the standard, which can be directly re-discharged into the
lake.

Environmental impact is also fully taken into consideration when
the Group makes investment decisions.
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Employment and Labour Practices

Employment

The policy of maintaining a good working condition is a people-
oriented principle. In relation to personnel management affairs on
staff hiring, promotion, performance evaluation and
compensation, the Group establishes an employer-employee
relationship based on legitimacy and equality, which enables us to
avoid any discrimination resulting from different genders, ages,
languages, nationalities and religions of employees.

The Group recruits employees mainly by recruitment via public
means. The recruitment of our employees embodies the principles
of social responsibilities such as the equality of employment, the
respect for human rights, the diversity of employees, the
prohibition of use of child labour and the prohibition of forced
labour. The Group provides its new employees with clear codes of
practice, rules and regulations, as well as information relating to
salary and welfare system.

As of 31 December 2016, the Group had a total of 645
employees, of which over 90% were employed for our operations
in the PRC. As for positions, 33% are managerial and technical
staff and 67% are general staff. In respect of ages, we have an
even age distribution among our staff, of which 65% our
workforce is between 30 to 50 years old, 19% of our employees
are below 30 years old and 16% are over 50 years old.

In respect of salaries and benefits, the Group provides a
comprehensive remuneration package of compensation and
benefits for its employees. The remuneration package is mainly
determined according to the individual employee’s development
and performance as well as the Group's performance. The Group
provides work lunch to those staff in the PRC and also sets aside
reserved funds for activities, which help our employees to relieve
stress and serve to exemplify the Group’s corporate culture of the
spirit of solidarity and cohesion among its employees. In
accordance with the applicable Chinese labour laws, the Group
contributes to various national social security insurances and one
housing fund for our mainland employees.

BRERETIER

&ER®

AEBNTEREERREAAR/RK FHEET
BR B7 AME FMIASEREH LR
RANEBREGEFENERE  THE TR - F
B FBE BEBENRBENZTZARMAE EMA
BITR -

AEETERABLAHARBBEEREAT  ZEMR
XTE BEAEMEBEIZEME - AR I
REIREIRESTELSEEEIBAZA
BT -AEBEHAMETRHEBFWHOR IS
A - REHE FEREBMNHENER -

HE-Z—-—XE+-_A=+—H K&EEBESL
BG4S A - EiBiBo0% E TAEBMNPEEE -
ERBAUIE BEEEMABN3% EEET
H67% - TR AHE BETES T OMHFY  Hf
65% ) B B) N F R N30 250 19% M E T
ER305% * B16% /) B TF i m M 505 °

FHEMNTEH AEEAETRHETENTME
MoFHMEIPRETHR BAAER SEXRRE
DB - AEEREAEIRFEIEFTE  TF
BEKENSKHREEREY RETHF&EIE
BhHz& TRIBRTASENEEREND
EXERBIRBEN AEERBETELEHEN
HERAERBERNEIAMSELERREEEA
Be -

61



62

China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited FREIFABRIERER LT

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

R #HERER/ESE (&

Recognising the importance of communication with its employees,
the Group encourages its employees to share their ideas with the
Group and raise questions or make suggestions to the Group.
With the availability of a wide array of communication channels,
the Group offers its employees access to the latest information of
the Group through the Group’s website. Employees can also
maintain timely and smooth communication with the management
of the companies within the Group through the representatives of
the employees.

Health and safety

The Group trains its employees to prevent occupational hazards
from time to time and distributes labour protection supplies and
first aid supplies to employees as needed. We also post up hazard
warning signs and labour protection supplies reminders in the
relevant work places. We provide to the relevant staff annual
occupational health examinations. Meanwhile, we also implement
the labor protection supplies regulatory mechanism. With regular
inspections by dedicated persons, we remind and request
employees to wear labour protection supplies to maintain their
health and safety.

At the production safety level, each of the dredgers and the key
safety equipment must carry a valid ship inspection certificate
issued by the ship inspection agency. All the ships and offices are
also equipped with first aid and medicine boxes, and we also
arrange staff representatives to participate in first aid training. At
the individual’s level, the Group provides targeted safety trainings
to newly recruited employees and then strengthens their safety
awareness through the implementation of the mentoring system
in daily work. The Group has reinforced on-the-job safety trainings
by requiring all department heads responsible for work injury to
carry out safety trainings for their department staff and through a
series of measures to enhance the safety awareness of employees
in order to avoid the recurrence of similar incidents.

Moreover, the Group has assigned dedicated people to conduct
regular inspections of the fire equipment on the ships and in
offices. We perform full fire drills twice per year to increase their
awareness of fire safety and fire prevention for all employees. As a
result, no work accident was recorded by the Group in the
Reporting Period.
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Development and training

The Group highly emphasizes on the internal and external learning
and training to enhance the educational standards and working
abilities of employees.

New employees are provided with on-board training to help them
familiarise themselves with the culture, business and operation of
the Group. In addition, employees are also entitled to various
subsidies and sponsorships for job-related training courses to
encourage lifelong learning.

Labour standards

All work should be voluntarily performed and shall not involve
forced labour, debt repayment or contractually binded labour. The
Group prohibits child labour in any workplace. The Group also
prohibits discrimination based on race, colour, age, gender, sexual
orientation, ethnicity, disability, pregnancy, religion, political
affiliation, union membership or marital status in recruitment,
treatment, promotion, etc.

The Group also strictly complies with the relevant PRC labour
regulations relating to working hours, rest and holidays to ensure
the physical and mental of all employees. Employees are not to be
forced to work beyond working hours and are entitled to overtime
pay in accordance with the local regulations. All employees
perform works voluntarily and are not subject to discrimination.

Operating Practices

Supply chain management

Our suppliers are our business partners and we aim to maintain a
long-term partnership with them to continuously improve the
quality of our products and services.

Based on supply chain social and environmental responsibilities
management, the principal raw material currently required by the
Group's operation is diesel, and other resources involve owned
and leased dredgers, crews and subcontractors’ participation.
There are over hundreds of dredger leasing companies,
subcontractors and fuel suppliers on our list.
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In addition to factors such as pricing, quality, facilities and
experience, and past performance evaluation, the Group also
takes into account the suppliers’ performance in fulfilling their
social responsibilities and commitment to environmental
protection in our selection of suppliers. We require our suppliers
to comply with the laws and regulations in countries and regions
where their operations are located and to operate in good faith by
adhering to their business ethics. The Group prohibits
discrimination arising from regional, racial, cultural and political
factors in the course of its supplier evaluation.

Product responsibility

The Group attaches great importance to the quality of dredging
projects and establishes comprehensive quality control procedures.
The project management team is responsible for testing the
quality of the dredging projects. The project manager conducts
daily on-site inspections and supervise works to ensure that the
quality standards and regulations of the dredging and related
projects are carried out in accordance with the customers’
requirements. After the completion of the works but before the
project completion, customers will check whether the quality of
the project meets their requirement.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have to rework
for completed project due to the project quality issue.

Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to maintaining high ethical standards in
all of our operations and business activities. With this in mind, the
Group is dedicated to a zero-tolerance policy with regard to any
involvement in corruption or bribery activities of any type.

We include anti-corruption code in our internal operational
manual to ensure that employees understand the Group’s
expectations. The code sets out the legal responsibilities and
ethical standards for the expected behaviour of all employees. It
explicitly prohibits employees from soliciting, accepting, or offering
bribes or any other form of advantage. The code also provides
guidance for daily interactions with customers, suppliers,
government officials and other business partners and outlines the
Group's expectations on employees with regard to conflicts of
interests and encourages employees to report any malpractice and
misconduct. The Group has set up hotline and email to receive
reports from all employees.

EEEBEHSHERR KRHUERES @8 RE
Mg NERAFRERRIN AKETEE

BEREBREILGEERBEREQRA
R ETERAE A ERER BT
$EEER BISEE o REEEEERTEB
TR g I L R SCAE R BOR B R
ik

BeEERREAIRNRE XHET —F
MmEEHEF - HEEREKBEERAR
VmE REKEESHEMRARESR
Tie UBRERERBREPERATHIZLAH
TREBNRERERRAE - RBEEEIRER
WIEBR EFeRA IERERR MU -

RN EHH EEABLEDEIEERIRERE
B ZREMNBR -

RES
SERNEZEREBAITRTRERETE

At SEH2EEMEENESRBREDH
TRETERRHEK -

BMAE(ABEESZE)>AMARESTRIE B
REREEEBRARANHE - ZTRIEARA
BEFEMITANEREENEEERE  BEEIL
BERD - WA REBEHEIEMEMEAHF
m AEAEF HER BNEEREMEBE
HHBEERERMHES Bl SEHERERE
MEERTENHE UREEEERREME
BRMATETR SERIEBFRAGLEFHE
BWAMAREREMBBMNELER -



Annual Report 2016 —ZE—NFEER 65

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE - HLERERBE (E

Community Investment HERE

The Group emphasizes the support of the community and actively HREFEROELEN ST —OREG2EEG
participates in charitable activities for the relief of poverty in the FIEM M TH BHEZ=EE - il A%
communities in which we operate our businesses. For instance, 7 #§ 45 Hi R 48 2 A R ¥ 100,000 7T & By 7 A B 5T &
the Group donated RMB100,000 to help victims of the tornado EHEFE T EE R G E FEBR KT L E g2
hail disaster in Funing and Sheyang areas in Yancheng City, HXZE# -

Jiangsu Province, the PRC during the Reporting Period.
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Directors’ Report
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The Directors are pleased to present their report and the audited
financial statements of the Company and of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set
out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements. There
were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities during the year.

Business Review

A fair review of the business of the Group during the year and
particulars of important events affecting the Group that have
occurred since the end of the financial year 2016 as well as a
discussion on the Group's future business development are set out
in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report. In addition, details
of the Group's relationship with its employees, customers and
suppliers are disclosed in the section headed “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” of this annual report. The above
discussions form part of this directors’ report.

Discussions on the compliance with applicable laws and
regulations which have a significant impact on the Group, the
Group’s major risks and risk management and the Group’s
environmental policies and performance can be found in the
paragraphs below.
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Business Review (continued)

Compliance with the Applicable Laws and
Regulations which have a Significant Impact
on the Group

The Group and its activities are subject to requirements under an
array of laws, including the Tendering and Biding Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Implementation Rules of Tendering
and Biding Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Contract
Law of the People’s Republic of China and the Production Safety
Law of the People’s Republic of China, as well as other applicable
regulations, guidelines, policies and terms issued or promulgated
pursuant to or in respect of these formal laws. In addition, the
Listing Rules are also applicable to the Group. The Group is
committed to ensuring compliance with such requirements by
taking various measures using specific resources at all levels,
including internal monitoring and approval procedures, training
and supervision over different segments. The Group always
attaches paramount importance to compliance with the
requirements under applicable laws and regulations, despite the
fact that such measures involve a lot of internal resources and
incur additional operating costs.

Tendering and Biding Law of the People’s Republic of
China

According to the Tendering and Biding Law of the People’s
Republic of China and the Implementation Rules of Tendering and
Biding Law of the People’s Republic of China, when bidding for a
new project, the Group must, in accordance with the laws and
regulations, have the capacity, qualifications and conditions to
undertake the project and respond in details to substantive
requirements and conditions under the bidding document, and
must not, among others, collude with others to make a tender
offer, undermine fair competition by squeezing out other bidders,
bribe tenderee or any member of the bid evaluation committee,
make a bid at a price lower than costs, and participate in the
bidding in the event that the tenderee is interested in the Group
and thus may compromise bidding fairness. In the case of any
violation of relevant regulations by the Group as a bidder, its bid
shall be invalid and it may be punished by the tenderee or relevant
authorities.
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Business Review (continued)

Compliance with the Applicable Laws and
Regulations which have a Significant Impact
on the Group (Continued)

Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China

The Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China (“Contract
Law”) clearly stipulates, among others, qualifications of the
contract parties, contract forms, principal terms, cancellation
conditions, contract validity, constituent elements of invalid and
cancelable contracts, fulfillment of obligations, conditions for
contract alteration and transfer, termination of rights and
obligations under a contract and liability for breach of contract.

For construction contracts, the Contract Law sets out specific
requirements, including: contracts for major national construction
projects shall be entered into in accordance with state-stipulated
procedures and state-approved documents such as investment
plans and feasibility study reports; with the consent of the
contractee, the contractor can sublet part of its contracted works
to a third party, provided that construction of the main structure
of the construction project must be completed by the contractor
who is forbidden to sublet its works to an unqualified entity. After
the completion of the construction project, the contractee shall
timely conduct acceptance inspection of the project pursuant to
construction acceptance rules and quality inspection standards
issued by the state. If the project passes the acceptance inspection,
the contractee shall accept it and make the agreed payment. In
the case of the Group's failure to fulfill its contractual obligations
(either non-fulfillment or non-agreed fulfillment) as the performing
party and/or constructor, it must assume the liability for breach of
contract, including continuing to fulfill the contract, taking
remedial measures or compensating for any resulting losses. In the
case of the construction project quality falling below the agreed
level due to the constructor’s fault, the contractee has the right to
require the constructor to repair, revamp or rebuild it within a
reasonable period, without any extra charge, and to bear the
liability for breach of contract for the resulting delayed delivery (if
any).
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Business Review (Continued)

Compliance with the Applicable Laws and
Regulations which have a Significant Impact
on the Group (Continued)

Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of
China

The National People’s Committee made revisions to the Production
Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China on August 2014,
and the amendments came into force in 1 December 2014.
According to the revised Production Safety Law of the People’s
Republic of China, for the production and operating unit held
responsible, a major accident may incur a fine of up to RMB20
million in addition to typical liabilities including the required legal
compensation. To ensure compliance with the newly revised
Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Group avoids production safety incidents by providing training
courses from time to time on production safety and emergency
rescue drills to staff engaged in project design, construction,
equipment repair and maintenance, safety supervision, etc. to
ensure production safety.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

During the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to the date of
this report, the Group has complied with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group.
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Business Review (Continued)

Major Risks and Risk Management

The Board is well aware of its responsibility to maintain the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control and risk management
systems. Such systems are designed to manage risks of failed
business objectives and provide reasonable guarantee against
material misrepresentation or losses.

Business Risks

The Group’s business risk factors include changes in the overall
market conditions, downward pressure on China’s economy and
the number and progress of domestic projects in the entire
industry, which may affect the construction environment,
settlement prices and capital turnover rates of its construction
projects. The Board is responsible for overall business management
and review of major business decisions involving disclosure of
significant risks from time to time.

Financial Risks

The Group has adopted a series of financial risk management
policies to manage its liquidity risk, credit term allocation risk,
financing structure risk, interest rate risk and exchange rate risk.
The Board also reviews the Group’s management accounts, capital
structure and key operational data on a monthly basis.

Compliance Risks

The Board takes effective measures to ensure compliance of the
Company with the laws, regulations and rules. The Company has
engaged professional consultants and advisors to keep the
Company updated on the latest changes in the regulatory
including legal, financial, environmental and
operational development. The Company also imposes strict
policies to prohibit any unauthorized use or publication of
confidential information or insider information.
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Business Review (continued)

Major Risks and Risk Management (Continued)

Operational Risks

The Company has adopted effective measures to manage its
operational risks such as low equipment utilization efficiency, high
consumption of consumables and frequent production failures.

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control and risk management systems covering its business,
financial, operational and compliance risks, and is of the view that
such systems are effective.

Environmental Policies and Performance

We commit ourselves to environmental protection in all aspects of
operations. Over the years, the Group has been doing its utmost
to project the environment. The management of the Group has
implemented various measures and regulations to make sure that
we honor our responsibilities for the environment. We regularly
hold special internal meetings with professional teams to review
environmental issues at the construction sites and office areas and
exchange ideas on environmental improvement. The management
of the Group will continue its efforts in securing ongoing high
environmental standards in major areas and key links.

Results and Dividends
The Group's loss for the year ended 31 December 2016 and the
financial position of the Company and of the Group at that date

are set out in the accompanying financial statements.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2016.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Share Capital

During the Review Period, the Company issued 246,000,000
Shares pursuant to a subscription agreement dated 7 November
2016 entered into among the Company, Jiangsu Xiangyu
Environmental Protection Industry Development Ltd* (&5
IREZEZER AR AT, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and Jiangsu Baisite Environmental Engineering Co., Ltd*
(I# AETE BB T2 AR A R]) on 24 November 2016. Further
details of the issue of consideration Shares are set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 7 November 2016 and 24
November 2016.

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which
the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company
to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.
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Equity-Linked Agreements

Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into during the
year or subsisting at the end of the year are set out below:

On 24 November 2016, pursuant to the sale and purchase
agreement entered into between Jiangsu Xiangyu Environmental
Protection Industry Development Ltd* (I#MATIREELLRE
[ /A &]) (the “Purchaser”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, and Jiangsu Baisite Environmental Engineering Co.,
Ltd* (I# G ATERE IR AMRAR]) (the “Vendor”) and the
subscription agreement entered into between the Company, the
Purchaser and the Vendor both dated 7 November 2016, the
Company issued a total of 246,000,000 Shares at the issue price
of HK$0.35 per each such new Share, in the sum of
HK$86,100,000 being the consideration for the sale and purchase
of the land use rights in 2 parcels of land at Fenghuang Juweihu
Wuzu, Longgang Town, Yandu District, Yancheng City, Jiangsu
Province, the PRC * (FEIT#HE BT HEA=ERNBERRELZS
F#H), and the 10-storey office building with a total gross floor
area of approximately 12,420.24 square metres and 2 blocks of
1-storey factories with a total gross floor area of approximately
9,679.15 and 6,695 square metres, all of which are situated at
those 2 parcels of land, and the equipment and machinery located
at the factories of the said property in accordance with the Sale
and Purchase Agreement.

As for the Share Option Scheme, please refer to the section
headed “Share Option Scheme”.

Other than the above subscription agreement and the Share
Option Scheme, no equity-linked agreements were entered into
by the Company during the year or subsisting at the end of the
year ended 31 December 2016.
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Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance throughout the year, which provides
appropriate cover for the Directors and officers of Group.

Tax Relief

For the year ended 31 December 2016, Shareholders were not
entitled to any tax relief by virtue of their holding of the Shares.

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed
Securities of the Company

For the year ended 31 December 2016, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any listed
securities of the Company.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the
Group during the year are set out in the statement of financial
position of the Company on page 12 of this annual report and in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2016, the Company has no reserve available
for distribution as calculated in accordance with the Companies
Law (2001 Revision) of the Cayman Islands. Under the laws of the
Cayman Islands, the share premium account is distributable to the
Shareholders provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts as and when they fall due
in the ordinary course of business. The share premium account
may also be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

In the year under review, revenue to the Group's five largest
customers accounted for about 71% (2015: 59%) of the Group’s
total revenue for the year and the revenue from the largest
customer included therein accounted for about 18% (2015: 23%)
of the Group's total revenue.

The Group's five largest customers comprise PRC state-owned
companies and private enterprises which have business
relationships with the Group for a period ranging from one to six
years. Services provided to them by the Group include CRD
Business, and EPD and Water Management Business. Their
contracts with the Group were project-based, which provided for
either monthly progress payments with reference to the value of
work completed each month or annual payments with a fixed
percentage for each year throughout the contract period. Such
credit terms were in line with those granted to other customers of
the Group. No long-term agreements had been entered into
between the Group’s five largest customers and the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board adopted a
more prudent approach regarding the accounts receivable and
resolved to make an allowance for doubtful debts of RMB11.9
million for certain receivables (2015: allowance for doubtful debts:
RMB376.6 million). An underlying deferred tax credit of RMB2.9
million was also incurred. The allowance for doubtful debts was
based on the assessment in recoverability and the judgement by
the management after considering the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the present value of the original effective
interest rate. For details please refer to note 21 to the financial
statement in this annual report.
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Major Customers and Suppliers (Continued)

Since the Group’s major customers accounted for a significant
portion of the Group’s total revenue for the year, if in the future
the Group loses one of its major customers or if any of the
Group’s major customers significantly reduces its volume of
business with the Group while the Group is unable to get new
projects from other existing and/or potential customers, net
revenues and profitability of the Group would be heavily reduced.
Nonetheless, the Group believes that it has developed close
relationships with its major customers that they cannot easily
replace the Group with other suppliers. The Group has also
entered into contracts with and will continue to seek business
from other customers.

In the year under review, supplies from the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for about 30.1% (2015: 33%) of the Group’s
total operating cost for the year and supplies from the largest
supplier included therein accounted for about 19.8% (2015: 25%)
of the Group’s total operating cost.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and/or five
largest suppliers for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

Save for those disclosed in the paragraphs headed “Share Option
Scheme” and “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” in this Directors’ report
in this annual report, at no time during the year were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any of the Directors or
their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such
rights in any other body corporate.
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Directors

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Liu Kaijin
Mr. Wu Bin (appointed on 5 January 2017)

Mr. Wu Xuze (appointed on 5 January 2017)
Ms. Zhou Shuhua

Non-executive Director:

Mr. Liu Longhua

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Huan Xuedong

Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan

Mr. Xu Hengju (resigned on 23 September 2016)

Mr. Liang Zequan (appointed on 23 September 2016)

In accordance with article 105(A) of the Articles, Mr. Liu Kaijin and
Ms. Zhou Shuhua will retire by rotation and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

In accordance with article 109 of the Article, Mr. Wu Bin, Mr. Wu
Xuze and Mr. Liang Zequan will retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election.

Independence Confirmations from
Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors a confirmation of his/her independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of its independent non-executive Directors to be independent.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a Director’s
service contract and each of the non-executive Directors signed a
letter of appointment with the Company commencing from their
respective date of appointment. All of them are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the
Articles.

Mr. Liu Kaijin and Ms. Zhou Shuhua, both being executive
Directors, have entered into service agreements with the Company
for a term of three years commencing from 1 June 2014. Each of
them has entered into a renewal service agreement with the
Company on the same terms with immediate effect after the
expiry of the term of the original service agreement.

Both Mr. Wu Bin and Mr. Wu Xuze, all being executive Directors,
have entered into service agreements with the Company for an
initial term of one year commencing from 5 January 2017.

Mr. Liu Longhua, non-executive Director, has entered into an
appointment letter with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 25 April 2015.

Each of Mr. Huan Xuedong, Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan and
Mr. Liang Zequan, all being independent non-executive Directors,
has entered into an appointment letter with the Company for a
term of three years commencing from 25 April 2015, 30
November 2015 and 23 September 2016 respectively.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Remuneration

The Directors’ fees are subject to Shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Board with
reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance
and the results of the Group.
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Directors’ Interests in Contracts

During the year ended 31 December 2016, save for those
disclosed in the financial statements, no Director or any entity
connected with the Directors had a material interest, either directly
or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

Management Contracts

Save for the Contractual Arrangements between subsidiaries of
the Group, no contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business
of the Group were entered into or existed during the year.

Continuing Connected Transactions

According to relevant PRC laws, foreign investors are prohibited
from owning more than a 50% equity interest in any enterprise
which owns vessels for conducting dredging business. Otherwise
the Maritime Safety Administration of the PRC will not register the
ownership of a vessel to an enterprise. Our Group has decided
that Xiangyu PRC owns 50% of interest in the relevant vessels,
being the maximum percentage that a foreign investor may own
under PRC laws to register the ownership of the relevant vessels
for certain commercial reasons. In addition, our Group intends to
participate in some dredging projects which forbid any
involvement of foreign-invested companies under PRC laws. Even
in certain dredging projects which foreign-invested companies are
technically allowed to engage under PRC laws, the foreign-
invested companies find it difficult, in common practice, to secure
dredging business opportunities. Based on the above reasons, the
PRC Operational Entity has not become equity-owned by our
Company, but will be controlled by our Company through the
Contractual Arrangements.
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Continuing Connected Transactions
(Continued)

The Group carried out the following continuing connected
transactions (other than continuing connected transactions that
are exempted under Rule 14A of the Listing Rules) during the year
ended 31 December 2016:

On 19 April 2011, the following entities entered into the
Contractual Arrangements pursuant to which all economic
benefits and risks arising from the business of Jiangsu Xingyu are
transferred to Xiangyu PRC:

(i)  Xiangyu PRC, a wholly foreign-owned enterprise and a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
(i) Jiangsu Xingyu, a limited liability company established in the
PRC and deemed to be a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company under the Contractual Arrangements, and mainly
engages in CRD and EPD segments and is the largest
subsidiary of the Group in terms of operating assets owned
and construction scale, and
equity interests holders of Jiangsu Xingyu, namely Mr. Liu
and Ms. Zhou (both of them are executive Directors and
controlling shareholders of the Company).

(iii)

Jiangsu Jiaolong, a limited liability company established in the
PRC, mainly engages in the provision of marine hoisting,
installation and other engineering services. It is the provider of the
Group’s other marine business. Jiangsu Xingyu owns a 51%
equity interest in it and is its controlling shareholder.

Further details of the Contractual Arrangements are described in
note 38 to the financial statements of this annual report.

The Stock Exchange has granted a waiver pursuant to Rule
14A.105 of the Listing Rules to the Company for all transactions
under the Contractual Arrangements from strict compliance with
the applicable announcement and independent Shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The amount of revenue and assets subject to the Contractual
Arrangements accounted for 80.8% and 60.6% of the Group’s
total revenue and assets respectively for the year ended 31
December 2016 (2015: 76.8% and 58.4%).
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Continuing Connected Transactions
(Continued)

The followings are the major risks relating to the Contractual
Arrangements:

o The Group conducts its business operation in the PRC
through the PRC Operational Entity by way of the
Contractual Arrangements, but certain of the terms of the
Contractual Arrangements may not be enforceable under
PRC laws. Therefore, in the event of breach of any
agreements constituting the Contractual Arrangements by
Mr. Liu, Ms. Zhou and/or the PRC Operational Entity, and if
the Group is unable to enforce the Contractual
Arrangements, the Group may not be able to exert effective
control over the PRC Operational Entity, and the Group’s
ability to conduct its business may be negatively affected.

o If the PRC government finds that the Contractual
Arrangements or the ownership structures or business
operations of the Company or the PRC Operational Entity
do not comply with any of the PRC laws and regulations,
the Group’s business, financial condition or results of
operations could be materially and adversely affected, as
revenue in relation to the Contractual Arrangements
accounted for 80.8% of the Group's total revenue for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

o The Contractual Arrangements related to critical aspects of
the Group's operations with the PRC Operational Entity and
its shareholders which may not be as effective as direct
ownership in providing operational control. In the event that
the Group is unable to enforce these Contractual
Arrangements, the Group may be unable to exert effective
control over the PRC Operational Entity, and the Group’s
ability to conduct its business may be materially and
adversely affected.

. Shareholders of the PRC Operational Entity, Mr. Liu and Ms.
Zhou, may potentially have a conflict of interest with the
Group, and they may breach their contracts with the Group.
Such disputes and proceedings may significantly disrupt the
Group’s business operations, adversely affect its ability to
control the PRC Operational Entity and/or otherwise result in
negative publicity.
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Continuing Connected Transactions BFEBERXS @
(Continued)

The Group has adopted the following measures to ensure the 7K & 2 £LHU LA T # 3E LA HRASEEEHRS
sound and effective operation of the Group following the %) ZHE&EEA U L8
implementation of the Contractual Arrangements:

o as part of the internal control measures, major issues arising EBRNEEEIZE N —3 D EHENT T}F
from implementation of the Contractual Arrangements had FMEAMNTEMBCELERESES T
been and will be reviewed by the Board on a regular basis; T8 5

. matters relating to compliance and regulatory enquiries e BEHRETHEENKABRNEREBENEES AN
from governmental authorities had been and will be EE OREENZENeEzTele
discussed at such regular meetings or extraordinary meetings E
of the Board;

o the relevant business units and operation divisions of the e AREBNHEBEESENLLEESMPE EEM

Group reported regularly to the senior management of the ARl BREEEERERETRETEL
Company on the compliance and performance conditions ZHHEGEREMEBSESE

under the Contractual Arrangements and other related

matters;

o legal advisors and/or other professionals had been and will e EREGEFEZEAEBRE L S HMEE

continue to be retained to assist the Group to deal with AT UG AEBEREBAANLTHMELENE
specific issues arising from the Contractual Arrangements; EHEE &
and

e  the independent non-executive Directors had and will e BYFRTEETCENBSEERE DL

continue to conduct annual reviews on the Contractual HITFEEER BEREA $/\£$ W HFE AR
Arrangements to ensure that it is fair and reasonable and in EEMERENEESRENS

the best interests of the Group and its Shareholders as a

whole.

The Directors confirm that during the Review Period, the Company #Z EZR RN EEBRAAFT —E B FTHE
has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with  T4AZEE THHERFT (BB AR ER FTHEHR R
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules (save for the exemptions granted ~ Br4oN)

under the above-mentioned waiver).
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Continuing Connected Transactions
(Continued)

The independent non-executive Directors have confirmed that the
above-mentioned continuing connected transactions were entered
into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of the Group’s business;

(i) in accordance with the terms of the respective agreements
governing such transactions on terms that were fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders of the
Company as a whole; and

(iiiy  either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favorable to the Group than those available to or from
independent third parties.

Besides, the independent non-executive Directors have conducted
an annual review on the Contractual Arrangements and have
confirmed that:

(i) the transactions carried out during the year ended 31
December 2016 have been entered into in accordance with
the relevant provisions of the Contractual Arrangements and
have been operated so that all revenue generated by Jiangsu
Xingyu has been retained by Xiangyu PRC;

(i) no dividends or other distributions have been made by
Jiangsu Xingyu to its equity interest holders; and

(i) any new contracts or renewed contracts have been entered
into on the same terms as the existing Contractual
Arrangements and are fair and reasonable so far as the
Group is concerned and in the interests of the Shareholders
as a whole.

In accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board
engaged the auditor of the Company to perform procedures on
the above continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

Annual Report 2016 —ZT—XFEFHf

BFEREXRS @

BYFNTEEHRALABERERZ IR TS
BRTETAL

() EXEENEELR-—REHBES:

(i) WREREZSXZINAEHBHRER MEH
GERDBATFABYNAARRAREFNER
M &

(i) WREFBHXGERAIBRAEEMS  ZFK
KN B S 58 = 77 AT EUS SR A R

WO BIHATEFOHANRERTERL R
WM

- RNF+-_A=t—HILFEETT
HIRBEENRZEH BRI ME]
VoW —BEEETH REIHEFEED
PrEREFEATHEMA

N

(i) TEHEFHEAEBEREAFHRESE
ik &

(i) EAMEARBEHAVCRBEERBEANE
FHERANGRMEIL B ASEEMS @ &
FEROBATAE  UNABRRNEREH 2 -

RIELTRAUNE4AS6K  EZSEREBEFTER
ZREZEERFE30005 [ERNBHNBENBE
BN ZEZR I R2REBSTAASHELHD
BB HAETA05%R AR FE LR B A 15 48 B8
B 5 W BED K ] RS A A R A BAT - B Bl
SBHEXIETERER -



84

China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited FREIFABRIERER LT

Directors’ Report (Continued)

EEEHS (H)

Continuing Connected Transactions
(Continued)

The auditor of the Company has confirmed that nothing has come
to the auditor’s attention that causes them to believe that :

a.  the disclosed continuing connected transactions have not
been approved by the Board;

b.  the said transactions were not entered into in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing such transactions;
and

c.  dividends or other distributions have been made by Jiangsu
Xingyu to the holders of its equity interests.

Related Party Transactions

Details of the related party transactions are set out in note 35 to
the consolidated financial statements. None of these related party
transactions constitutes a discloseable connected transaction as
defined under the Listing Rules, except for those described in the
paragraph headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” above,
in respect of which the disclosure requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules have been complied with.
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Share Option Scheme

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Under
the Share Option Scheme, the Directors may at their discretion
grant options to (i) any Director and employees of the Company,
any of its subsidiaries or any entity in which the Group holds an
equity interest; or (i) any suppliers, customers, consultants who
provided services to the Group, shareholders of the subsidiaries of
the Group and joint venture partners to subscribe for the shares.

The offer of a grant of options must be taken up within 21 days
of the date of offer. The maximum number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
shall not exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the Company
at any point in time. The total number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue at the
time dealings in the shares first commence on the Stock Exchange.
This limit was last refreshed by the Shareholders in the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 23
October 2014 so that the maximum number of Shares which may
be issued upon the exercise of all options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 85,560,000 Shares, being
10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of passing the relevant
resolution on 23 October 2014.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted to any individual in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue on the last date of such
12-month period unless approval of the shareholders of the
Company has been obtained in accordance with the Listing Rules.
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Share Option Scheme (continued)

Options may be exercised during such period (including the
minimum period, if any, for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised) as may be determined by the Directors and
commences after a certain vesting period and ends in any event
not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the relevant
share option, subject to the provisions for early termination
thereof. Options may be granted upon payment of HK$1 as
consideration for each grant. The exercise price is equal to the
highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
guotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of the
offer of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the shares as stated
in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of the offer of
grant; and (iii) nominal value of the shares. The Directors consider
the Share Option Scheme, with its broadened basis of
participation, will enable the Group to reward the employees, the
Directors and other selected participants for their contributions to
the Group. The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a
period of 10 years from the date of adoption and will expire on 23
May 2021.

No option was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the
year 31 December 2016. As at 31 December 2016, there was no
outstanding share option. The total number of Shares available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme was 85,560,000,
representing approximately 5.79% of the issued Shares as at the
date of this annual report.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests
and Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares

As at 31 December 2016, the Directors and the Company’s chief
executive, and their respective associates had the following
interests in the Shares in and underlying shares of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which they are
taken or deemed to have been taken under such provisions of the
SFO) or pursuant to the Model Code, or were required to be
entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant to section
352 of the SFO:

Annual Report 2016 —ZT—XFEFHf

FTETHRAERKSG KME

RZE—RF+ZA=+—B EFRKARAE
ZTRABRBESENBEARAARREM
BOXE(EE REHRHEGRDIFEXVERD) 87 &
HEROS  HEREZEHFLHEGRMIEXVESE
TER8DH(BERBERBESFRMERINZE
X EEHR IR NORR) RIRBIRE
STAAMEARARRRBRN  AREBEESMHPE
RPIFE3521KALHER AR B MFENE MR
manh

Interests in the Company REQXTWER
Long position
"R
Approximate
percentage of
Number of  total number of
Name of Director Capacity Notes ordinary Shares Shares
i 1R 19 48 B
ESpE v} Kt &t EBERYAE BHEIL
Mr. Liu Kaijin Interest in controlled corporation 1 351,600,000 23.79%
21 A #E £ A& REE LB =
Beneficial owner 36,703,000 2.48%
ExEBA
Ms. Zhou Shuhua Interest in spouse 2 388,303,000 26.27%
JERE &+ i (5 7 &
Mr. Wu Bin Beneficial owner 7,218,000 0.49%
R £ EnEBA
Mr. Wu Xuze Interest in spouse 28,242,000 1.91%
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests
and Short Positions in Shares and

Underlying Shares (continued)

Interests in the Company (Continued)

Notes:

1. Mr. Liu is the sole beneficial owner of Wangji Limited (“Wangji”), a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability,
which is the direct owner of 351,600,000 Shares. Further, Mr. Liu is the
beneficial owner of 36,703,000 Shares.

2. Ms. Zhou is the spouse of Mr. Liu who is also a Director. By virtue of the
SFO, Ms. Zhou is deemed to be interested in all interests of Mr. Liu in
the Company including long position and short position.

Interests in associated corporations

Name of associated

RAQXTHESR @&
1. et asEEERAA(HE] — MR EBRE LB
EFMERIOBREAR N —BESEA A MEE

/351,600,000 R EZEB A Lo BlEE R
36,703,000 KRN EZHEA A ©

2. AZREIRBEENER BAR—REF - REFEFS
RHIEHD ALt HRBE/NBLEEFENMBELAR
AEm(BRERRAR) M ERER -

R EE NS
Long position

wr

Approximate
percentage of
total number of

Name of Director  corporation Capacity Notes Share capital shareholding
R ER B
E=nR HEEEEE & % it &t R 7 BMOBD
Mr. Liu Kaijin Wangji Beneficial owner 1 200 ordinary shares 100%
215 T & £ BEHEAA 200 i & 38 A%
Jiangsu Xingyu Beneficial owner 1 Register capital of 100%
RMB39,315,800
TEEF ERERA & A
AR #39,315,8007T
Ms. Zhou Shuhua Wangji Interest in spouse 2 200 ordinary shares 100%
R+ AE E il B 2 200 i & 78 X
Jiangsu Xingyu Interest in spouse 2 Register capital of 100%
RMB39,315,800
oL R B o B & A

AR #39,315,8007T
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests
and Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares (continued)

Interests in associated corporations (Continued)

Notes:

1. Mr. Liu is the sole beneficial owner of the entire registered capital of
Jiangsu Xingyu. Mr. Liu and Ms. Zhou are registered holders of 98.47%
and 1.53% in the registered capital in Jiangsu Xingyu respectively. The
1.53% interest in the registered capital of Jiangsu Xingyu were held on
trust by Ms. Zhou for Mr. Liu pursuant to a shareholding confirmation
dated 12 July 2010.

2. Ms. Zhou is the spouse of Mr. Liu who is also a Director. By virtue of the
SFO, Ms. Zhou is deemed to be interested in all interests of Mr. Liu in
the associated corporations including long positions and short position.

Saved as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company or any of their associates had any
interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any associated corporation as at
31 December 2016 (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO),
which had been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which the Directors or chief executive
of the Company were deemed or taken to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares and Underlying
Shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2016, to the best of the knowledge and belief
of the Directors, other than those set out in the section headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in
Shares and Underlying Shares” in this annual report, persons had
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of
the SFO were as follows:

N\

P44

%Bﬁiﬁézﬁaﬁlﬂ{iﬁ&*ﬁ%ﬂﬁ

x
DHRNERERAR

g
3

R-ZE—RNF+_A=+—8 REBFONE
F BRAFRIEERETETHRABRBRG XMEHE
Rtz kAR | —EpTE SN - RIBEH R H
EIEPIE336 1K BFEMNELMPALHENR AR
AR EERD T EBREEFRBEKRE
XVEBE2R3INEAMARAIEENEZIAE 2
AT

Long positions in Shares BoHE
Substantial Shareholders FERE
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name Capacity Notes Shares holding
=8 514 Kt it BGOEE HMARETDL
Wangji Beneficial owner 351,600,000 23.79%
AE A EnlEA A
RABERMEHBERAF Beneficial Owner 171,120,000 11.58%
EnEEA
Luck Morgan Investment Limited ~ Nominee 1 246,000,000 16.64%
REA
Jiangsu Baisite Environment Beneficial Owner 246,000,000 16.64%
Engineering Co., Ltd*
AIHBHEREIEBRAR BB A
Note: btat -
1 Luck Morgan Investment Limited acts as nominee for Jiangsu Baisite 1 Luck Morgan Investment Limited JA jT &k & &7 55 38 5 T 72

Environment Engineering Co. Ltd to hold 246,000,000 Shares.

BRARMIESAAF 7 H 246,000,000 1% % 15 °
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Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee

Details of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and

Nomination Committee are set out in section headed “Corporate
Governance Report” of this annual report.

Sufficiency of Public Float
As at the date of this annual report, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules based on the

information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors of the Company.

Event after end of Reporting Period

For details, please refer to the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report.

Auditor

CWC CPA Limited was appointed as auditor of the Company in
place of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu with effect from 26 November
2015.

CWC CPA Limited will retire and a resolution for their re-

appointment as auditor of the Company will be submitted at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Liu Kaijin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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W

Certified Public
Accountants (Practising)

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHINA DREDGING ENVIRONMENT
PROTECTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out
on pages 99 to 212, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2016, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Material Uncertainty Related to Going
Concern

We draw attention to Note 2 in the consolidated financial
statements, which describes the circumstances surrounding the
failure by the Group to settle the convertible bonds when the
bonds fell due for repayment on their maturity date. Furthermore,
the Group has net current liabilities of approximately RMB56.7
million. As stated in Note 2, these events or conditions, along with
other matters as set forth in Note 2, indicate that a material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified
in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. In addition to the matter described in the Material
Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit
matters to be communicated in our report.

HEFAKERBCERTREN

EERE HTEIGAMBRERMIE2 B
RAER EXRERERNEFINBREBINHERE
BAMRER BRI EXEEESRPE
BRERENARES67TAE T - WM FE2M - %%
EMSARN  BRME2AEEMER BRFE
BEATHEMEHEY BEEEIBELEENE
REARM FE2ERTERZETEELER -

ok

FRREFTEE

MREBAFTESREATHERHALE RN
HEG AN BBRRNBABR/SEENFTH - &L F
FERATTENERGAVBRRNEAERE
BE MATT@HZEEREHBINER
BREBSESERBZERATHREE Sl ERE
S BEEEEE TXMMEERBEEMRER T
W BARESZER



94 China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited FREIFABRIERER LT

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

B2 BE R E ()

Key audit matter
BRESER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ERESFNMEERARETER

Valuation of Accounts Receivables

FEW K IEAL(E

We identified the valuation of trade receivables as a key
audit matter. The Group’s accounts receivables mainly
arise from dredging, water management and marine
related businesses. As at 31 December 2016, the
accounts receivable which were past due but not
impaired amounted to HK$1,024 million, which
represented approximately 26.7% of total assets. If
insufficient provision were made on accounts receivables
of which their recoverable amount were lower than their
carrying value at the end of the reporting period, the
Group's reported profit would materially affected. The
estimation of recoverable amounts of these account
receivables involved exercise of significant judgement by
management and high degree of estimation uncertainty.
BMEERKURBEESSERETEEH E5E
WEKWREFEREME KEEEIBBAEEE
H-RZE—A"F+ZA=+—H8 2@HEXRA
B2 FE W 5X78 A 1,024,000,000 7 7+ #9(h 42 & E H
267% ° MR HERRAYE S HERELEEE
WESREFESRERGTIRE  EXENEREN
ARERIRATE - ZFRWFIER A U0 ¢ F
5T KB IR B 1T & R H T DA BOR B R Y il 5t A 1
JEME ©

Accordingly, we identified valuation of accounts

receivables as a key audit matter.
Fit - M EEFEGERSARETEE-

Our procedures in relation to valuation of account
receivables included:

BHEBRUREGBENREFEE:

° obtained and reviewed the Group’s accounts receivable
ageing analysis;
BiEEwst BS5EEKFIAREK DT

° enquired with the management for any impairment
indication (e.g. any changes in collectability or
creditworthiness of debtors) noted on specific debts;
HERNERBEBNEARETR (NEBH AR
WEMsERNEMES) MERBIELEN

° challenged management’s views about the
collectability or creditworthiness of each material
debtors and sought corroborating evidence to support
the explanations whenever possible;
EREEBANSEREBAZ AT KRE M HEE
ZBAEWEFRIER T SREY BT ALE R
2

o obtained the repayment commitments from customer;
and
WEPEIGEREAR &

° reviewed the subsequent settlement of the Group’s
accounts receivables.

e BESERUKENHEREERBR -
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those
Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

B ZBE R E ()

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

e HEETRAFELKZSHEMRMNEZMHAEL
o URBMEDRMNETEE BEES
FEEFHABAAMNERTHETE K
MAegRY BERENKELEENELE
BEARE - WMATRRFEEATHEE L
AN BZERBMRETRFEREIER
EHMBHRRTPNEBERE - BREAEONE
TR AMEATARTHER KRITWER I E
REEZBEREB LARFHETRE -
A RERFRIBAATEER EKET

EREEEXK-

o HMARAEMBHBRNERBIHAIA BER
AR (BRERB)FREUARGEAUBRERES
RFRBEEAZZNER-

e H BEXEEAERBAXBLIDNUBKEH
ERAREENTNRE UREEAME
BEREXRBER -ATTEE BEXEZFFTNA
M- EERWIT ATREBFBERAERH
BfE-

ATEAREEBRBANGIEERKEUARE
AREAERS HPFEBRATESRATRHEMNEA
MEFNERNERATREZE

AINFEEERRER  RAXTENE A H
BYUMOEBAEXBRER YEFFEBAE
AENAREFENTELENAABEREAM
SHENEREERNBER THEBENG &8R-
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

B M % BLAD R & ()

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

CWC CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)

Wong On Yee
Practising Certificate Number: P05485

Hong Kong
29 March 2017

WEREERBNEED  NIEEZSFHAH
MRV BEREANENISREENETE AME
REAREFER ATTERBMBRETHEZS
EE BRIFEARIBROAIAHTLAFAREZSF

R HEBBRFEENBRLT  GEBBHRMHENATT
ZEETERARFHEKNNAEEBRRBBELN
NRBEMaE - AIRITRENEEREPEAZEER -

RESHMEXFAARLQA

B2 E AT
EZH
HEFZEERI - P05485
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

REREREMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 i 2 = F— "F+_A=+—HIEFE

2016 2015
—F-RF —T-HF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B &t AR® T ARET T
Revenue B A 6 667,154 700,996
Operating cost B KA (434,042) (474,318)
Gross profit E 7 233,112 226,678
Other income E At g A 7 24,854 38,042
Other gains and losses, net Hi Wz & B8 % 58 8 (5,999) (396,572)
Marketing and promotion expenses MGHEEBEREBERAE (11,073) (8,633)
Administrative expenses THRAXZ (48,722) (41,261)
Finance costs B & Bk AN 9 (69,952) (55,587)
Profit (loss) before tax b B A A (B 18) 122,220 (237,333)
Income tax (expense) credit Frisat (FAX)E % 10 (46,970) 46,822
Profit (loss) and total comprehensive FRHEA(ER) NEE
income (expense) for the year Wz () &zs 11 75,250 (190,511)
Profit (loss) and total comprehensive TF) A = FE 15 E 7 F
income (expense) for the year (B548) & &2 m U 25 (FF
attributable to: ) HREE
Owners of the Company IN/NEETE7 = IN 68,794 (197,864)
Non-controlling interests JE I AR R 25 6,456 7,353
75,250 (190,511)
Earnings (loss) per share BRAF (EBR) 13
— basic (RMB) —EX(ARE®ETT) 0.055 (0.19)
— diluted (RMB) —#FH(ARET) 0.055 (0.19)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR IR

At 31 December 2016 A —Z—XF+_A=+—H

2016 2015
—E-XEF —E—RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
iEz3 AR T ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - B MR E 15 1,639,358 1,658,604
Prepaid land lease payments FEAS £ R A9 3K 16 105,210 100,773
Investment properties KEME 17 413,194 —
Investment properties under construction 7£#Z % & ¥ % 17 — 307,702
Goodwill Ba 201 2,956
Available-for-sale investment Al HEEE 18 — 20,921
Deposit paid for acquisition of property, B {TUHEM% « BE &
plant and equipment RENES 19 85,642 79,377
Deferred tax assets EIETIRE E 20 103,323 100,354
Other intangible assets HEhEREE 4,750 —
Accounts and other receivables due —F 1% 2 EA A pE AR 3R %
after one year H th & Wk 21 89,887 206,442
Pledged bank deposits EHIFRITER — 15,000
2,441,565 2,492,129
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Prepaid land lease payments FEAF £ 0 R A9 =X 16 3,075 2,908
Accounts and other receivables and JFE LAt B R K L At FE Lk 3R
prepayments VONSEENE=N 21 1,336,508 1,180,985
Pledged bank deposits BEEFIRITER 22 15,000 47,572
Bank balances and cash WITHB AR E 22 34,500 153,569
1,389,083 1,385,034
CURRENT LIABILITIES nREBEME
Accounts and other payables JFE 15 BR 3% K2 E b JE £~ 3R 23 485,146 497,670
Amounts due to directors FENESEHIA 24 28,480 19,098
Amounts due to non-controlling FES — BB A R IEIE A
interests of a subsidiary ISR IE 25 2,476 1,644
Tax payable J& 1 B IR 130,548 112,827
Bank borrowings RITEE 26 485,215 716,405
Other borrowings Hiptg § 27 67,538 495
Bonds payable B &5 28 246,381 —
Convertible bonds A R B % 28 — 246,510
Derivative financial liabilities embedded % A ] #2 B% & 5 #9467 4
in convertible bonds SRLAE 28 — 7,030
1,445,784 1,601,679
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEEFE (56,701) (216,645)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BREERRBEE
LIABILITIES 2,384,864 2,275,484
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

e MR R (8)

At 31 December 2016 A —Z— X XF+_A=+—H

2016 2015
—E-RF —E—hF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B &t AR® T ARET T
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRFEE
Share capital & 7 29 123,483 102,045
Reserves EE 1,985,883 1,863,236
Equity attributable to owners of the RNATFE AEGREZ
Company 2,109,366 1,965,281
Non-controlling interests JEIZE R e = 160,136 158,136
TOTAL EQUITY ERAE 2,269,502 2,123,417
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FEREBEE
Amounts due to non-controlling B — B A R JEZE AR
interests of a subsidiary SR RIE 25 67,611 85,533
Deferred tax liabilities REBIEA G 20 14,367 16,046
Bank borrowings RITEE 26 — 18,195
Other borrowings HiEE 27 33,384 32,293
115,362 152,067
2,384,864 2,275,484
The consolidated financial statements on pages 99 to 212 were HREBOE2NE2HFEMBRERENR_Z
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 —tF=ZA-t+NhBEEEo & REET
March 2017 and are signed on its behalf by: EoWHMNMATREEE:
LIU KAUIN ZHOU SHUHUA
ZIp & JE N EE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

EF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REERgEXR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 i 2 = F— "F+_A=+—HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

EQR A AER
PRC Non-
Share Share  statutory Other  Retained controlling
Capital  premium reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
HEEE FER
BE  RORE wE  HittRE SRR ot £ @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARBTR ARETT ARBTR ARETT AR®TR ARETR
(note i) (note i)
(Fizti) (Hretii)
At 1 January 2015 R-E-R%—F—H 71,592 520,567 19,658 204,554 967,761 1,784,132 150,783 1,934,915
Placing of shares W 1n B & (fzE29)
(Note 29) 30,453 348,560 — — — 379,013 — 379,013
(Loss) profit and total FR(ER)EFREA
comprehensive (expense) (AX) b @
income for the year — — — — (197,864) (197,864) 7,353 (190,511)
At 31 December 2015 R-_Z—h&E
+-A=+—8H 102,045 869,127 19,658 204,554 769,897 1,965,281 158,136 2,123,417
Placing of shares BRADE & (H2E29)
(Note 29) 21,438 53,853 — — — 75,291 — 75,291
Profit and total comprehensive 4 R A1l & % T Wi 2%
income for the year B — — — — 68,794 68,794 6,456 75,250
Dividend paid to non-controlling % i F JE #2 AL #E 25 &Y
interest BB — — — — — — (4,456 ) (4,456)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF
+ZA=+—-H 123,483 922,980 19,658 204,554 838,691 2,109,366 160,136 2,269,502
Notes: Bt -

(ii)

According to the rules and regulations in the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC"), a portion of the profit after taxation of the Company’s PRC
subsidiaries is required to be transferred to a PRC statutory reserve
before distribution of a dividend to their equity owners. The transfer can
cease when the balance of the reserve reaches 50% of the registered
capital of the respective subsidiaries. The reserve can be applied either to
set off accumulated losses or to increase capital.

The other reserve of the Group represents the difference between the
nominal amount of the share capital issued by the Company in exchange
for the nominal amount of the share capital and share premium of its
subsidiaries and the paid-in capital of RMB39,316,000 of the PRC
Operational Entity (as defined in Note 38) pursuant to the group
reorganisation in 2011.

(i)

BEFEARIMBE(HEDORBEER  KAA
MPERBRRABBIBRRRENEAERAE A
DIKBEBZMBREETEEAERG ERBERES
RPN B A B REM 8 AR A950% i AT 4R IF B - %R
ARREERFERIIENER -

AEENHEMEBEARRDBIIEIEBRA®EEMETT
ZHRARERA T ——FEESHEAMEEAZHENB
RalEhaBE(REPRL2ERB(EERME38)H
EHERARY39,316,0007T) EZ =58 -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

REBREREBR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 i 2 = F— "F+_A=+—HIEFE

2016 2015
—F-RF —TRF
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
Bt et ARB TR ARETFT

OPERATING ACTIVITIES REER
Profit (loss) before tax B %% A ) (B 48) 122,220 (237,333)

Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and

RTNHZEFE
ME - BERRBITE

equipment 99,982 100,374
Fair value changes of derivative AR B ESITE
financial liabilities embedded in ERBGEZATE

convertible bonds b=k9) (7,030) (7,921)
Fair value gain in relation to warrants BERKERZ 2 ANFE

g 2% — (2,242)
Allowance for doubtful debts RO 11,877 376,641
Amortisation of intangible assets A R 250 -
Amortisation of prepaid land lease Y8 5 £ 3 FH 40 2R £

payments 2,806 2,671
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RNEB A A W (24,250) —
Gain on disposal of property, plant EEWE MELRE

and equipment W g — (87)

Sums waived by holders of the bonds &5 H A ZF % F A (13,781) —

Finance costs EE=D N 69,952 55,587

Interest income A E WA (15,329) (25,085)

Unrealized exchange loss REIRE NS 39,183 30,204
Operating cash flows before movements 48 & 4 & & p] L EH &

in working capital M= 285,880 292,809
Increase in accounts and other JFE Uiz BR TR Ke EL Ath 8 U 5k

receivables bl (138,840) (335,676)
(Decrease) increase in accounts and & 15 BR 3k Kz EL At FE P X

other payables (R 2) 12 0 (7.673) 28,181
Cash generated from (used in) LEMB(FTRA)NE 2

operations 139,367 (14,686)
PRC income tax paid B RBFTE (33,897) (46,339)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) RETBHRE (FTA)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES RE&FH 105,470 (61,025)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

GERTRER(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 i 2 = F— "F+_A=+—HIEFE

2016 2015
—E—XKE —E—RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt it ARB TR ARETFT

INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETH
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE BEREE

equipment (12,997) (8,240)
Additions to investment properties under 3 & £ &2 1% & 1) %

construction — (215,229)
Deposit paid for acquisition property, MU EY X - BE MEE

plant and equipment ALk & (6,265) (72,736)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME  WE NMEE

plant and equipment Fr 1§ 78 — 486
Settlement of other payables in relation X {f@EFFEREE

to purchase of property, plant and ME HENMFZEZ

equipment in prior year H i FE TR (12,779) (49,452)
Settlement of other payables in relation  E2 3% & %) 3£ 48 4 A9 H 1th

to additions of investment properties P& R B9 45 (51,187) —
Purchase of leasehold land BEHEE T — (8,693)
Consideration received from Hongji BB RERZERE

Construction 18 70,774 15,000
Repayment from shareholders’ loan to & & 2t F W 1B AU A% &R

Yongheng B® 18 14,804 —
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits 2 BY 2 3K # R 1717 X 47,572 57,966
Placement of pledged bank deposits FEABEBRITER — (99,744)
Purchase of available-for-sale investment 8% & A it 5 €& & 18 (6,000) —
Proceed from disposal of available-for-  H & 7] it H &R & 15

sale investment A 18 26,921 —
Disposal of a subsidiary & — K E A A (8) —
Interest received 2 F S 547 6.376
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) BREZTHREB(FTA)RE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES HEE 71,382 (374,266)
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mERERER(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 i 2 = F— "F+_A=+—HIEFE
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
Notes —NE —ET—RHF
Bt et ARB TR ARETFT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES mEEE
New bank borrowings raised MIGRITEE 605,680 655,546
Net proceeds from issue of shares REBETRG ZMSKIE
FE 29 — 379,013
Advance from independent third parties & B Y& 5 = 5 H) g 2
A=) — 258,350
Advance from a director KE—BEEMRTHIE 9,382 20,711
New other borrowings raised i E Mg E 67,043 1,724
Advance from non-controlling interests 2 &5 — & [ B 2 &) 89 3F
of a subsidiary 7 IR 2 A X2 FRIE — 300
Repayment of bank borrowings EEiRTEE (877,544) (568,545)
Repayment to independent third parties {8 & ¥ 37 55 = J7 718 — (258,350)
Repayment to directors BE—RESFIE — (4,446)
Interest paid B F 8 (45,575) (46,445)
Repayment of bonds BEE %‘% (34,453) —
Repayment of other borrowings BEEMEE (2,533) (3,237)
Repayment to non-controlling interests @] — & B /& 2 &) B9 FE 252 f%
of a subsidiary T EIEKIA (17,921) (4,100)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM METH (A MBRE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES FE (295,921) 430,521
NET DECREASE IN CASHAND CASH RERBELZEYMRD
EQUIVALENTS FE (119,069) (4,770)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT SiMBEESRRALEEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 153,569 158,339
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT S AHEERESE
END OF THE YEAR, EEY
represented by bank balances and BRITESRRIR®
cash 34,500 153,569
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M WRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 i 2 = F— "F+_A=+—HIEFE

General

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law of Cayman
Islands and its shares (“Shares”) are listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The Company’s immediate and ultimate
holding company is Wangji Limited, a limited company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, which is ultimately
and wholly owned by Mr. Liu Kaijin (“Mr. Liu”), who is the
Executive Director and Chairman of the Company. The
Company’s registered office is located at Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands and its place of business in Hong Kong is
located at Office 19, 36th Floor, China Merchants Tower,
Shun Tak Centre, Nos. 168-200 Connaught Road Central,
Hong Kong.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and
the particulars of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 38 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

Going Concern Basis of Consolidated
Financial Statements

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group had
not settled the convertible bonds (the “Bonds”, see Note 28)
when the Bonds fell due for repayment on their maturity
date. The Bonds remained overdue for repayment as at the
end of the reporting period. Subsequent to the end of the
reporting period, on 21 March 2017, the Company and CITIC
Capital China Access Fund Limited (the “Bondholder”)
entered into a second amendment agreement and
supplemental deed to the deed poll dated 8 November 2013
in relation to the Bonds (“Second Amendment Agreement”)
to further amend the terms of the original convertible bond
instrument and the original bond conditions (both as
amended on 15 December 2016 by a standstill and
amendment agreement and supplemental deed to the deed
poll dated 8 November 2013 (“Amendment Agreement”))
provided that the Company has fulfilled its undertakings
under the Second Amendment Agreement.

—REHR

ARARIRERESFERAAETIMA L AR
BHEBRAG HEROURNDREABS
REGFAERAR(EBAZM]) ER LM K
ANAMBEERSREKERAFAEIEERA
Al —HIRAEBEZHESHEMAN IO ERA
Al HBARFRRITESR I FRAMELE
([BIEE]D) &R RE2ERE - ARARK M
¥ = & (L 7 Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands * R A BB L XU REE THE
F1168-2005% 51 LB E B AE36Z19% -

ARRR—HREEZERRAT  ENE QR
HBANGEAM B RRM I8 -

RAEVBHREMARBTARBD (AR
RAEWEE®) 25 -

REMBBRRZEAKEREE

HE - ZTZ—XAF+_-_A=+—HIFE XK
EEREHEDHAT REETRRES
(TME(] 22 WeE28) - RBEHX EF
TEBBER - RAREHRzE RZE
—tF=A=+—8  AQFEHECTC Capital
China Access Fund Limited ([{E 58 A1) &I 3L
EHRESFNE-NE HERARAT —
=F+—A\HNRFEZEH ALK (HE
ZERI Rl NE—FEBTRATBRKE
FNEBERREFKE(MEAR T —RF
+_A+RAKEEERRE HEARA
A =F+—-—F\HNREFELEH
(BT HE]D) MR BIIREARAQ A
EETEREZGB HEE AR -

m|
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B S R Y A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 i 2 = F— "F+_A=+—HIEFE

2. Going Concern Basis of Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

Under the Second Amendment Agreement, the parties
agreed to, among others, the following major amendments
to the terms set out in the original convertible bond
instrument and original bond conditions:

—  the principal amount of the Bonds shall be further
amended to HK$274,434,702 (“Second Reduced
Redemption Amount”);

—  the maturity date of the Bonds shall be extended to
21 September 2017 (the “Extended Maturity Date");

—  the Second Reduced Redemption Amount shall carry
interest at the following rates:

From 25 March 2017 and up to 21 June 2017 (both
dates inclusive): 13%;

From 22 June 2017 and up to 21 September 2017 (both
dates inclusive): 18%;

— pay to the Bondholder, in cash and in immediately
available funds, a sum of not less than HK$15,533,000
on or before 24 March 2017; and

— on or before 21 April 2017, the Company shall pay to
the Bondholder, in cash and in immediately available
funds, a sum of not less than HK$62,132,000.

Furthermore, as at 31 December 2016, the Group has net
current liabilities of approximately RMB56.7 million.

2.

REMBRRZEHEALCERE
()
RIBE—GETHE THHIRE(EFE

B)ATEBRAIBBRESXERRERESR K
2 X BB

it 5

—E-RNEFEENASBE—SEL
B274,434702 B L ([ & E KR E
®1):

BEZNIMAERE_T—tF A
AZ+—HA(KERIEE D :

REZRRPBEERA TR RS

H-_ZE—+tF=A-_+HBE_Z—
tEXA-+—B(BEEEMX):
13%

-2 +tFAA-+-_BE_Z—
+tFEFALA-t+—H(EEEEMX):
18% :

W:; +tF=ZA-+WHxKZH &
NBENRE KRR ESRES
#HH A D H15,533,00008 7T 5 K&

%*%ftimﬂ*+faizm PN
ANBIZBEUNR SRR E®RBES
BHAEAXMTDR62,132,0007% 7T °

RZB-XRFE+-A=+—H &%

BErnEaEFELN s ARES56700,0007T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B S R B EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 i 2 = F— "F+_A=+—HIEFE

Going Concern Basis of Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

The conditions described above indicate the existence of a
material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the
Group'’s ability to continue as a going concern and hence,
its ability to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the
normal course of business. Nevertheless, the consolidated
financial statements were prepared based on the assumption
that the Group can be operated as a going concern and the
Directors are of the view that the Group will have sufficient
working capital to finance its operations in the next twelve
months from 31 December 2016, after taking into
consideration of the following:

(1)  The Group continues to generate cash inflows from its
operating activities by implementing measures to
tighten cost controls over various operating expenses
in order to improve its cash flows position and to
generate greater positive cash inflows from its
operations in the future;

(2)  Since most of the bank borrowings as at 31 December
2016 were secured by the Group's assets and highly
probable that they can be renewed in the next twelve
months;

(3) As at 31 December 2016, the Group has unutilised
banking facilities of RMB133.1 million which will be
available for use by the Group in the next twelve
months; and

(4)  The Group is actively negotiating with the banks to
seek for renewal of the outstanding bank borrowings.
Subsequent to reporting date, the Group has
successfully obtained written confirmation from a new
bank, which confirmed to provide banking facilities up
to RMB350 million in the next two years.

On the basis of the above consideration, the Directors
believe that the Group can satisfy its financial obligations in
the foreseeable future and accordingly, the consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis.

2.

REMBRRZEFEACEEREE
(40

EXFA AR B R FEEANTHARE - A
RUASEEBRSBREEEZRNRA
BHER-—REBRETEREEEREER
BEZRNELEERARB - A REET
FIRIER - ARA M BMR I ANE B A AR
BREZBRMER REZRRAKEER
RAEERETERNAB _ZE—XR"F+_A=+
—HBFARRTZEAZEERT :

() AEBEEBERBEBRREHRELE
X ZRAERI B EEREEEE
XBzReRE WKMASHEBRAS
MEMRNREEEANLERESRA

2 HRR-_TE-—ARF+-_A=+—-HZ
RO RITEERAEBEEERR
AR+ —EAREERN AT EEBR A

B) AEBRZ-ZZE-—AR"F+_A=+—H
ZHEHABEARITREBEARBARKE
133,100,000 7T (5 7R 2K + = & A # 7] {#t
FA): &

(4) AN B IEFE R IR 17 5 7 LA = ok 4B B
MWAREERITER  RAFEDHR
% AEBERNIK —HEFRTERESE
HMERE  BMRARRWFRERITE
B A R # 350,000,000 7T °

RELEREZ EFTHEAKERATERLR
KA ENEMBEL BltiEa P B®RERTD
B ERERY -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR M A (E

For the year ended 31 December 2016 i 2 = F— "F+_A=+—HIEFE

3. Application of New and Amendments 3. EAHIT R BT =2 F B 8
to Hong Kong Financial Reporting BHREEZEN(BE BN BREE
Standards (“HKFRSs") a1])

The Group has for the first time applied the following RNREBRAFEEEREA T HREESETED
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute rE((EESHMAG)) MM 2 E BT B®
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") in the current HHER Z(EFT AN ¢
year:
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for acquisitions of E A RS AL RSB ER Y
interest in joint operations FNHEUBETA) B2 R
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure initiative BB ERFEI5R WEEHE
(B3] A)
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of acceptable BAEETERFE 165 BETMERBEZA
and HKAS 38 methods of depreciation and &S 5%
amortisation #3855 (1857 A&)
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer plants EREGHENFEI6H BE  EEHEY
and HKAS 41 NEEGFER
F415 (BFTAR)
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment entities: Applying EBUKHREED RESE - FEHEAE
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 the consolidation exception F109 - BAEME ABROGIINMER
WEEUNE 127K
BAE G LR
8285 (IBFT )
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to BB KHEED BFAEUBHRESELR
HKFRSs 2012-2014 cycle ({BET ) —E-—FF
—E-NFEHRZ
FEE
The application of these amendments to HKFRSs in the MNAFERAZEEEVBEHREER Z(EF]
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s AREARERRAEFERNBEAFEENMBREL
financial performance and positions for the current and prior RAN MM ELRE P BRRATE 2 5= I E
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated EFRIEARTE -

financial statements.
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3. Application of New and Amendments
to Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective:
HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 7

Amendments to HKAS 12

2018.

2019.

determined.

2017.

Financial instrument’

Revenue from contracts with
customers and the related
amendments’

Leases’

Classification and
measurement of share-based
payment transactions'

Apply HKFRS 9 “Financial
instruments” with HKFRS 4
“Insurance contracts”?

Sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its
associate or joint venture?

Disclosure initiative®

Recognition of deferred tax
assets for unrealised losses*

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
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3. Application of New and Amendments
to Hong Kong Financial Reporting

Standards (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities,
general hedge accounting and impairment requirement for

financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9:

all recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement” are required to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets, and that have contractual terms that give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are generally measured at
FVTOCI. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair value at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to
present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.
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Application of New and Amendments
to Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (continued)

. in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The
expected credit loss model requires an entity to
account for expected credit losses and changes in
those expected credit losses at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In
other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit
event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.

Based on the Group’s existing business model and financial
statements as at 31 December 2016, the application of
HKFRS 9 in the future may affect the classification of the
Group's financial assets equity investment and may result in
early recognition of credit loss based on expected loss model
in relation to the Group’s financial assets measured at
amortised costs. In the opinion of Directors, it is not practical
to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a detail
review has been completed.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with
customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15
will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction
contracts” and the related Interpretations when it becomes
effective.

EHHAREET 2EEBY
%%JJ*SE%%,\U(FE‘}%J?%%%%
1) a0

BMBERELENFIRZEER
€ )

PREMEECREMNS  BHEEGE
AFEFETREELGFEEBEER
FEAR BEAEMB RS EAFEIRR
ERBHNEEBEEAGE - RHEE
EEEASATEENEREAHKE
HEEERLAZEENEEREZE
AR - AR EE B B 156 7R A
Kz -5z BABRFELEREE
EHTHREERE-

BEAKBER _Z-—R"F+_A=+—HZ
RERFERARYBRER BREKFTEY
BREENFIR AT EAEB 2SR
BEHERBRRENSE AXRSEHRE
BEBHEKAGENAEESREEMABZE
HEARARFHRACGEER EERA
BEERAFAER R BERZFEZAE
EETL A AT o

BRMB®RSE
CR AL &

EREMBHELENFISHFEEEM - EFIE
—RE-—z2ERARERBRERLEEFE
MEEZBBEARR REBM G REER
SEASSR AL - IR R 2 W iR
5l BRASGEE 1SR IKE] - BE
S EMENRIZE/RDIREERE -

i

RIS RETF



Annual Report 2016 —ZT—<EER 113

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B S R Y A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 i 2 = F— "F+_A=+—HIEFE

Application of New and Amendments
to Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with
customers (Continued)

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the
Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

. Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures
are required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in
relation to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing
application guidance.
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Application of New and Amendments
to Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with
customers (Continued)

The Directors anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 in
the future may have a material impact on the amounts
reported and disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements. However, it is not practicable to
provide a reasonable estimate of the effects of HKFRS 15
until the Group performs a detailed review.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of other
new and revised HKFRSs will have a material impact on the
results and financial position of the Group.

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CQO").

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for leasing transactions that are within
the scope of HKAS 17.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

J Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities (including
structured entities) controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved where the Company:

. has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary. Specifically, income and
expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income from the date when
the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to have control over the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less any accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, which represent the lowest
level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly
in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill
is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances in
the normal cause of business, net of sales related taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria
have been met for each of the Group’s activities, as
described below.

Service income is recognised when services are provided in
the normal course of business, net of sales related taxes.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

The Group's accounting policy for recognition of revenue
from operating leases is described in the accounting policy
for leasing below.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings and
leasehold land (classified as finance leases) held for use in
the production or supply of service or administrative
purposes (other than construction in progress as described
below) are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets (other than properties under construction) less their
residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for or a prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Buildings under development for future
owner-occupied purpose

When buildings are in the course of development for
production or for administrative purposes, the amortisation
of prepaid lease payments provided during the construction
period is included as part of costs of buildings under
construction. Buildings under construction are carried at
cost, less any identified impairment losses. Depreciation of
buildings commences when they are available for use (i.e.
when they are in the location and condition necessary for
them to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management).

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation (including properties under
construction for such purposes).

Investment properties under construction are initially
measured at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure and borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount
of the investment properties under construction.

Subsequent to completion of construction of investment
properties, investment properties are measured using their
fair value model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of investment properties are included in profit or
loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a
finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have been
transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease.

Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any
lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the
land and the building elements in proportion to the relative
fair values of the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid land lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis. When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements, the entire
lease is generally classified as a finance lease and accounted
for as property, plant and equipment.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution schemes are recognised as
an expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions. For forfeited contributions that
are not vest fully, if any, may be used to reduce the existing
level of contributions.

Payments made to state-managed retirement benefit
schemes are dealt with as payments to defined contribution
plans where the Group’s obligations under the schemes are
equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution
retirement benefit plan.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the
benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up to the
reporting date. Any changes in the liabilities’ carrying
amounts resulting from service cost, interest and
remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss except to
the extent that another HKFRS requires or permits their
inclusion in the cost of an asset.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Current Tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because of items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each
reporting period.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred Tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled, or the asset is realised based on tax rate (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the current and deferred tax are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax
effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables and available-for-sale (“AFS”) investments. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition. Interest income is recognised on an
effective interest basis for debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Loans and receivables (including accounts
and other receivables, pledged bank deposits and bank
balances) are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment of financial assets below).

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as (a)
loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or (c)
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. The
Group designated its investment in equity interest of a
private entity as AFS financial assets in which the Group has
no control or significant influence.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

AFS financial assets (Continued)

Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised in profit
or loss when the Group's right to receive the dividends is
established.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each reporting period (see
the accounting policy in respect of impairment of financial
assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at
the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial assets, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

Impairment loss for loans and receivables are assessed on an
individual basis.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For loans and receivables, the amount of the impairment
loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

For AFS financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’'s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods (see
the accounting policy below).

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of accounts and other receivables, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When an accounts
and other receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For loans and receivables, if, in a subsequent period, the
amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the
extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the
date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition. Interest expense is recognised on an
effective interest basis.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Company that contain both
debt and conversion option components are classified in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definition of a financial liability and
an equity instrument on initial recognition. Conversion
option that will be settled other than by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments is treated
a conversion option derivative measured at fair value at each
reporting date.

TREERESRTA

PEREBFXRE
SEERRTZ2EBLESTANREMR
AN zARReRABEERTAY
EEIRATRBEXBRAE-

#z LA
RETARAERARANEEEELMREM
FRERZAGES 2EMNAL - AEEM
BITE R T ARSI TS KIA
(MBFEEERBRITRA) -

BERFRCE
ERMNESZENFEEHSNH SR B EHHEK
ARABENSRAINITE - BENETIRNA
STHABZECRBENEAFHR(WER)
BREPEAKEHEFARREXN(BEEBRE
BRAIR AR SRR B ) M S A SRR PR T
BELME RFIERAREAMEERFTZE)
HERREFREFEONE -FERAXIRE
BRA B EERER -

iR 18

KRB ET A BRRE B ES IR E
Mo DRNTERBRBEREEOLEZAR
RzEENRIBERERABIBRAEA - T&
NERREIZ—HLHEEXBRARAA
SHETHENEE T AN A EENBRR
BERGRETETARESEREENAA
BEETHE -



Annual Report 2016 —ZT—<EER 131

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B S R Y A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 i 2 = F— "F+_A=+—HIEFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Convertible bonds (Continued)

At the date of issue, both the debt and conversion option
derivative components are recognised at fair value. In
subsequent periods, the debt component of the convertible
bonds is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The conversion option derivative component
together with other embedded derivatives component are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
loan notes are allocated to the debt and derivative
components in proportion to their relative fair values.
Transaction costs relating to the derivative components are
charged to profit or loss immediately. Transaction costs
relating to the debt component are included in the carrying
amount of the liability portion and amortised over the period
of the convertible loan notes using the effective interest
method.

Embedded derivative financial liabilities

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid
instrument that also includes a non-derivative host contract
with the effect that some of the cash flows of the
consolidated instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-
alone derivative.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are
treated as separate derivatives when they meet the
definition of a derivative, their risks and characteristics are
not closely related to those of the host contracts and the
host contracts are not measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Other financial liabilities (including accounts and other
payables, amounts due to directors, amounts due to non-
controlling interests of a subsidiary, bank borrowings and
other borrowings and bonds payable) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit
or loss. For consideration received or receivable in the form
of non-monetary assets, the non-monetary assets are initially
measured at fair value.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Critical Accounting Judgements and
Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the

5.
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revision and future periods if the revision affects both Ht ey & aTE(\{g SRR EARI AN T ARERR ©
current and future periods.
Critical judgements in applying accounting FERESTEHER B8 Y E

policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those BERGEF(RTXX)ZHEN LT AES
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have ERRAAEESTHRRBRERAEL U&E
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting BATBRERPERANGEAREATED
policies and that have the most significant effect on the R R ER % TELEWE AT Y
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements ¥E SCENBEHEMEBREEAH AR
and the results, assets and liabilities of the PRC Operational

Entity and its subsidiaries are consolidated with other group

entities.

Consolidation of a structured entity EEUBEBS O

PRC laws and regulations prohibit or restrict foreign
investors from owning more than 50% equity interest in any
enterprise which owns vessels for conducting dredging
business.

FEDER MR ER KB IEEREERE
AEEAETERREBOMMNCERFE
838 50% Y B 1 -
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Critical Accounting Judgements and
Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Consolidation of a structured entity (Continued)
On 19 April 2011, Xiangyu PRC (as defined in Note 38), the
PRC Operational Entity (as defined in Note 38) and its
respective equity participants, being Mr. Liu and Ms. Zhou
Shuhua (“Ms. Zhou"), the spouse of Mr. Liu, entered into
the Contractual Arrangements (as defined in Note 38). The
PRC Operational Entity and its subsidiaries are engaged in
the provision of dredging services of the Group. Details of
the Contractual Arrangements are set out in Note 38.

The Directors, after consulting legal opinion, are of the view
that the terms of the Contractual Arrangements have in
substance enabled Xiangyu PRC to have the ability and right
to direct the relevant activities to obtain variable returns
from its involvement with the PRC Operational Entity and its
subsidiaries, and to have free ability to use its power to
affect its returns, despite the absence of formal legal equity
interest held by the Group therein. Accordingly, PRC
Operational Entity is treated as a subsidiary of the Company,
and the results, assets and liabilities of the PRC Operational
Entity and its subsidiaries are consolidated together with
other group entities as if they were wholly owned by the
Company.

In the opinion of the Directors, with reference to legal
opinion, the Contractual Arrangements are in compliance
with the existing PRC laws and regulations are valid, binding
and legally enforceable, and do not result in any violation of
PRC laws or regulations currently in effect in all material
respects. However, uncertainties in the PRC legal system
could cause the Group's current Contractual Arrangements
Structure to be found in violation of any existing and/or
future PRC laws or regulations and could limit the
Company's ability, through Xiangyu PRC, to enforce its
rights and power over the PRC Operational Entity under the
Contractual Arrangements.
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Critical Accounting Judgements and
Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

5.

B 52

SR HEREFTABE
e VES

BRIR ()

22

oo

~

FE P38 BT BOK B 2 B 82 3 I ()

Consolidation of a structured entity (Continued) EENEERSH @

The operation of the Group was substantially derived from NEEBMNEBIERATERKEERELE
the PRC Operational Entity and its subsidiaries. If the current B AT - (MIEERERTAELLHER
structure or any of the Contractual Arrangements were FEhBEEEER AEBEM g2 T 2R

found to be in violation of PRC laws and regulations, the
Group may be subject to penalties, which may include but
not be limited to, the cancellation or revocation of the
Group's business and operating licenses, being required to
restructure the Group’s operations or discontinue the
Group's operating activities. The imposition of any of these
or other penalties may result in a material and adverse effect
on the Group’s ability to conduct its operations. In such
case, the Group may not be able to operate or control the
PRC Operational Entity and its subsidiaries, which may result
in deconsolidation of it.

Going concern basis

As explained in note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis and do not include any
adjustments that would be required should the Group fail to
continue as a going concern since the directors are satisfied
that the liquidity of the Group is able to repay its debts in
the coming twelve months after the end of the reporting
period taking into consideration the factors described in
Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

Hence, the Directors believe that the Group will have
sufficient working capital to finance its operations and to
meet its financial obligations when they fall due for the
foreseeable future. Accordingly, the Company prepared the
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.
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Critical Accounting Judgements and
Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (Continued)
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Deferred taxation on investment properties REYEIELERIE
For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation arising BTEHesFRAARBERIAEREMEE

from investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the directors of the Company have reviewed
the Group’s investment property and concluded that the
Group’s investment properties are held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, in measuring
the Group’s deferred taxation on investment properties, the
directors have determined that the presumption that the
carrying amounts of investment properties measured using
the fair value model are recovered entirely through sale is
rebutted. Accordingly, deferred taxation in relation to the
Group's investment properties has been measured based on
the tax consequences of recovering the carrying amounts
entirely through use.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within
the next financial year are disclosed below.
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Critical Accounting Judgements and
Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Estimate of fair value of investment properties
under construction

As described in note 17, investment properties are measured
at fair value at the end of reporting period using income
approach by independent professional valuers. Such
valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are
subject to uncertainty and might materially differ from the
actual results. In relying on the valuation report, the directors
of the Company have exercised their judgment and are
satisfied that the assumptions used in the valuation reflect
market condition. Where there are any changes in the
assumptions due to the market conditions in the PRC, the
estimate of fair value of investment properties under
construction may be significantly affected. As at 31
December 2016, investment properties of approximately
HK$ 413,194,000 (2015: nil) are measured using market
approach.

Estimated allowance for accounts and other
receivables

Management regularly reviews the recoverability of accounts
and other receivables. Allowance for these receivables is
made based on evaluation of collectability and on
management’s judgment by reference to the estimation of
the future cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate to calculate the present value. A considerable
amount of management judgment is required in assessing
the ultimate realisation of these debtors, including the
debtors’ current creditworthiness. If the actual future cash
flows are less than expected, additional allowance may be
required.
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Critical Accounting Judgements and
Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Estimated allowance for accounts and other
receivables (Continued)

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of accounts
and other receivables is approximately RMB1,375,745,000,
net of allowance for doubtful debts of approximately
RMB437,777,000 (31 December 2015: carrying amount of
accounts and other receivable of approximately
RMB1,335,115,000, net of allowance for doubtful debts of
approximately RMB425,900,000).

Estimated useful life and residual values of
property, plant and equipment

Dredgers and plant and machinery included in property,
plant and equipment are depreciated over their useful lives.
The assessment of estimated useful lives and residual values
are matters of judgement based on the experience of the
Group, taking into account factors such as technological
progress, conditions of the dredgers and plant and
machinery and changes in market demand. Useful lives and
residual values are periodically reviewed for continued
appropriateness. Due to the long useful lives of the dredgers
and plant and machinery, changes to the estimates used can
affect the amount of depreciation to be charged to profit or
loss in each reporting period and consequently affect their
carrying value at the end of the reporting period. There was
no change in the estimated useful lives or residual values of
property, plant and equipment for both years.

5.

—RNF+ZA=+—-BIEFE

RSt HE R&TTBEBAR
ZENEERE @)

HETTHBERENEEZRIFR @)

FE W B R B2 EL i BB WORR O 4 5 B ()

%:7—A$+ A=+—8 EWE

AEEMERTIOERENASARE
137574500071: EHBRREREBEOHAR
¥437,777000 (ZE—HAF+=-A=+—
H:EBUEREREMERFIOEABEOAA
R #1,335,115,00070 ' EMBRREBEEH A
R #425,900,0007T) °

ME BERRENGFIEAFHR

FerfEE
MWE BMELRBREENZEM BE R
WEREAERFRATE - FEAEFAR®

REREFBEEIREAEENLRED
HIE - XEEMRMES  ZRM - BE R
HWREARANARTERBLKEHFRAR - AEE
EHRI A ERFRREREENTEE
M- RN BFE R ERERFHR
R G2y er 8RN SREPRAERRR
TUHBRMTESR EMPZEREHRD
FHE -RMEFE DX BEEREZ
At ERFHARHREELEEE -



Annual Report 2016 139

ZE-REER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B S R Y A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 i 2 = F— "F+_A=+—HIEFE

Revenue and Segment Information

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the Executive directors who are also the
chief operating decision makers (“CODM") that are used to
make strategic decisions. Information reported to the chief
operating decision makers is based on the different nature
of projects carried out by the Group.

Details of the Group’s four reportable segments are as
follows:

() Capital and Reclamation Dredging Business refers to
the capital and reclamation dredging services and
related consultation services provided by the Group;

(i) Environmental Protection Dredging and Water
Management Business refers to dredging or water
management services or constructions for promoting
environmental interests and water quality mainly for
inland rivers provided by the Group;

(i) Other Marine Business mainly comprises marine
hoisting, installation, salvaging, vessel chartering and
other engineering services provided by the Group; and

(iv) Property Management Business refers to the
management and leasing of a shopping mall and the
construction of a hotel by the Group.

The Group started to construct a shopping mall in
Yancheng, the PRC in 2015 with an aim to generate rental
income and the construction was completed during the year
ended 31 December 2016. The Group started to build a
hotel during the year ended 31 December 2016. The CODM
reviewed the performance of the shopping mall and the
hotel as a separate segment and accordingly, reported as a
separate reportable segment.
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Segment results

Revenue and Segment Information
(Continued)

An analysis of the Group'’s reportable segment revenue and
segment results is as below.

—RNF+ZA=+—-BIEFE

Environmental

Hoy AR E K

DEBELE

DT o

Protection
Capital and Dredging
Reclamation and Water Other Property
Dredging Management Marine Management
Business Business Business Business Total
BRABAR
HERES KEER 2 mE
mAEH % BEER EEER @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT AR®FTnT ARETR ARET T
For the year ended BZE_Z-—Xf
31 December 2016 r=J=qp=[lile
FE
Segment revenue Rzl 353,961 154,702 153,451 5,040 667,154
Segment results DEELE 140,569 43,785 17,680 (475) 201,559
Unallocated other income AOEEMBA 19,347
Other gains and losses, net HiES REBEE (5,999)
Unallocated corporate expenses 7 % it £ 2 b 3% (31,465)
Unallocated Finance costs AOERE B A (61,222)
Profit before tax B & B 3 A 122,220
For the year ended BE_T-—1F
31 December 2015 +-RB=1+—-HI
FE
Segment revenue b=l 367,319 179,460 154,217 — 700,996
Segment results DEPELE 131,782 53,730 22,148 — 207,660
Unallocated other income AOBEEMEA 37,316
Other gains and losses, net Heb s R B8 8 (396,572)
Unallocated corporate expenses A7 AL /> % B (33,768)
Unallocated Finance costs RO R (51,969)
Loss before tax BRI EE (237,333)
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6. Revenue and Segment Information

(Continued)

6. WERIHER @

141

Other segment information Hibn HEH
Environmental
Protection
Capital and Dredging
Reclamation and Water Other Property
Dredging Management Marine Management  Segment
Business Business Business Business total Unallocated Consolidated
BREAR
HERES KEER Hitr mE
AR W% BEER ERER WA APE &®E
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR¥Tn ARETn AR%Tn AR®Trn AR¥Trn AR%Tn
For the year ended BE-2-X%
31 December 2016 +=A=t+-AH
LFE
Amounts included in the A 7 &5 1825 51 £
measure of segment 258
profit or loss
Depreciation of property, % - & k&
plant and equipment e (72,405) (2811)  (24719) - (99,935) (47) (99,982)
Fair value changes of WA BRI EH K
derivative financial fTEEmMBEY
liabilities embedded in AFEED
convertible bonds — — - - - 7,030 7,030
Amortisation of prepaid T + #7843
land lease payment 4 - (14) - (2,474) (2,488) (318) (2,806)
Exchange loss [E 5 &R — - - - - (39.183) (39,183)
Amortisation of other HiwER EESH
intangible assets — — — (250) (250) — (250)
Amounts reqularly EHREEE:
provided to CODM but k& # 2 1B
not included in the GTER H G
measure of segment KA ZHE
profit or loss
Allowance for doubtful ~ RER B
debts (11,877) — — — (11,877) — (11,877)
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6. Revenue and Segment Information

6. W koHER @

(Continued)
Other segment information (Continued) Hibn HER @
Environmental
Protection
Capital and Dredging
Reclamation and Water Other Property
Dredging ~ Management Marine  Management Segment
Business Business Business Business total  Unallocated ~ Consolidated
RREE R
HEERER KB ERE Hity ES
AR B BEXE BEEE  pEBE A Ra
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB"000 RMB'000
ARBETT ARETR ARBTT ARBTRT ARETT ARETRT AR®TR
For the year ended Bz-Z-1%
31 December 2015 +ZA=1+-H
LEE
Amounts included in the 5+ A 7 &8 7% 51 &
measure of segment 258
profit or loss
Depreciation of property, #1% * BB R E
plant and equipment £ (70,351) (1,425) (24,868) — (96,644) (3,730) (100,374)
Fair value changes of MAT LR EH K
derivative financial fTEemBEY
liabilities embeddedin AT (EEH
convertible bonds — — — — — 7,921 7.921
Fair value changes of BRRRESE 20T
derivative financial EERAEGEZA
liabilities in relation to TEEE
warrants — — — — — 2,242 2,242
Amortisation of prepaid T8 + It F 4 5 &
land lease payment | — — — — — (2,671) (2,671)
Exchange loss X BB — - - - - (30,181) (30,181)
Amounts regularly THREEEER
provided to CODM but % # 2 AR5t
not included in the ERHBHER
measure of segment FAZHE
profit or loss
Allowance for doubtful R EE#& &
debts (164,231) (212,410 — — (376,641) (376,641)
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6. Revenue and Segment Information 6.
(Continued)

Other segment information (Continued)

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note 4
to the consolidated financial statements.

Segment results represent profit earned or loss incurred by
each segment, without allocation of central administrative
expenses, other gains and losses, certain other income and
certain finance costs. This is the measure reported to the
Company'’s executive directors for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

Segment assets
Environmental
Protection
Capital and Dredging
Reclamation and Water
Dredging Management
Business Business
BRREER
HERES KEEE
RAER e
RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARBFR ARET T

Wi ko EHER @

Hithn EE R @)
A2RA By st HE e A M BRENE
AFTEAEE Y & HBEMRR -

7 BB RS o BB AT BRER A 5 F) 3K 3 A ) B
BORDBRPRITHAX - Hdas kEE -
ETHMBARETREKAN) - L TIRAAN
RARTEEFREERIELEAFHENT
B

THEE
Dredging
Other Property Related
Marine Management Construction
Business Business Business Total
HittEE MEEE b &iE)

ES £ IREH @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR®BTRT AR®TR ARE:R

At 31 December 2016 R-ZB-—RE
+=HB=+-—H
Segment assets DERE E 1,929,475 815,077 481,030 514,043 13,340 3,752,965
Unallocated assets: AKOBREE:
Prepaid land lease SR Kz OF
payments 15,184
Pledged bank deposits BEEARITER 15,000
Bank balances and cash RITEBRER S 34,500
Others Hifh 12,999
Consolidated assets HAEEE 3,830,648
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6. Revenue and Segment Information 6. W koBER @)
(Continued)
Segment assets (Continued) o EEE (E)
Environmental
Protection
Capital and Dredging Dredging
Reclamation and Water Other Related
Dredging Management Marine  Construction
Business Business Business Business Total
RREE R
HERERES KBER HHESE Bk 18
R ¥ S £ TREB st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARET T ARBETTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETZ

At 31 December 2015 R=-B-1F
+=ZA=+—H
Segment assets DEEE 1,833,707 684,275 493,637 17,100 3,028,719
Unallocated assets: KDBREE:
Prepaid land lease payments  J& 1+ £ 7 49 5% 15,502
Investment properties under ~ FERIRE ¥ E (A7)
construction (note) 408,552
Pledged bank deposits BERIRITER 62,572
Available-for-sale investment  AJ £ H £ 3% & 20,921
Loan receivables fEWE 95,012
Consideration receivable (included & Uz % /8 (5t A f& Ut B ¢
in accounts and other N E i UKD
receivables) 70,774
Shareholder’s loan to Yongheng 124 F #k 18 #) i% 5 & 3¢
(defined in Note 18) (included (£ 3% RFi:E18) (Gt A
in accounts and other JRE LT B R I L b JE Lt
receivables) =) 14,804
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRREE 153,569
Others Hity 6,738
Consolidated assets HABE 3,877,163
Note: At 31 December 2015, investment properties under construction Hiet - MZZE—RAF+A=+—H BARYXER
of approximately RMB408,552,000 remained unallocated as the (¥BBE_Z-—HFTA=+—BHILFE
Property Management Business was yet commenced during the MAMGB REMEHEEERENDARKE

year ended 31 December 2015. 408,552,000 T3 K 7 B
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Revenue and Segment Information 6. WmK D IHEFR @
(Continued)
Segment assets (Continued) D EEE @)
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and BEESBRBEREDBELEER &
allocating resources between segments, assets are allocated EUOITEEEERNLEED I ML
to reportable and operating segments other than the BARDBCIEB BN o
unallocated items listed above.
Segment liabilities PHEE
As the liabilities are regularly reviewed by the CODM in total HR T EERRAEE T AAEEYAEE
for the Group as a whole, the measure of total liabilities by TEEREE AHTEZN ] 2MEED P
reportable segments is therefore not presented. mEBETE-
Geographical information i EE R
As all the Group’s revenue is derived from its operation in AN AEBENFEREHBRKREER TP EAE
the PRC and substantially all its non-current assets (excluding BEAHBATLDERHEE(TEEATH D
the AFS investment and other financial assets) are located in REMEMeRMEE)LNPE LI EZ
the PRC, no geographical information is presented. bl i @ B o
Information about major customers FEEFEH
An analysis of revenue from customers contributing over KEEBBBAEBRFTABRREZEI0ONHNE P
10% of the Group's total revenue for the year is as follows: Mk ZS T :
2016 2015
At —T—hf%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R AR T
Customer A EFEA
— Environmental Protection Dredging —IRIREVE KIS E 1B
and Water Management Business EiS 123,526 164,547
Customer B =FB
— Capital and Reclamation Dredging —HEZREBRRES
Business 115,415 143,453
Customer C BPC
— Capital and Reclamation Dredging —HERBGRZER
Business 86,046 note P&
Customer D EFD
— Capital and Reclamation Dredging — HENEBEBSEEXK
Business 85,672 note 3T
Note: Customers C and D did not contribute over 10% of the Group's i #EZ2_F-—AF+_A=+—HBLFE ¥F

total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2015.

CREFDZERY MEBBAEHEAEKER10% °
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7. Other Income 7. Hfig A
2016 2015
—EB—XKE —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETx ARETFT
Government financial incentive (note) B T B R B2 B (M ) 9,239 9,224
Bank interest income AT 2 U A 547 6,376
Interest income in respect of non-current 3k B HA fiE Ukt BR 3% 69 A1) 2 U A
accounts receivable 11,879 14,781
Interest income in respect of consideration J& Yg A (& 5| B U A (B 3F18)
receivable (Note 18) — 3,928
Interest income in respect of other H b & U2 Z A AL U A
receivable 2,903 3,052
Sundry income HEIE U A 286 681
24,854 38,042

Note: Pursuant to a document issued by a PRC local government
authority, one of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries was granted
financial incentive for a period of three years for its contribution
to the economic development of the locality, provided it is duly
registered in the locality and pays taxes according to tax laws. No
other conditions are attached to the financial incentive.

The PRC local government authority confirmed that the amount
for such financial incentive that the Group was entitled for the
year ended 31 December 2016 was RMB9,239,000 (2015:
RMB9,224,000). Accordingly, the Group recognised such amount
as other income for the year.

B < AR R B b T T AR AT X4 - AR A
R EHBATNCEE BN F
MR LESA AN EEERELNE
B e A A A 0 IE S MR S AR I A A
Bt o Bk 22 5 B T 52 D 3 4 4 6] o Y5 15
o

PR BIREER AEEREE-T —
ANET AT BLFEAEZZMNZBETK
HE SR A ARY9239000T(Z T —HEF:
AR¥9,224,0007T) - At - AEBEEKE# S
HERBFANEMBKA -
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9.
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8. Other Gains and Losses, Net 8. HMWEREEFEE
2016 2015
—E-RF —E—hF
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
iEz3 ARBT R AREFT
Gain on disposal of property, plantand HE#% % - lE &
equipment & 1 W an — 37
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FEHEQG
Yz 30 24,250 —
Fair value changes of derivative financial iz A &35 #9467 &
liabilities embedded in the Bonds SEBaEZ
AT EEE 28 7,030 7,921
Fair value changes in relation to warrants % B8 2 iX # 55 2
ATEED — 2,242
Sums waived by holders of the Bonds A &2 (F 5545 A
Z He IR 28 13,781 —
Allowance for doubtful debts RIBIRE S 21() (11,877) (376,641)
Exchange loss b 5 E5 18 (39,183) (30,181)
(5,999) (396,572)
Finance Costs 9. RMIERA
2016 2015
—E—-XRE —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARET T
Interest expenses on: THEENMERX :
Bank borrowings wholly repayable within R i & A 2 (BB O iR 1T 2
five years =i 34,154 35,607
Discounted bills receivable e E BhIR R IR 796 3,108
Other borrowings HEMEE 5,535 1,262
The Bonds E5 5,174 —
Amounts due to non-controlling interests i 1< 3F 328 IS # %5 X 18 1,940 612
Effective interest on the Bonds (Note 28) &% = B 7 & (Kf:%28) 30,668 37,608
Total borrowing costs BIEE A 78,267 78,197
Less: amounts capitalised in the cost of B EBEREEKRABERL
qualifying assets ik} (8,315) (22,610)
69,952 55,587
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9. Finance Costs (Continued)

Borrowing cost capitalised during the year ended 31
December 2016 of approximately RMB8,315,000 (2015:
RMB22,610,000) arose on the general borrowing pool
calculated by applying a capitalisation rate of 10.87% (2015:
8.07%) per annum. During the year ended 31 December
2016, borrowing cost was capitalised as part of the
construction in progress in respect of the investment
properties under construction (see Note 17).

10. Income Tax Expense (Credit)

9. BLE A @)

HE-Z—X"F+-_A=+—BLFE"
BRI ZIEERARNL A RS, 3150007 (=
T—FF: AR¥22610,0007T) Ty — RS
BEHAREALLELESFI087%(ZZE— A
F:807%) EX - BE_T—XRNE+-A=
+—BLFE EERAEAREE B ER
MEZKREYE(FL2HEME17) -

10. FRIEBIMAX (ER)

2016 2015
—E-XREF —E—RHF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBTTT

The charge (credit) comprises: S (ER) B
Current tax RV EA 7% 18
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") PEMEMER (D3
PREHLL) 51,618 48,133
Deferred taxation (Note 20) IR FE R IH (Y 7E20) (4,648) (94,955)

46,970 (46,822)
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10. Income Tax Expense (Credit) (continued)  10.

The tax charge (credit) for the year can be reconciled to the

B (ER) @
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FABB I (ER) LR AE RN (BR) Y

profit (loss) before tax as follows: R
2016 2015
—E-RKRF —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR ARETFT
Profit (loss) before tax B 35 A& A (B 8) 122,220 (237,333)
Tax at the PRC EIT rate of 25% BRPBECEMMEHRE25%
(2015: 25%) FENBREB(ZE—RF:
25%) 30,555 (59,333)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible DA R A B TR 75 2 28
for tax purpose 11,867 5,628
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 1H AR B 52 /O 5 IE S 18 Y AR 7S
s 2 4,548 8,249
Utilisation of tax losses previously not ) AT M R FERR 2 B IR B 1R
recognised — (1,366)
Tax charge (credit) for the year FRABBHZ (ER) 46,970 (46,822)
() PRCEIT (i) PEEEMRS

PRC EIT is calculated at 25% of the assessable profits
for both years.

(ii) Hong Kong Profits Tax

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profits for both years, if any.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been
made in the consolidated financial statements as the
Company and its subsidiaries had no assessable profits
arising in or derived from Hong Kong for both years.

(i)

RMEFEE  PECEMAEHRIEER

Tt F AT T 25% 5t H

& 5585

KM EEFE - FBMEH IR MG ER
Bm A (B ) AT E16.5% =T H °

HRAEERNMEFEALERETE
ELNREREZIERATGER  B&EE
BRI AL EH B LGB LB

e
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11. Profit (Loss) for the Year

China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited FREIFABRIERER LT

1"M. FREFN (EE)

2016 2015
—E-ARE —F—4%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T AREF T
Profit (loss) for the year has been arrived 45 A3 Fl (E548) 2 & K
at after charging (crediting): (Bt A) T35 &8 :
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 25 Bl 7 A 1,932 1,735
Amortisation of intangible assets A 250 —
Amortisation of prepaid land lease T8 {55 A 3 A8 A9 R 8
payments 2,806 2,671
Depreciation of property, plant and YE - RENRETE
equipment 99,982 100,374
Directors’ emoluments (Note 12) EEME (HE12) 2,100 2,100
Other staff costs H i B T kA 48,557 47,932
Retirement benefit scheme contributions, iR K18 A5t 2|t 2k - B 1
excluding those of directors EEMHBEIKAERE 3,481 3,521
Total staff costs BITKAEE 54,138 53,553
Allowance for doubtful debts R I AR B 11,877 376,641
Gain on disposal of property, plantand  H & ¥ % - B E &R & WS
equipment — (87)
Sub-contracting charges included in AFABENANDBER
operating cost 162,357 184,174
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12. Directors’, Chief Executive Officer’s 1.EF FETHAEREEM
and Employees’ Emoluments &

Directors and Chief Executive Officer EERFETHRAE
Details of the emoluments paid or payable to the Directors FR PNHENEERETEBITHAESH
and the Chief Executive Officer during the year are as BEIBWOT
follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE-E—XE+=-B=+—-HILEE
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme
Fees allowances contribution Total
Hek BRIRER
me Hh £ e, 5T Bl At X #st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®BTRT AR®TR ARWTR

Executive directors: MITES:
Mr. Liu (note (i) 255 4 (M) — 1,200 — 1,200
Mr. Wu Bin (note (i) {038 5 4 (K7 22 (i) — — — -
Mr. Wu Xuze (note (i) = fIB 2 5 & (B 72 (iii)) — — — —
Ms. Zhou B+ — 600 — 600

— 1,800 — 1,800

Non-executive director: 3JE#{TE = :

Mr. Liu Longhua RgEELRE — — — -
Independent non- BIUFATESE

executive directors:

Mr. Chan Ming Sun BR $% £ 55 4

Jonathan 150 — — 150
Mr. Huan Xuedong BERGEA 150 — — 150
Mr. Xu Hengju wER LA (HEiv)

(note iv) — — — -
Mr. Liang Zequen RIBREE (M EY)

(note v) — — — —

300 — — 300

300 1,800 — 2,100
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12. Directors’, Chief Executive Officer's 1N.EE - FTETHAEREESN

and Employees’ Emoluments (continued) € (&)
Directors and Chief Executive Officer EERTETBRAE®@
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE-Z-AF+-A=+t—BLEE
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme
Fees allowances  contribution Total
ek EIRE T
e - p==3=l1 RGN st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTIT ARBTET ARETT AR®BTRT

Executive directors: HITES
Mr. Liu (note (i) 258 & (B 30) — 1,200 — 1,200
Ms. Zhou A%+t 600 — 600
— 1,800 — 1,800
Non-executive director: 3JE#H{TE = :
Mr. Liu Longhua BBEE L& — — - -
Independent non- BIUFRTESE
executive directors:
Mr. Chan Ming Sun FeR 67 48 5 A=
Jonathan 150 — — 150
Mr. Huan Xuedong EEBRLA 150 — — 150
Mr. Xu Hengju RIEH kA& — — — —
300 - — 300

300 1,800 — 2,100
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1NEE - FETHRAERESMH

12. Directors’, Chief Executive Officer’s

and Employees’ Emoluments (continued)

Directors and Chief Executive Officer
(Continued)

Notes:

(i) Mr. Liu was also the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 and his
emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered
by him as the Chief Executive Officer. On 5 January 2017, Mr. Liu
has resigned as the Chief Executive Officer, but remains as the
chairman of the Board and an executive Director.

(i) Mr. Wu Bin was appointed on 5 January 2017.

(i)~ Mr. Wu Xuze was appointed on 5 January 2017 as an executive
Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

(iv)  Mr. Xu Hengju resigned on 23 September 2016.

(v) Mr. Liang Zequan was appointed on 23 September 2016.

During the year, there was no arrangement under which a
director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration.

Salaries and other allowance paid to or for the executive
directors are generally emoluments paid in respect of those
persons’ other services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Employees

Of the Group's five highest paid individuals during the year,
two (2015: two) of them were directors whose emoluments
are presented above. The emoluments of the remaining
three (2015: three) highest paid individuals, were as follows:

€ @
BEERFETHRAE @

i -

(i) BE-_Z—R"FER-_FT—RAF+=-A=+—H
BIEENMBARBEEITHAL U EHATH
B REEAZETRABMERRS
e - E-_T—+F—FAAB BELEEH
XEERTE BNARTESSEIREEHT
g%

iy ERELEE-_ZT—LtE—ARBERE-

(i) RBEBELEE-_ZFT-—LtHF - AOHEZERA
REPTEEREARNTE.

vy HEHEER-_Z-REFALAT=ZHER
) RERELAE_Z-R"ENA+T=ZBHEZE

FA W EE EFE AT 2 S E B R A B
T H) LB

SN THROTEENFS REMERBIZE
AL REEARRANREMBEARNEHIRM
B L At AR %5 T S AN B — AR ER BN -

=]

FRAAKSELEAESFMESS T M
Z(ZE-RF WMB)REFRTIETHA
B EMECRNEXZ2I BT =R(=F—
hF:=ZR)REFMEAANME N T

2016 2015

—E—-RE —E—HRF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®T T ARETIT

Salaries and other allowances e kHEMER 994 1,574
Retirement benefit scheme contributions & K48 FI| 51 I £t 2% 18 29

1,012 1,603
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12.

13.

Directors’, Chief Executive Officer’s 1.EF FETHAEREEM
and Employees’ Emoluments (continued) € @)
Employees (Continued) & 8 @)
Their emoluments were within the following bands: EfeETHER AZNT :
2016 2015
—E-XREF —E—RHF
No. of No. of
employees employees
EBEA™ EEAH
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 = 21,000,000/ 7T
(approximately RMB790,000) (89 AR ¥ 790,0007T) 3 3
During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group RAEFEA AREEBTERENE S
to any of the Directors, Chief Executive Officer or the five FETBRAER D E G T HEA(RES
highest paid individuals (including directors, Chief Executive E FETRABREE)ZNEMME - A
Officer and employees) as an inducement to join or upon TERE M AR INAZ & F 1% 1) 42 E) ol B B
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. H1E -
Earnings (Loss) Per Share 13. 5REF (FH#E)

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings/loss per
share attributable to the owners of the Company is based
on the following data:

ADFFA AR SR AR 58 B R
BTy T B E

2016 2015
—E-XREF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBTTT

Earnings 2 F

Profit (loss) for the year attributable to ThET B B AR E AR N 8 & T
owners of the Company for the purposes /181 = B9 AN A T FF A A

of basic and diluted earnings/loss per FEAEF RS R (E18)
share 68,794 (197,864)
‘000 ‘000
Number of shares ik - 4=
Weighted average number of ordinary Rt BEEREARESAT
shares for the purpose of basic and B3 18 & &9 IR AR hn A
diluted earnings/loss per share 8 1,252,900 1,036,947
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13.

14.

Earnings (Loss) Per Share (continued)

The weighted average number of shares for the purposes of
basic earnings/loss per share for both years were calculated
based on the weighted average number of shares in issue
during both years.

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year
ended 31 December 2015 does not assume the conversion
of the Company’s outstanding convertible bonds since their
exercise would result in a decrease in loss per share. As
disclosed in Note 28, the conversion options embedded in
the convertible bonds are no longer exercisable after the
Original Maturity Date as defined under Note 28. As at 31
December 2016, the Group does not have any potential
ordinary shares.

Dividends

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31
December 2016 and 31 December 2015, nor has any
dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting
period.

13.

14.

BRER (HFEB) @

REFEMBEFENERERRN BEH
B dn pnaE F B USRI M E F R B BT
MEFHEEES T -

HEEE T RAFT-A=t+—HLEFE
MEBRBERFRTRBRAQT ZRLR
MEkESFDEES RRATEBSERE
R EsIE R D o B FE28 R W - ARl R (&
EHERIEEN T2 AT REEEE
BT - R-_E—XRE+_A=+—8"
AEEBWELABELRR-

iz 5

REBEE-_ZE—R"E+_A=+—BR=-_Z—
AF+-_A=+—BUHFEBERNXER
B MBERERARBTNEERTMAIRE -
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15. Property, Plant And Equipment

15. 9% BERERE

Furniture,
Leasehold Dredgers fittings
land and Leasehold and Plantand and office Motor  Construction
building  improvements vessels machinery equipment vehicles in progress Total
B £E
HELHER Bl R BER RED
B HE#E BeMH #a BL AE EEIR st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREFTT ARETT ARBTR ARETT ARBTT AR®ETR ARETR
COST BA
At 1 January 2015 RZE-—0%E
—A—H 54,401 244 1,726,575 94,833 1,669 10,758 112,726 2,001,206
Additions NE — — 94 2,861 57 5,098 24,639 32,749
Disposals/write-off HeE /s = — — — = (1,840) — (1,840)
At 31 December 2015 R —HF
+=-A=t+-H 54,401 244 1,726,669 97,694 1,726 14,016 137,365 2,032,115
Additions NE 60,205 — — 12,065 262 1,833 6,513 80,878
Disposal of a subsidiary (£ & i B A &) — — — — — (205) — (205)
At 31 December 2016 R ZZ— 45
+-A=+—-H 114,606 244 1,726,669 109,759 1,988 15,644 143,878 2,112,788
ACCUMULATED RitHE
DEPRECIATION
At 1 January 2015 R-E-—0%F
—A—H 688 244 245,994 19,547 963 7,142 — 274,578
Provided for the year ~ F R # & 2,599 — 87,653 8,336 295 1,491 — 100,374
Eliminated on disposals/ & B %74 /34
write-off — — — — — (1,441) — (1,441)
At 31 December 2015 R=-Z—H%F
+-A=+—-H 3,287 244 333,647 27,883 1,258 7,192 — 373,511
Provided for the year FRERE 2,800 — 86,240 8,677 259 2,006 — 99,982
Disposal of a subsidiary i ¢ it B 22 & — — = = = (63) = (63)
At 31 December 2016 R =T — &
+=-A=1+—H 6,087 244 419,887 36,560 1,517 9,135 — 473,430
CARRYING VALUE BHE
At 31 December 2016 R =T — &
+-A=+—H 108,519 — 1,306,782 73,199 47 6,509 143,878 1,639,358
At 31 December 2015 R=-ZT—HEF
+=-A=1+-H 51,114 — 1,393,022 69,811 468 6,824 137,365 1,658,604
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15. Property, Plant And Equipment (continued) 15. ¥ % - B E R %% @)

As certain lease payments relating to the leasehold property
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, that entire leasehold property is accounted for as
property, plant and equipment.

The Group’s leasehold land and building is held under a
medium term lease in the PRC.

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of assets
(other than construction in progress), over their estimated
useful lives and after taking into account their estimated
residual values, using the straight-line method, on the
following bases:

Leasehold land and building 2-4% or over the term of the
lease, whichever is shorter
20% or over the term of the
lease, whichever is shorter
Dredgers and vessels 5%-6.7%
Plant and machinery 5%-20%
Furniture, fittings and office 10%-33.3%
equipment
Motor vehicles

Leasehold improvements

16.7%-20%

Details of property, plant and equipment held as pledge or
collateral are set out in Note 33.

16. Prepaid Land Lease Payments

mRNEAEYERBNE THERRTER
SRt EREFTEEOE WHEWE
ERARSYE BENEH-

AEEMEE L MEFTRETHEER
FEEE -

WE TR MGF A E R F B REFT REMGET
HREERNEGZEIMEEEXNA(ERTE
BRON) - BRAEEFHIIMT

ME i RiEF 2-4% sk 2 & F Hi (A
BEEA%E)

MERE 20% sk F & F H (A 8%
HE A%

Ze M & A Aa 5%-6.7%

B K i 28 5%-20%

R - ZHEBERPHA  10%-33.3%

B 16.7%-20%

ERERMAERDMODE  BEMRE
EACE NS I EER

16. FEF LA

2016 2015
—E—XKE —E—FhF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARET T

Analysed for reporting purposes as: AREBWMMIEN DT ¢
Current assets MENE E 3,075 2,908
Non-current assets ERHEE 105,210 100,773
108,285 103,681

Details of prepaid lease payment held as pledge or collateral
are set out in Note 33.

EABHRAERYBNBEMNEORFBH
RHIEE33 e
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 i 2 = F— "F+_A=+—HIEFE

17. Investment Properties/Investment 17. REVNE CEEREWE
Properties under Construction

RMB’'000
AR T
Investment properties under EEREYME
construction
At 1 January 2015, at cost RZZE—RF—-—HA—HB &KX =
Construction costs incurred and interests B & 4 2 B R K A k& AL 2 F &
capitalised 307,702
At 31 December 2015, at cost RZEBE—RF+T_HA=1+—8H KK 307,702
Construction costs incurred and interests B 2 4 7 &R B A Rk & b 2 5 &
capitalised 29,126
Transferred to investment properties upon 52 % 18 8 A 3% & ¥ 3
completion (336,828)
At 31 December 2016 R-_E—XRFE+-_A=+—8H —
Investment properties REWE
At 1 January 2016 RZE—R"F—H—H —
Transferred from investment properties HEERIREME
under construction 336,828
Addition NE 76,366

At 31 December 2016, at fair value R-ZTE—R"F+_A=+—8 BAFE 413,194
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e

For the year ended 31 December 2016 # £ =&

17.

B 75 ¥R 3Rk M & (4])

Investment Properties/Investment
Properties under Construction (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
started constructing a shopping mall in Yancheng, the PRC.
The shopping mall was measured at costs at 31 December
2015. On completion of the construction, the Group’s
property is erected on leasehold land in the PRC to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted
for as investment properties.

The fair value of the Group'’s investment properties as at 31
December 2016 has been arrived at on the basis of a
valuation carried out on the respective dates by Sinno
Appraisals Limited, an independent qualified professional
valuer not connected to the Group.

In determining the fair value of the relevant properties, the
board of directors of the Company has set up a valuation
committee, which is headed up by the Chief Financial
Officer of the Company, to determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for fair value measurements.

The Group engages a third party qualified valuer to perform
the valuation. The valuation committee works closely with
the qualified external valuer to establish the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The Chief
Financial Officer reports the valuation committee’s findings
to the board of directors of the Company every quarter to
explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the
assets and liabilities.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties is
categorised as level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. There were
no transfer into or out of level 3 during the year. In
estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is the current use.

—RNF+ZA=+—-BIEFE

17. RENE TEREVE w

RBE-_FT-—AFT_A=+—HLEFE"
AEERKETEBRTRE -RE5 - &%
BER_FT-—RAF+_A=1t—BEKAX
AE-BEREIR ASENERTEEE
Tz EUARBESHEREARTER D
MEDEBRAFERUGE  ADBRAR
IEREE -

RZE—ARF+ZA=+—H A5EEKRE
) % 8 A F (B J5 & 7 Sinno Appraisals Limited
(—HEARXEETEBENB IS EREE
MEAREEBABRETHEEMER -

REEHEBYENRAFER AR2FAESF
CERUFBEZES(RARRAYBREE
) URAFEFEETEANBERMK
o ABUE -

AEEEZBE=ZTAERMGEEMETH
B-REZEEHEGER ﬁl\*ﬁﬁﬁﬁm%u“\
FOURERRIESNGERNLE AR
B-WBRESFTERARAEERERMD
BZEENREAER UBBEEREBER
FERBOHREA -

AEBNREMELFEIERATFERER
ME-E - FRE-ERLEEALEL -
EHFADENLFER DENKSREE
RaREERRE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 i 2 = F— "F+_A=+—HIEFE

17. Investment Properties/Investment 17. REV ¥ EERENE w
Propertles under Construction (continued)
Valuation Significant unobservable
technique(s) input(s) Weighted average price
B 5 9T BERTUEERAKIE In¥gEF19E
Shopping mall located in Market approach  Price per square metre of gross  Retail portion: RMB6,800 sgm
Yancheng, the PRC floor area which derived from

the shopping mall area, using
direct market comparable
and taking into account of
adjustments on location

iz 7 FR B B 3 T ) 7 0 M55 RERBESEREEMENEG TEHY - FAHK
FHAKER KAEET AR%68007T
3% LI 5T R L B A B

During the second half of the year ended 31 December REBEEZE_Z-—RFT_A=T—HLFET
2016, the Group has started to construct a hotel. The FE O AEBEHRBEZE —FBE EEK
investment properties under construction was in progress BEMEDEREF AEHBR =T —tF
and is expected to be completed in year ended 2017 and is FIETE LW IEK AT ER »

carried at cost.
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e B S R Y A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 i 2 = F— "F+_A=+—HIEFE

18. At ERE

18. Available-For-Sale Investment

B kBB E AR A A (Yancheng City
Yongheng Properties Co., Ltd*)
(“Yongheng”)

On 31 December 2012, the Group entered into a conditional
agreement with one of its major trade debtors (the “Debtor”)
whereby the Debtor would transfer to the Group its 95%
equity interest in Yongheng which sole assets are two
parcels of land in the PRC, and would assign its
shareholder’s loan of RMB111,271,000 therein, in lieu of
settlement for certain trade debts due to the Group (the “1st
Agreement”).

Concurrent with the 1st Agreement, the Group also entered
into another conditional agreement to acquire the remaining
5% equity interest in Yongheng from the non-controlling
interest therein for a cash consideration of RMB400,000 (the
“2nd Agreement”).

On 22 March 2013, the Group agreed to transfer 85%
equity interest in Yongheng together with 85% of the
shareholder’s loan for a total consideration of
RMB252,968,000 (the “Consideration”) to E&i ri 8 E sk
ZEHITEAMRET AR (Yancheng City Hongji Construction
Installation Engineering Company Limited*) (“Hongji
Construction”). As at 31 December 2015, the consideration
receivable from Hongji Construction was amounted to
RMB70,774,000 which included outstanding principal of
RMB57,968,000 and accumulated interest payable of
RMB12,806,000 (see Note 21). The amount was fully repaid

during the year ended 31 December 2016.

BEipmkEEXARQA ([FKED

W-EBE——HF+-HA=+—H A&£ECH
H—Z2FEEBZEBEHRATEBADI LB K
HhE BHEBSASRAEEEEENE
BMkEBERBRAR([KE] EE—FE
REPE M) 2 95% AR #E - R
EEFRHBRREERARE111,271,0007T ©
REEENASENETESER(E—H
el o

FIVE—ENRE  NEBIREILS —
MEGEHZEAB TR ESREREKE
#% N5% AR - IR & K (E AR AR 400,0007T
(Bt eE]) -

e

N—E—=F=F-+-H AEBEREH
H O 5k 1B H85% A% 1 i [F185% Ik 3 & 3k 82
ETHEMBEREELTRIRARSETAR
(IEEEE]  BREAR ARY252,968,000
TIREDI=mHBE) R=_2FT—AF
+ZA=+—HB BEEZENEBERA
AR ¥70,774000tr ERFREBEEX S A
R ¥57,968,000T ' EF B2 F B AR K
12,806,000 7L (B M 5£21) e L &2 =T — N &
T A=t RALFE2BEEE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 i 2 = F— "F+_A=+—HIEFE

18. Available-For-Sale Investment (continued)

19.

B ok iEBEZE AR A A (Yancheng City
Yongheng Properties Co., Ltd*)
(“Yongheng"”) (Continued)

As at 31 December 2015, the amount of RMB20,921,000
represented 15% equity interest in Yongheng measured at
cost less impairment. The Directors were of the opinion that
the fair value could not be measured reliably because there
was no quoted market price in an active market and the
range of reasonable fair value estimates was so significant.
Such equity interest was disposed to an independent third
party during the year ended 31 December 2016 at its
carrying amount.

As at 31 December 2015, the shareholder’s loan to
Yongheng of RMB14,804,000 included in “accounts and
other receivables” (see Note 21) was unsecured, interest-
free and had no fixed repayment term. During the year
ended 31 December 2016, the shareholder’s loan was fully
repaid.

BRI T IRE R AR 2 A (Sponge City
Investment Co., Ltd.*) (“Sponge City")

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
entered into an agreement with a third party to invest
RMB12 million in Sponge City, a private company
incorporated in the PRC, for 2.4% equity interests.
Investment cost of RMB6 million was paid during the year.
The Group subsequently disposed the investment to another
third party at cost during the year. Accordingly, the RMB6
million was received upon disposal of interests in Sponge City.

Deposit Paid for Acquisition of
Property, Plant and Equipment

Included in the deposit paid for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment, amount of RMB70,000,000 (2015:
RMB70,000,000) represents the full payment for acquiring
an office in the PRC for further development of
environmental protection dredging business. The Group is in
the process of obtaining the relevant property use rights
certificates. Accordingly, the amounts are classified as
deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment.

*  For indentification purpose

18. I HHERE @

19.

By mkEEXARAF (FKED

(&)

W_ZE—RAE+-_A=+—B ARK
20,921,000 JT¥8 BA AKX 2SR R (B RF = 89 3k (B
15% R E-EEARA AL FEE LA EH
E HREFEMSPRIRERETE A
BAFEMGTHEREE  FTUKEIS%MHE
B KARESE - HE T —RF+
ZA-Tt+—BHLFE ZERBEEEERAEE
EFWEEABIYE=H -

RZE—RAFE+-A=+—8B" st ATEWK
BR AR K B B U s (R 5E21) B9 IR 3R\ 3k
15 & 5 AR 14,804,000 T I - |2 -
BTERHR -2 "F+-A=+
—BIFE BERERZIHEE-

BREBTRERDERAR (4%
i )

HE-_Z—XR"F+-_A=+—BLFE"
AEBEBEFE=FFILHBE MABEFEMKZ
M FLARRE 4B TR E A R % 12,000,000
T 1H2.4% A FRNEFIREKAARE
6,000,0007T c FWN - AEBEEERAS —F=
FURAHERE - Bt HESHEHTH
1% - W EI AR %6,000,0007T °

WIEME BERKENTH
B

WHEYE BEERRKBEIZFNZESBENE
A R ¥70,000,000c( T —HF: AR
70,000,0007T) ' 5 RE— T ERIBRI AL E
B E - EERPRORAETMIAH
PR -AEBEFEESHBNEEGERBESE
E-FHit 2EIHABEDE BEMNXR
HEIEZARIZSE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 i 2 = F— "F+_A=+—HIEFE

20. DelLeIrred Tax Assets/Deferred Tax 20 EEEBBEE ELEHEES
Liabilities

The following are the major deferred tax assets and (deferred UWTRAFERBAFENEIEZECHRABEL
tax liabilities) recognised and movements thereon during the MEBEEAELELERBEERE)  ULKHEHES :

current and prior year:

Fair value

adjustment

of property,

Allowance plant and

for equipment

doubtful on acquisition
debt of subsidiaries Tax losses Others Total

Wi 5 Bt

DR Y -

HWEREHE
RERE LTEHAE HEEB Hit BEr
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBFTRT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT

At 1January 2015 R=—Z— R F

—H—H 7,106 (17,753) 3,074 (3,074) (10,647)
Charged to profit st A8%s
or loss (Note 10)  (Kfz£10) 93,248 1,707 2,944 (2,944) 94,955

At 31 December WRZ-ZT—FHE

2015 +=—A=+—H 100,354 (16,046) 6,018 (6,018) 84,308
Charged to profit 5t A38%s

or loss (Note 10)  (fifz£10) 2,969 1,679 — — 4,648
At 31 December WHR—F—N4&

2016 +=—A=+—H 103,323 (14,367) 6,018 (6,018) 88,956
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 i 2 = F— "F+_A=+—HIEFE

20. Deferred Tax Assets/Deferred Tax

Liabilities (continued)

Other temporary differences mainly represent the temporary
differences arising from the construction costs capitalized in
investment properties under construction which were
deductible for tax purpose in the year those costs incurred.
The Group had no significant unprovided deferred tax
during the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2016.

At the end of the reporting period, the aggregate amount
of temporary differences associated with undistributed
earnings of subsidiaries for which deferred tax liabilities have
not been recognised was RMB269,155,000 (2015:
RMB280,314,000). No liability has been recognised in
respect of these differences because the Group is in a
position to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that such
differences will not be reversed in the foreseeable future.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax loss of RMB84,684,000 (2015: RMB62,395,000). A
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of tax
losses of RMB24,072,000 (2015: RMB24,072,000). No
deferred tax asset has been recognised for the remaining tax
loss of RMB60,612,000 (2015: RMB38,323,000) due to
unpredictability of future profit streams.

20 EEHRBEEE EEREBEERE

(&)

HpEREERITEREEREURHERN
BERAREENERUEEZR TRENE
HERAUAK BE-_T-—HAFR_T—
NETZA=+—RHILEFE AEEEEX
BEEFTISHR

RREBMR BZSEVTERRECHEAG
ZHBRARZAPEANEBEE ZBREEZER
A ANRB269,155000L (—E—HF: A
R #280,314,0007T) ° M 7 7 & & A 4% &l i
REEMBORE MZSEEEARTR
BRI gD AT ERZEEZHRR

(=
=]

o

RBEEBAR AEB 2 ARADAMBEEEA
A R 84,684,000t ( —ZF —HF: AR
#62,395,000L)c —THABBMEBEEE Z A
R #24,072000( ZE — A F: AR
24,072,0007C) WIEER B EEC EHER ° B
P SR TEOB R 2 0 B SRR - M R A TR
HE B ARKE0,612,00T(ZE—HE: A
R #38,323,00070) RIELERIBEE °
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 i 2 = F— "F+_A=+—HIEFE

21. Accounts and Other Receivables 21. EWWEBRF R HEAb FEURFX
2016 2015
—E—-RE —E—RHEF
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®TR ARBTTT

Non-current: JEBNHA -
Accounts receivable, net of allowance FEUTBR FX - FOBR RER B S

for doubtful debts (notes (i) and (i) (BT 22 3) %% (i) 88,090 184,933
Value-added tax recoverable (note (iv)) Al Y [B] 3% (& 4 (F a2 Giv) 1,797 1,705
Shareholder’s loan to Yongheng REFKENKREER

(defined in Note 18) (EZE ALK 18) — 14,804
Others HAb — 5,000

89,887 206,442
Current: B HA :
Accounts receivable, net of allowance FEURBR 3K - B RER BB

for doubtful debts (note (i) and (ii)) (B a3) % (i) 1,272,936 936,591
Bills receivable (note (iii)) & W = AR (B 72 (i) 4,312 11,845
Government financial incentive & RS B B B B (Y 2 7)

receivables (Note 7) 10,407 21,168
Deposits and prepayments Ze RFEMNRIE 40,643 31,828
Value-added tax recoverable (note (iv)) Al Y [B] 3% (& 4 (Ff &L (iv) — 5,190
Consideration and accumulated interest ~ FEUCEEZER B R 2158

receivable from Hongji Construction (KrzE18)

(Note 18) — 70,774
Loan receivables (note (v)) FE W E (M A (v) — 95,000
Others H Aty 8,210 8,589

1,336,508 1,180,985

1,426,395 1,387,427
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 i 2 = F— "F+_A=+—HIEFE

21. Accounts and Other Receivables
(Continued)

Notes:

(U]

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines its credit limits
based on reputation of the customers within the industry.

The Group prepares an aged analysis for its accounts receivable
based on the dates when the Group and the customers agreed
on the quantum of the services provided, as evidenced by
progress certificates. Periodic statements are issued and agreed
by the customers for the work performed and services rendered
for the customers. Most of the contracts require the customers to
make monthly progress payments with reference to the value of
work completed (typically 55% to 85% of the value of work
completed in the previous month) within thirty days after the
issuance of the progress certificate. According to these contracts,
the remaining balance (15% to 45% of the value of work
completed) is to be paid by the customers within thirty to sixty
days after the project is completed and accepted by the
customers and the customers receive payment from the project
owners.

The aged analysis of the Group’s accounts receivable, prepared
based on the dates of certification of work done, which
approximate the respective revenue recognition dates (net of
allowance for accounts receivable), at the end of each reporting
period is as follows:

Aged analysis of the Group’s accounts receivable

21. EWEBER A & H b FE L K )

At

(0]

RERERHEPA  ARBEREPRITH
ANBEFHEZEEEPNEEERRRER
EEREE -

AEBERAEEEZTFEHERAMIRERE
ENAH(HEEEETRH)FEREBKERN
IR - HRARKRCEFRECETHIR
kAEFRENREMEAETFEHL - KD A
AEREFPFRBHEEEER -TERZERK
ITREEBESALAZTKNIEEENS%E
85% )X ABKEENR - RIEZEER 85
(B TR EBEMIS%E45%) HEFRER T
B EENE FEERER A ARBREE =
+EXR+BERZN -

REREAR BREIRZTKEZBBZRENAR
(BEENHBEENERA) MAERN A E
T LS B R (HT0 B T AR SR8 488) O R ik 20 AT 40

R

7% 8% (8 Y FE WK BR SRR R 40 A

2016 2015

—E-XE —ET—RF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TR ARETT

0-30 days 0E30K 117,338 139,071
31-60 days 31E 60X 66,517 39,044
61-90 days 61ZE 90X 69,072 43,225
91-180 days 91 £ 180K 101,847 117,006
181-365 days 181 365K 212,753 385,008
1 year-2 years 1FEF25F 433,730 259,986
Over 2 years HBiE2F 359,769 138,184
1,361,026 1,121,524
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 i 2 = F— "F+_A=+—HIEFE

21. Accounts and Other Receivables
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(U]

(Continued)

Included in the accounts receivables balance is retention money
of approximately RMB180,000,000 (2015: RMB155,000,000) as
at 31 December 2016.

The amount of accounts receivables which were past due based
on the terms of contracts, as at the end of the reporting period
but for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss is
analysed as follows:

Aging of accounts receivable from due date which were
past due but not impaired

21. EWEBR A & H b FE L K )

Hfat - (8)

0 &

167

RZB-—RETZA=Z+—H BREZ&EH
BRERE S ARM180,000000T(=F — 1

F : AR #155,000,0007T) °

RBSHRCAH(ZANFHRE D) BELAEHE

I B AT PR (E S 1R AR 2 FE AR

RAWWT

B 25 A B 8 58 ARO8 (B B9 B WOR Y AR iR

2016 2015

—E-XE —ET—RF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T R ARBTFT

0-30 days 0E30K — —
31-60 days 31E 60X 43,262 26,821
61-90 days 61ZE 90X 64,564 32,456
91-180 days 91 £ 180K 110,339 147,108
181-365 days 181 365K 233,189 247,799
1 year-2 years 1FEF25F 313,236 210,382
Over 2 years HBiE2F 259,527 115,651
1,024,117 780,217

The Group does not hold any collateral over the above balances.

The impairment losses recognised on receivables are individual
trade receivables that are past due at 31 December 2016 and
2015 and the management of the Group believes that these
amounts are unlikely to be recovered based on past collection
history of each customers.

AN B Ll A RS A AR

HRELFEARBNREEEAR T —REFR
“E-hAF+T-A=t+—BHEBHNENES
RWEDT RAEEERERR REEEFR

BB EWREL S R EFKEAA

Bed @ -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 i 2 = F— "F+_A=+—HIEFE

21. Accounts and Other Receivables
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(U]

(Continued)

Included in accounts receivables as at 31 December 2016 was the
principal amount of approximately RMB68,303,000 (31
December 2015: RMB68,303,000) due from a customer of which
the related dredging project has been suspended since January
2015 due to change in use of relevant reclaimed areas by the
Government. The customer has signed an agreement with the
Group to repay RMB40,000,000 before 31 December 2016 but
failed to fulfill the payment. Accordingly, allowance of doubtful
debts of RMB68,303,000 (2015: RMB49,259,000) was
recognised as at the end of the reporting period.

Included in accounts receivables as at 31 December 2016 was the
principal amount of approximately RMB30,434,000 (31
December 2015: RMB34,585,000) due from a customer which
the dredging project was started during the year and is still in
progress as at 31 December 2016 while the repayment of
progress billings fell behind schedule. Considering the payment
pattern, the progress of the project and the creditability of the
customer, allowance of doubtful debts of RMB10,728,000 (2015:
RMB3,458,000) was recognised as at 31 December 2016.

Included in accounts receivables as at 31 December 2016 was the
principal amount of approximately RMB428,236,000 (31
December 2015: RMB602,702,000) due from customers who are
large state-owned enterprise or local governments which the
respective projects were already completed for more than one
year. Despite there is no dispute with the customers on the
amounts due, the repayment slowed down significantly during
current year when compared with previous years. Considering
the latest repayment pattern and the expected repayment dates
of respective customers, allowance of doubtful debts of
RMB349,798,000 (2015: RMB364,235,000) was recognised at
end of reporting period.

21. EWER AR R E b B WX )

Hfat - (8)

(0]

RoZE—RNFEF+-_B=+—-HEKEXBE
El—2EF(HEERABEEEBE -2 —h1F
—ARARFEREBRASENAEMEE)
ZRIEARS# AR ¥68,303,000T (Z T —HE
+=-A=+—8: AK%68,303,0007T) ° % &
FHEEAREECHEITWHE UWR-ZT—X F+=
A=+—RAIEEL A R%¥40,000,0007T © B
REBRMNH - Bk - RERE M A K% 68,303,000
T(ZZT—FHE: AR%49,259,0007T) 2 R R
EHIKRMER -

R-E—RNE+_A=Z+—"AHNEKRERE
FEK—2FFP(ERAZAEERFARBER
—E—XF+ZA=Z+—BIHEET mi#
EREEZEEREE)ZRBELAESHARE
30,434,000 (ZE—RAFE+_A=+—H8: A
R #34,585,00070) - E B E A HEN - BB #
EREMEFPHNAEE RZTE—XR"F+=ZA
=+ —HEHRAREEE AR10,728,0007T
(ZZ=—HF : AR¥3,458,0007T) °

RZE—RNE+_AZ+—BNREKRERSRE
BR—E2BF(BAMBEADER A BT N
—FULHEEEMEFERT) ZRBREH
AR #428,236,000c(—E—HE+ A=+
—H: AR#602,702,0007T) - @& M E P Y
REMNRBTEFZ ERBEFEMAL R
HESTFERPERE - EEIFOMNERE
AREHEREFNEHEXRAS  REEHERS
R R OE B E AR 349,798,000t (= ZF —H
& AR %364,235,0007T) °



Annual Report 2016 —ZE—NFEER 169

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B S R Y A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 i 2 = F— "F+_A=+—HIEFE

21. Accounts and Other Receivables
(Continued)

21. EWER AR R HE b B WX )

Notes: (Continued)

Hfat - (8)

(U]

(i)

(Continued)

Included in accounts receivables as at 31 December 2016 was the
principal amount of approximately RMB8,948,000 (31 December
2015: RMBS8,948,000) due from customers which the related
dredging projects were completed for more than one year and
the receivables were past due. As there is no subsequent
settlement during the year ended 31 December 2016, the
amounts were fully provided at end of reporting period.

(0]

(%)

R-ZZE—REF+-_A=+—"BNEKEZE
BREKEEF(R—FNL ERBEHREEED
EINRERFBERSE) 2 RBEBASHARE
8,948,000t (ZFE—HE+_A=+—H: A
R ¥8,048,0007T) s HRREBE-T—RF+=
B=+—HLFETBEEET Z2EER
REHREEHAEE -

Movement in allowance for doubtful debts FEREBEST
2016 2015
—E—-XF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET R ARBF T
1 January —H—H 425,900 49,259
Charged to profit or loss HF A 11,877 376,641
31 December +=-—A=+—H 437,777 425,900

Non-current accounts receivable, except retention money due
after one year from the end of reporting period, represents
amounts due from several customers for contract works, for
which the contracts include clauses for extended payment terms
beyond one year. During the year, interest income calculated at a
rate of 10% per annum (2015: 10% per annum) of about
RMB11,879,000 (2015: RMB14,781,000) was recognised.

(ii)

JERNEAE R R (B A M B R BRT —F & 5
HREBSIMERKETEPRPZAHNIR
RIE - MEBAGOHEEATHNRETERER
—FIZER-RFRN RFEFEI0%(ZF —
AF:FRNEI0%) FTENFEBRADARE
11,879,000t (= F — M & : A K% 14,781,000
TL)EERER -
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21. Accounts and Other Receivables
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

The aged analysis of the Group's bills receivable, presented based
on the relevant dates of certification of work done, is as follows:

21. EWER AR R E b B WX )

Hfat - (8)

(iii)

ENRTEEZHRBERHMES 2 NEEEK
EERNOREONOT

Aged analysis of the Group’s bills receivable NEBREKEERRB DN
2016 2015
—E-XF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARBF T
0-30 days 0&E30K 1,500 —
31-60 days 30£61K — —
61-90 days 61 290K 2,100 3,051
91-180 days 91 £ 180K 712 8,794
Over 180 days B 8 180K — —
4,312 11,845

VAT paid of approximately RMB1,797,000 (2015: RMB1,705,000)
by the Group in connection with its construction-in-progress
could be set-off against future value added tax payable generated
from the Group. The amount is not expected to be recovered
within one year from the end of reporting, and is accordingly
classified as non-current.

On 16 May 2015, the Company entered into an agreement (the
“Investment Agreement”) to set up a wholly owned subsidiary
which principally conducts capital financing business. In late
December 2015, the subsidiary lends out RMB95,000,000 to
corporate borrowers which are not connected with the Group.
Loans are repayable in one year, carrying fixed interest and are
guaranteed personally by the directors of the corporate
borrowers.

The Group assessed the potential borrower’s credit quality by
investigating their historical credit record and defines their credit
limits on individual basis. Recoverability and credit limit of each
borrowers are reviewed by the Group regularly. Considering the
credit quality of individual borrowers, no allowance on loan
receivables was recognised.

The loan receivables were fully recovered during the year ended
31 December 2016.

(iv)

(v)

AEBEGREFERIRAIAMNEEROARE
1,797,0007c (= E — A F : AR #1,705,0007T)
AR K S 7N £ [ HE TR E A M R R B B B
e ARBHZERBEBRARKEHRLET—
FRUE - M BEAEFERD-

RZZE—RAFRA+B  ARAFREIZ—EHW
H(HREBB DAL —H2EWBRG
ATENFECREEK R-T—RF+=
ATH ZWBAREREASEMEREN
RNAREBRAE T AR ¥95,000,0007T - B A
R—FEREERE RETHNXRFEBLHQAERK
AREEEDEAER-

N

AEEERBHEEEBRANBEEELEN
HEEEEAEYREHNEEREEFRRE K
SEEEMEXRATREEREERANEER
BoREBEABKANEELEER  HiER
RIEW B R -

HE-_Z-XF+A=+—HLEFE ERX
FEW R E 2 EBm Uy
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22. Bank Balances and Cash and Pledged 22. $R{T@& & REBE SN CEHE T

Bank Deposits

Included in pledged bank deposits as at 31 December 2016
was deposits of RMB 15,000,000 pledged to secure a bank
borrowing which is to be matured in 2017. Accordingly, the
amount is classified as current assets. At the end of the
reporting period, the deposits carry fixed interest rate of 2.8%
(2015: 2.8%) per annum. The pledged bank deposits will be
released upon the settlement of corresponding bills payables
and bank borrowings.

Bank balances that are denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the relevant group
companies are set out below:

B

MNRZZ—-RE+_A=+—Hxt ADHERE
TR 8 77 5 A B # 15,000,000 7 J5 B 1E #
RZFE—+FRHRRTEROEF - Bt
ZYBOMAIIRHEE-BI 28O
ERBAE - RREHBER TRIREEFH
R28% (T T —FHF :28%):T 8 - D HIFR
THEFBERERESZEERBITEEL SR
R o

bA7 B 2 0 30 K DA SO B A A
MRITEBHIIMT :

2016 2015

ZEB-RE¥ —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T AR T

United States Dollar (“US$") E(EZ)) 45 1,541
Hong Kong Dollar (“HK$") Br(ET) 512 3,370
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23. Accounts and Other Payables 23. ENRAREMESRK
2016 2015
—EB-RF —ZE—hfF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARBTTT

Accounts payables JE 1 BR 3R
Sub-contracting charge aR2E-9:¢ 132,044 178,635
Fuel cost HREEBK AR 36,080 34,071
Repair and maintenance HIERRE 15,270 12,100
Others HAtb 5,703 4,970
189,097 229,776
Bills payable & R 1% — 7,572
Other payables H A & < 5RI8
Payable for property, plant and M - BB REEREMNRE
equipment 11,880 24,659
Payable for construction cost of EEREME KREMERR
investment properties under DN NE
construction/investment properties 115,853 69,863
Accrual other taxes JE 5t H th 754 18 111,630 100,192
Accrual staff salaries and welfare EEr B TH < kiE A 26,576 22,405
Receipts in advance T8 YR IE 9,036 5,550
Interest on the Bonds &5 A B (207 & 2 K 71 28)
(as defined in Note 28) 4,334 3,043
Others Hib 16,740 34,610
296,049 260,322

485,146 497,670
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23.

Accounts and Other Payables (continued) 23. FE{TBR A 2 H b FE 3% ()
The aged analysis of the Group’s accounts payables REBNSHEHRRIRLEZERHPZN (DB
presented based on the invoice date, except for sub- EBHBN HNIZEEZZHHEY)HNE
contracting charge which is presented based on dates of the NERBOERESTOT
progress certificates, as at the end of each reporting period
is as follows:
2016 2015
—E-XEF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R AR T
0-30 days 0Z230K 45,771 56,848
31-60 days 31 £60K 12,784 5,786
61-90 days 61290k 10,324 13,381
91-180 days 91 £ 180K 22,194 15,809
Over 180 days A 180K 98,024 137,952
189,097 229,776
24. Amounts Due to Directors 24 ENESNE
As at 31 December 2016, the balance represented advance R-ZE—RNF+_A=+—H" &K
from and emolument payable to certain directors of ERENETESENRAREMEHARE
approximately RMB1,981,000 (2015: RMB1,292,000) and 1,981,000 (= — A &F : AR ¥1,292,000)
an amount due to Mr. Liu of approximately RMB26,499,000 T0) K JE A 21 % A /9 FRIE 49 A IR 526,499,000
(2015: RMB17,806,000). All amounts are unsecured, T(ZZ—FHF: AR#¥17,806,0007T) ° FTH
interest-free, repayable on demand and non-trade in nature. ZERBHAEEER B - ARERERE
NIFESHUE -
Amounts Due to Non-Controlling 25. BT —RENEARFEERER

25.

Interests of a Subsidiary

All balances are non-interest bearing except for an amount
of approximately RMB11,645,000 as at 31 December 2016
(2015: RMB11,195,000) which is interest bearing at 12%
(2015: 6.25%). On 31 December 2016, certain non-
controlling interests agreed not to demand repayment of
RMB67,611,000 of the amounts due to them before January
2018 (2015: RMB85,533,000 of the amounts due to them
before January 2017). All amounts are unsecured and non-
trade in nature.

IE

FTEEGATHERE BREE_Z2— X F
TZA=+T—HHFRIELHARE11,645,000
T(ZZE—HRF: AR ®11,1950007T) %
1% (ZFE—HRF:625%):F B A R =
T—XNF+-_A=+—H8 BFFELEBREDS

RER-_ZE—N\F—AZAITEEREERE
NEREREARKEE7611,0000(ZFE— 1

TR ZE—tEF—AZRAENEEREA
#85,533,0007T) ° FT A % F N IEY B EIE
REIEE HMHEE o

F
K
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26. Bank Borrowings 26. RITEE
2016 2015
—EB—XKE —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBTTT

Secured bank borrowings BERBITEE
Payment schedule according to contractual 124 4918 X 88 7 48 © 1~ =&
repayment terms (note i) BrfE & (M)
Repayable within one year AR —FAER 485,215 708,707
Repayable in more than one year but not BN —F R BT BBMEEE
exceeding two years — 18,195
485,215 726,902
Unsecured bank borrowing that contains a i 7 78 f& & Sk (8 38 6§ 7 2 =
repayable on demand clause (note i) RIRTTEE (K7 aLii) — 7,698
485,215 734,600
Less: amount due for settlement within B —EREE B E
one year or contains a repayable on AEEKEB KK
demand clause HIE (485,215) (716,405)
— 18,195
Notes: K&t -
(i) The effective interest rates of the secured bank borrowings are 10) TEHNEEBETEEZ BRI E
set out in the following table:
2016 2015
—®-AF —T-E%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR AREBTT
Fixed interest at 6.4% in relation to the Bl =(EER TX)26.4%
Agreement as defined below (2015: 6.4%) TME(ZZE—RF :64%) 20,000 38,901
Fixed interest at 3.81% to 10.44% 3.81% % 10.44% & & F) 2
(2015: 2.0% to 7.8%) (ZZ—HF :20%£7.8%) 465,215 688,001
485,215 726,902
(i) The bank borrowing was unsecured, containing a repayable on (ii) RITESEAEER WEERERERBERL
demand clause and carrying interest at Hong Kong Interbank WEEBTRLEFRA([EERATRERS )M
Offer Rate (“HIBOR") plus 3.2%, with effective interest rate 32%HE HBE-E—AE+-_A=+—81t
ranged from 3.59% to 3.60% during the year ended 31 FEZEBEFENF3.59%FE3.60% °

December 2015.
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26. Bank Borrowings (continued) 26. RITIEE wm

On 31 July 2013, the Group entered into an agreement (the
“Agreement”) with a PRC financial institution (“Financial
Institution”) whereby the Group drew down
RMB85,000,000 from the Financial Institution (included in
bank borrowings) which is to be repayable by 16 quarterly
installments matured on 17 September 2017 with interest at
6.4% per annum.

As collaterals for the above financing,

(i)  The Group transferred the beneficial interests of one
of its dredgers (“Dredger”) to the Financial Institution;

(i) The Group placed a security deposit of RMB15 million
and pledged certain of its accounts receivables as
disclosed in Note 33 with the Financial Institution;

(i) Mr. Liu provided a personal guarantee for the due
performance of the Group’s obligations under the
Agreement; and

(iv)  The Company entered into a guarantee in favour of
the Financial Institution for the due performance of
the Group's obligations under the Agreement.

Upon discharging all the Group’s obligations under the
Agreement, the Financial Institution will return the
ownership title of the Dredger to the Group for a nominal
amount of RMB1. Despite the Agreement involves a legal
form of a lease, the Group accounted for the Agreement as
collateralised borrowing in accordance with the actual
substance of the Agreement.

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group’s bank
borrowings were supported by the corporate guarantees
given by Xiangyu PRC (defined in Note 38) and the
Company. The Group's bank borrowings to the extent of
RMB436,608,000 (2015: RMB605,785,000) were secured
by certain assets of the Group (see Note 33), a property
owned by a company in which Mr. Liu has beneficial interest
and personal guarantees provided by Mr. Liu and Ms. Zhou
respectively (see Note 35(ii)).

WNZZE—=ZF+tA=Z+—H AEEHEHE—FR
PRHSBEE((ZeRMEE DL —HiFH
([ZHmzED B AEERZSmEER
A R #85,000,0007T (5t ASRITEE) - A
RZZE—tFNAT+EHA6HRFTEE
FEAE64% -

R i@ EE M am

() AEEE RS R E— B
(TR ) P B 2 126

(i) A"EEBEZL2BBEBEFTAARE
15,000,000 T B {R 3& & » W % & Bh i
BERE T REKERR (WM 33 E)

(i) BIEERAEEMMETZHAEERT
&G R EAER: &

(v AATAXEEMBABETZIBEET
SEY LTS TY VL IND
IR -

RAKBERZMBHER THOMAREBERE
ZERMEBTEUAARBIINEREZESEMA
AEBEREZZRMOMAEE - BEZX W=
WRMEREER N BAKEREZ T Z
MERATHZHEIIESERER -

RZE—RFERE—RAF+_A=+—
B AEERTEEUDNFPIR(EERLN
FE38) RARRIEL M AR ERELF - A
EBEITEE AR®AL36,608,000L( = F
— R F: AR%6057850007T) AKXEBH
FTEE(BRILERETHEEESERN —
MARMEENYE)(RWiE33) ka ki
SERBLZITDRRENEAERCRH
35(ii)) EH 3 -
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27. Other Borrowings

7. HffE &

2016 2015
—E-REF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETx ARETFT
Unsecured other borrowings HihmEREE

Without fixed repayment term and EETEEHRRESES
classified as current liabilities mEAE 67,538 495
Classified as non-current liabilities SHEAEIRHAER 33,384 32,293
100,922 32,788

Included in the Group’s other borrowings, approximately
RMB88,868,000 (2015: RMB24,408,000) carried fixed
interest rates ranged from 10% to 12% % per annum (2015:
6.25%). Other than that, the remaining other borrowings of
the Group are interest-free. All of the Group's other
borrowings are unsecured, without fixed repayment term
and were borrowed from independent third parties. On 31
December 2016, certain counterparties agreed not to
demand repayment before January 2018 (2015: 31 January
2017) and accordingly, RMB33,384,000 (2015:
RMB32,293,000) due to these parties are classified as non-
current.

FFAREEHE A5 E 4 A K 88,868,000 T
—E—FHF: ARM24,408,0007T) L ETE
FEFEI0%E12%(ZF — HF :6.25%) 5t
Bolitbz i REBRGHEMEE TG
FE -FTEAEEBEMEBESABEER I
EETFTERRNABYIEZAER - R _Z
—R"E+-_A=t+—H HFHEFABET
TR_ZE-NF—A(ZE—RHF: T —
+tF-—A=+t—H)ZAEREEEGE "
It B ZEETH A B A R 33,384,000 7T
—E—FRF: AR¥32293,0007T) #5748
BIERBEE -
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28. Bonds Payable/Convertible Bonds/ 28. FE {4 & a /EJ BRES B]A
Derivative Financial Liabilities AR E E’ﬂﬁi@:ﬁﬂﬁ%

»“ﬁ

Embedded in Convertible Bonds

The Company issued unsecured convertible bonds (the
“Bonds"”) to CITIC Capital China Access Fund Limited (“CITIC")
at a total nominal value of HK$243,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB191,970,000) on 8 November 2013, carrying an interest
rate of 3% per annum with maturity date on 7 November
2016 (the “Original Maturity Date”). The convertible bond
holder has the option to either convert them into the
Company'’s ordinary shares at a conversion price of HK$2.7
per share, subject to anti-dilutive adjustments, at any time
after six months from the date of issue and up to the
maturity date, or to require the Company to redeem them
at 133.792% of the nominal value of the convertible bonds,
which amounts to approximately HK$325,115,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB290,818,000) (the “Original
Redemption Amount”), upon maturity. The issuer has no
right to early redeem the convertible bonds.

The convertible bonds contain two components, the host
debt component and the conversion option. The convertible
bonds are denominated in HK$, which is a currency other
than the Company’s functional currency. Therefore, the
conversion option embedded in the convertible bonds does
not recent in an exchange of a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instrument for a fixed amount of
cash. Accordingly, the conversion option is accounted for
separately as a derivative liability, which is not closely related
to the host debt component. The fair values of the debt
component and the derivative component were determined
at the date of issue. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
debt component is carried at amortised cost while the
derivative component is measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. The
effective interest rate of the debt component is 16.9%.

ARNBRZ—ZFTE—=F+— A /\H M@ATC
Capital China Access Fund Limited ([ CITIC J)
% 17 42 T 18 243,000,000/ T(EHE N AR
191,970,0007C ) By | | Al | R & H ([ &
) MBAEFE3% R_ZT—XANF+—A
+tHEBRINBE]D ZETRBRESFF
EARRBTEHEXEAZIHBEHTM
BFREEEU A BRESR27B (I R EE
EMHFELRABR)LBKARANEBER X
RE R ESRKA R BRI EF A EE D
133.792% & [@ #9325,115,0007% 7t (& 7 49
AR #290,818,0007) ([RisfER £ 5 ) (I
EITHFIREBERE) BITAEERFELDZ
LamikES -

AgRREFEamERD  BEEHHN R
B - AT MRE S I ABTTEHE - MB T
RARRINEEE AN EE - Btk - 7l
REFHBEETEABEHRENARFB
SRR TAXKBEETSRELRS Al
BRESRARIBITERE  EHIEK
%Bﬁﬂﬁ#%‘f)ﬁﬁl%ﬁ°1:’cf“*|3193&1/1$1,\n
T%E’J’\EFTEE"EM?EIHH o I HERIR
18 %5 2B 0 = #OF A AR {/TEI/\:'BT\H'J
BAFEFE A ?EE’J@EEAT@ & A FE
R BHBBNHNERMNER16.9%
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28. Bonds Payable/Convertible Bonds/
Derivative Financial Liabilities
Embedded in Convertible Bonds
(Continued)

The Group had not settled the Original Redemption Amount
and the last interest payment on the Original Maturity Date
to CITIC. Overdue interest of approximately HK$945,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB840,000) was incurred.
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group and
CITIC entered into a series of agreements that CITIC agreed
to a) extend the maturity from the Original Maturity Date to
14 March 2017 and b) waive a sum of US$2 million
(equivalent to approximately RMB13,781,000) by reducing
the aggregated amounts of Original Redemption Amount
and interests payables to approximately HK$275,415,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB246,381,000) (the “Reduced
Redemption Amount”), subject to the Group’s payment of
US$5 million (equivalent to approximately RMB34.5 million)
to CITIC on or before 18 November 2016. Details of the
agreements are set out in the announcements of the
Company on 7 November 2016, 15 November 2016, 16
November 2016 and 16 December 2016.

Under the agreements, interest rates on the Reduced
Redemption Amount are as follows:

—RNF+ZA=+—-BIEFE

28. EfS &% /1

R B
T IR 5 19 57 4

T

REAEmA - ANEEERBATCE R
WHELD SR N 5% EHNB - -BEBFENE
945,000 7t (18 & 7 % A R #840,0007T ) °

BE-_ZT—X&F+_A=+—HBILFE K
%Eﬂmmﬂﬁ—%ﬂ%ﬁ’mmﬂ%w
BEASEAEREEREERESR —+

—A+mAE: &b)%ﬁﬁ’az,ooo,ooo%n(ﬁz.?
RH AR 13,781,0007T) AR A R 14 B8 0 &
B N AR B E #9275,415,00058 7T (M E 7
Zﬁ)\E%ﬁ%246381 0007n>(fAﬁzLH“[] ') -

HEAREEAER —~NF+—A+NHBH=HZ
wﬁcmcﬁﬁawomm%m(ﬁ;ﬁM@AE

?

#34,500,00070) ° W rF B E A A2 F B H
B_E—X"E+—AtB —E—XREt+—
At+RB ZE—X"EF+—A+AEHEZ=Z

—A"NFE+ZA+RRBzR%E -

REHZ  BOBESBEOMNEMT

Interest rate

per annum
Period M FR=
From 15 November 2016 and up to 14 December 2016 —Z— X F+—A+HHZE
—E-RE+ZA+HT™A 13%
From 15 December 2016 and up to 14 March 2017 —E-XRE+_A+RHRBEZE
—+tF=A+WmAH 15%
From 15 March 2017 and up to the actual repayment —E—tF=AThHAERIEE
date of the Reduced Redemption Amount (together CHENERERBBHCGERFMA
with all default interest) (note) BAONE) (KaF) 18%

Note: Such default interest shall accrue on a day to day basis and be
calculated on the basis of a 365-day calendar year on the
Reduced Redemption Amount and compounded on a monthly
basis.

ZERDEREEERENTE KRS EF365

RAEESRARASRRAERER -

Hiat -
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28. Bonds Payable/Convertible Bonds/
Derivative Financial Liabilities
Embedded in Convertible Bonds
(Continued)

Under the agreements, the Bonds are supported by personal
guarantees of Mr. Liu and Ms. Zhou (as defined in Note 33),
and a dredger owned by the Group with carrying amount of
approximately RMB253,985,000 as at 31 December 2016.

Furthermore, the conversion option under the Bonds was
removed under the agreements (i.e. no longer exercisable

28.

—RNF+ZA=+—-BIEFE

%#/EH% BREH # A
BREHNITEEREE @

eIl
»“ﬁzt

BEWHD ZEFRILENEALLEARE
ROOMFESBAAT) RAEEMEBENR =
Z-RNEF+ A=+ BEEENAARE
253,985,000 7T A — AE 2R M 1EEIR o

R 7

eSS % BEFMEREREREIT

BETE)-

anymore).
The Bonds recognised in the consolidated statement of NG EBBEIRRERER 2l ESTE W
financial position are calculated as follows: T:
Debt Derivative
component component Total
BEXHD TEIEHSD #at
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREEFIT AREBETFIT AREFTT
Convertible bonds, AMERES RZT—AF
at 1 January 2015 —H—H 204,220 14,423 218,643
Amortisation using effective R E R A=A
interest method (Note 9) (Kt7E9) 37,608 — 37,608
Changes in fair value $1 &) — (7,921) (7,921)
Interest settlement MBE#=E (5,856) — (5,856)
Exchange realignment PE 5 38 & 13,581 528 14,109
Convertible bonds, AR ES R-_E—AF
at 31 December 2015 +=—A=+—H 249,553 7,030 256,583
Amortisation using effective B A B R 2= A 5
interest method (Note 9) (Kr7E9) 30,668 — 30,668
Interest settlement T B EE (3,150) — (3,150)
Changes in fair value N EEEF — (7,030) (7,030)
Accrued overdue interests FEETH HEB A B 840 — 840
Amounts waived under the BIEEZ 775 Eﬁl EWNEE
Framework Agreements (13,781) — (13,781)
Settlement under the agreements IR IEE R R E L H (34,453) — (34,453)
Exchange realignment PE H, =& 16,704 — 16,704
Reduced Redemption amount )5 2> & 6] & 28 246,381 — 246,381
Accrued interests FE & FI & 4,334 = 4,334
Bonds payable, ERES RZZT—RF
at 31 December 2016 +=A E—f——EI 250,715 — 250,715
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28. Bonds Payable/Convertible Bonds/ 28.
Derivative Financial Liabilities
Embedded in Convertible Bonds
(Continued)

2| ot
e
=
i
i
&

The Bonds at the end of the reporting periods are RIEBERKEESEZY BT :
represented by:

2016 2015
—E-XEF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBT T

Interest payable within one year included s AEMEMNFIBZ —FA

in other payables &5 FI) B 4,334 3,043
Bonds payable ERES 246,381 —
Convertible bonds AR E S — 246,510

250,715 249,553
On 21 March 2017, the Group and CITIC entered into RZE—+F=ZA=Z+—8 KTEERKATC
another agreement to further amend the terms of the Bonds RN IR AE — B EETE RN 542
as set out in Note 42. BB FH K o
Fair values of the derivative component (representing the TTETERMY BAIRKRER 2 BRKRE) R
conversion options of the convertible bonds) at 31 E-—HF+_A=1+—"HHNAFEBHBL
December 2015 are determined using Binomial Model by HEMEZ-_EEXERNT2HHAE

independent valuer, with inputs as follow:

31 December

2015

—ZE—hfF

+-A=+—H

Valuation date share price 18 A HRE HK$1.50 37T
Conversion price HinE HK$2.70 & 7T
Time to maturity Bl A B ] 0.86 years &
Risk-free rate 4 3, B F =R 0.195%
Volatility A 82%
Dividend yield of the Company VNN ) 0.00%
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RMB
Number of equivalent
shares Amount amount
AR
B3 8B Co L] EE:3%:
‘000 HK$'000 RMB’000
T FET ARETFIT
Ordinary Shares of HK$0.10 each & B {H0.107% 7T &9 & 1 %
Authorised EE
Balance at 1 January 2015, RZE—RF—H—H"
31 December 2015 and 2016 —hE+ A
=t+t—HRZZE—RHF
+ZA=+—BM&ER 10,000,000 1,000,000 N/A
Issued and fully paid ERITRABE
Balance at 1 January 2015 RZZE—RF—H—HWE
£R 855,600 85,560 71,592
Placing of shares (note i) Bt & 1% (B i) 376,464 37,646 30,453
Balance at 31 December 2015 R-_E—AF
+ - A=1+t—HH & 1,232,064 123,206 102,045
Placing of shares (note i) i & A& 15 (M i) 246,000 24,600 21,438
Balance at 31 December 2016 RZTE—RE
+TZA=+—BM&ER 1,478,064 147,806 123,483
Notes: et -
(i) During the year ended 31 December 2015, the share placings of (i) BHE-_ZT-—AF+-A=+—RHBLEFE" ' K

171,120,000 shares, 97,340,000 shares and 108,004,000 shares
of the Company at a placing price of HK$1.38, HK$1.13 and
HK$1.15 per share respectively were completed. The aggregate

net proceeds from the placing was

approximately HK$467.0

million (equivalent to approximately RMB379.0 million).

(i) On 24 November 2016, the share placings of 246,000,000 shares

of the Company at a placing price of

HK$0.35 were completed.

The net proceeds from the placing was approximately HK$86.1
million (equivalent to approximately RMB75.0 million), which was
used to acquire land use rights and property and machinery as

set out in Note 15 and Note 16.

(i)

A Tnﬁﬁzﬁz@a%ﬁtﬂxﬂﬂﬁmss%m
B B € 171,120,000 f& % 15 -
fic &

7T M 1.15% T 9
97,340,000 % f% {5 % 108,004,000 % A% 17 °
T8 7% 8 49 /467,000,000 7T (&
4 A R #379,000,0007T) °

ZHBFFR

R —

1.137%

RE+TZAZ+OA NRAEKIR

it & {8 5 I A% 19 0.357% Jt i & 246,000,000 f% A%
o BL & 2 #FT 15 318 F 58 #) 486,100,000 7

JT (& M4 A B #75,000,0007T)
bR ENR DRI E NS ]

16) °

AR EE
BB (FAM 15 R
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30. Disposal of a Subsidiary

On 9 March 2016, the Group disposed of its entire interests
in a wholly-owned subsidiary, JTEE BEEERLIEARA
A (Jiangsu Province Lugang Construction Project Co. Ltd.*)
(“Lugang”), which is PRC Operational Entity as set out in
Note 38 to independent third parties at a total consideration
of approximately RMB85.8 million. The consideration was
settled by offsetting against the amount due to Lugang in
full. In the opinion of the Directors, with reference to legal
opinion, the disposal does not have any impact on the
Group’s Contractual Arrangements as set out in Note 38 of
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2015. Details of the disposal are
set out in the announcement dated 9 March 2016.

The net assets of this disposed subsidiary and effect on cash
flows of the Group at the date of disposal were as follows:

30. HE—HEHEL A

RZE—ARNFZANB  AEERBYFE =
FHEER2EWBRAG I HEBBER
ITRERAB(EE] ArREEETE
BRI 22E s BRENAAR
#585,800,000 7T ° X & Jh & i & B 1 B B
REFEEMIT -EE2E5Z2EAER
B HEWAEBREHZ-_T—HF+_-A=
+—HIEFEZEAVISREM E38ATH 2
AEBRNANLTHITETMFZE - BEFS
HRBBMAE-_ZTZ—XNEZANBZAE -

REERH ZBHENBRARMNEEFE
EEAEBERSRENTENT

At
31 December
2016
R=ZB—XRF
+=A=+—H
RMB’'000
ARB TR
Consideration KRE 85,800
Less: Net assets disposal of: W EBEHEEEFME:
Goodwill RS 2,755
Property, plant and equipment M- WEREE 142
Trade and other receivables JE Ut BR 3Rk Kz A Uk 3R 97,999
Bank balances and cash RITHHBRIE S 8
Other payables EH i JE 1T 3K (39,354)
61,550
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — B A A8 s 24,250
Net cash inflow arising from disposal: HEEAMBESRAFE
Consideration KRE 85,800
Less: Waiver of amount due to Lugang T EA R S S B RE (85,800)
Less: Bank balances and cash disposal of 3 : B HERTEBRIRS (8)

(8
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31. Operating Leases

The Group as lessee

(i) Minimum lease payments paid

31. KEHE

AEBEFEREBEA
() BHREEERE

2016 2015
—E—-XRE —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARETTT
Minimum lease payments paid under  F RNRE L LHE X 8
operating leases during the year: HEMAEFE -
Office premises WRAEYHE 1,128 1,870
Transportation vessels 13 B4 M AR 3,741 6,805
4,869 8,675
(i) Minimum lease payment commitments (i) HREHEERERE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group was
committed to make the following future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases

for office premises which fall due as follows:

REREMR  AEBEAZERIENE
R AEMEN T ZHLEEERE
T PR R AR E B S

2016 2015

—E-RE —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETIT

Within one year —E R 929 1,100
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EZERF(BEEERE

M) 326 344

1,255 1,444

The leases for office premises are generally negotiated

for a term between one to ten years.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from chartered vessels earned during the year
was RMB6,208,000 (2015: RMB12,704,000). The chartered
vessels have committed tenants for the next one to two

years.

E o
AEBESEAA

}50

MAEYPEHENBERER 2T

FREMBEAMMBERNESKRABARE
6,208,000 (ZZE — R 4 : AR ¥ 12,704,000
T FrBAMMEEAHEE = _F0H
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32. Capital Commitments

32. EARRIE

2016 2015
—E-REF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARETFT
Capital commitments contracted but not & 5] #){B 3 K 5L B8 A T & 18
provided for relating to the following: IR B R E AR A E
Acquisition of property, plant and WHEMZE - BE R&E
equipment (note (iij) (K &2 (i) 118,809 3,059
Additions to investment properties under R E £ EIRE W E
construction — 73,347
Investment in a sino-foreign joint venture AR —XKA4NE S R FIH
in the PRC (note (i) ®E M) — 24,000
Investment in conducting capital financing & ETE S & B EK
business (note (ii) (Mt 32 (i) 7,122 7,122

Notes:

@

(i)

(iii)

Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated 21 October
2012, the Group has entered into a legally binding framework
agreement with a PRC company (“PRC Company”). Pursuant to
the agreement, the Group and the PRC Company agreed to take
steps to jointly incorporate a new enterprise in Hunan Province,
the PRC, for securing the projects of environmental management
and construction of infrastructure to be carried out in the
Qingshui Lake area, which is expected to last for about five years.
The Group withdrawn from the agreement upon mutual
agreement during the year ended 31 December 2016.

Pursuant to the Investment Agreement (see Note 20 (v)), the
proposed registered capital of US$20 million will be contributed
in proportion to the respective equity holdings of the Company
and two other investors of US$16 million, US$2 million and US$2
million respectively. As at 31 December 2016, capital of US$14.9
million was injected by the Group whilst the other two investors
are still in progress in obtaining approval from regulators for
capital injection.

During the year, the Group started to construct a hotel in
Yancheng, the PRC. Pursuant to the agreement, the constructions
are expected to complete at the end of 2017.

B

(U]

(i)

(iii)

BEAQRFTASHAEA-_ZT——#+A=-+—H
WAdGE AEEEHR-—FKBEAR(ZFEA
AIDFIMN—MEEEBINIERGE - BIEZ
Wi AEEEZFEARNRERERITHAF
BHmE HRFEMAYL —KEF QA AEES
RBEKPEBETZREEEREZERZE
B - EHEEBEABRERNAEF -AEER
HE-Z-—XRE+_A=+-BILFEELKE]H
RERHERE -

BEEERHE(LME220V) ZHEMER
20,000,000 T # BB AR A &k BN B ®E
HERE B 2B ES R L & 16,000,000 T
2,000,000 7T )2 2,000,000 7T « R =T — XN &F
+ZA=+—H" ' A&A2QFEF A14,900,0003%
T MBI EREENERETENFEES
P EYHE A o

FA- - ZEEMBEDREREZ-FEAESL -
REWHHE ZTREEFAR T —LtFFETK -
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33. Pledge of Assets 33. EEE

185

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets of
the Group were pledged to secure bank borrowings and
credit facilities granted to the Group during the year:

RBERR AEBCHEATEEERFA
BYAKENRITEEREEHENER:

2016 2015
—E-XE —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE TR ARE T
Dredgers included in property, plantand 123 (FIA W% - BiRE &

equipment HE) 958,777 624,104

Building included in property, plantand £ F (5| A¥ % - B&E K& #E)
equipment — 23,336
Prepaid land lease payments 8 5 £ #h FH #9 FR 85,660 95,105
Accounts receivables (note) Ji& W BR 3R (K 7E) — 19,044
Pledged bank deposits EEAIRITER 15,000 62,572
1,059,437 824,161

Note: Accounts receivables related to certain dredging projects which
were pledged to secure the Group’s bank borrowings. The banks
could exercise their rights over any outstanding accounts
receivables relating to the relevant dredging projects in the event
of the Group's breach of the terms of bank borrowings. As at 31
December 2016, outstanding accounts receivables relating to
these projects amounted to Nil (2015: RMB19,044,000) and the
related bank borrowings amounted to RMB17,415,000 (2015:
RMB38,901,000).

In addition, as at 31 December 2016, the Group’s bank
borrowing to the extent of RMB17,415,000 (2015:
RMB38,901,000) was secured by one of the Group's
dredgers with a carrying amount of RMB226,643,000 (2015:
RMB242,305,000) being held as a collateral. Details of such
bank borrowing are set out in Note 26.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s bank borrowings to
the extent of HK$116,899,000 (equivalent to
RMB97,231,105)) were supported by a guarantee provided
by China Merchant Bank Nanjing branch, which was in turn
secured by two parcels of land owned by Yongheng.

M EREREETHRABEEER MZEEED
HERURGBAEERTEE WAKEE
RERITHEE MR RIT 1T L 2248 B B
REEBEHEOTRAAREERIKERNER -
R-ZT—XRNFE+_A=+—8  B%%HAE
HENAREERENERAB(ZZS—RF: A
R #19,044,000T) R ERARITIEEAARKE
17,415,0007c (= ZF — A F : A K #38,901,000
JT) °

o R—ZFE—XNE+_A=+—8 & &
BAR®17,41500T(ZF—HF : AR
38,901,0007T) MIRTE E T B AN & B 35 1
BEHROEBTDEASAR226,643,0007T (=
T —FHF: AR%242,305,0007T) H) — 2
EMERE - ERRITEENFBHRK =T
26 °

R_E—AF+_A=Z+—H XEEHEAH
RITE S 53116,899,0008 T (IHER AR
97,231,10570) - JyAAF BB EHBITE R H T
REMERT U MZERBXEBEAE
B KR8+ M HEFT AR o
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34. Retirement Benefit Plans

35.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme
operated by the local government in the PRC. The Group is
required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost
to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the scheme is
to make the specified contributions according to the state

rules.

Related Party Disclosures

0)

(i)

Related party transactions

During the year, the Group paid rentals of RMB96,000
(2015: RMB96,000) to certain companies controlled
by Mr. Liu in respect of office premises.

In addition, the Group received other advances from,
and made repayments to, Mr. Liu during the year
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015. As at 31
December 2016, the amount due to Mr. Liu was
RMB26,499,000 (2015: RMB17,806,000).

Pledge of assets and guarantees in
support of the Group’s borrowings

As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015,
other than pledge of assets of the Group, the Group’s
bank borrowings were also supported by:

(@)  corporate guarantee given by Xiangyu PRC;

(b) personal guarantees provided by Mr. Liu and
Ms. Zhou; and

(c)  two properties owned by certain non-controlling
shareholders of the Company’s subsidiary.

Bank borrowing of the Group of RMB98 million (2015:
RMB98 million) was supported by a property owned
by a company in which Mr. Liu has beneficial interest.

34. R KB F EF &

AEETEMBRARANEES  THPEMLT
BREEHEREBERKBAHGEOHKE -
IR BB & B X BV E B ) 1R AR K AR A
B RRANIREHES - ARE Y%A
M- BEERREBEBEZOEAMIFLERETE

PR o

FAESKE

() BESFXRS

FR AEBRPAEWERHDLE
THl 2B T AR AEE A REI6,000
TT(ZE—HF : AR®96,0007T) °

35.

N HE-E—ANFR_FT—AF+
A=+ HLFE AEEEEKXA
Bz EMBZRAE AL EED
BB R_ZT—XE+-_A=+—8"
P& 15 2 5 A 3OIE B A R 626,499,000 7T
—ZT—FhF: AR¥17,806,0007T)

REXFAEEEEFENEE
ERRER

RZE—RNF+_A=+—HBERZE
—RAF+-A=+—8 BAEEZIK
WEEN AEERTHEERA T
R R

(i)

@ AFHBEFELHHRBER:

() BIEAERBEZLRMEMEAE
® R

© ARTBMBABETIHFERBRR
HEHRIAY X

AEEBEB-—ZRTEBEEAARE
98,000,000t ( — T — H F: AR ¥
98,000,0007T) ' JIHRBIE AR E i
EM—HAREEN—EMETUX

# o
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35.

36.

Related Party Disclosures (continued)

(iii) Related party balances

Details of the balances due to directors are set out in
Note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.
(iv) Compensation of key management
personnel

The emoluments of directors who are also identified
as members of key management of the Group during
the reporting period are set out in Note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the group
companies will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balances. Having
considered the factors and circumstance set out in Note 2 to
the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are
satisfied that the Group will have sufficient liquidity to meet
its cash flows requirements for next twelve months from the
end of reporting period.

The capital structure of the Group consists of amounts due
to non-controlling interests of a subsidiary, bank borrowings,
other borrowings, bonds payable and convertible bonds as
disclosed in Notes 25, 26, 27 and 28 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively and equity attributable to
shareholders of the Company, comprising paid up capital/
share capital and reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure regularly. As part
of this review, the Directors consider the cost and the risks
associated with each class of the capital. Based on the
recommendations of the Directors, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new debt
or the redemption of existing debt.

35.

36.

BELREm@®

(iii) BBE 5 &8
ERNESLEBFBINGKAETHHRE
BeE24 -

(ivy TEEEERK S H M

RBEE ARG AEAEEEEER

ERENESENSHRGEAYBRE
BeE12 e

EXRERER

AR IR A AE R T A RS A
@E - ARBBELHEERREFEARE
A B - 85 BB A B S R
2z BERER ESEAAEBEHE
BRRMRDES AN G WS AR
AR+ -EANRERERE -

AEEBNEAERBREI NG MBHRE
MI5E25 26 27 M28WEMNEN —HHE A
RIJEE RS RE RITEE HMEE -
FENEHFRATBRBRES  URAQRBKREE
D BREHEDN WA REE-

E=THRIERAER FRRFTH—F
D EEFEREANRARE —HELAWS
MER REEFNEZ ARXEREBEX
MBS BITHRRBETHEXELRTE
BFrEASENEEELER -
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37. s@IT A
(a) @M T EER

37. Financial Instruments

(a) Categories of financial instruments

2016 2015
A —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARETF T
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables (including cash ~ B Kk EWIE (B1ER & &
and cash equivalents) HEEEY) 1,465,888 1,559,845
Financial liabilities SREE
Amortised cost 85 A AR 1,416,231 1,612,293
Fair value through profit or loss MBERZATEYER — 7,030

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies

The Group’'s major financial instruments include
accounts and other receivables, pledged bank
deposits, bank balances and cash, accounts and other
payables, amounts due to directors, amounts due to
non-controlling interests of a subsidiary, bank
borrowings, other borrowings, bonds payables,
convertible bonds and derivative financial liabilities
embedded in convertible bonds. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in the respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market, credit and liquidity risks.
The policy on how to mitigate these risks is set out
below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(b) B HEBEEREREE

AEENTZSRMIABDFERKER
KEMEWGK - EEMRTER  RIT
B LR BNRAREMENK
FEN EFFIA - BN — RN B QR FFE
ERRIE RITEE HMttEE &
NEs TBRRESFBRATERES -
ZEERMTANFBENERMBBMNE
TRE-EZFERTAMEBENERE
EmE - FEERRBERER - BBEMN
MR EZERROBREN T - BHE
EEERERZFTRER  NHEREER
BRHRBUEE I -
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37. Financial Instruments (continued) 37. €@ T E )
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BREKREEEERBKE @

and policies (Continued)

Market risk ™ 35 & B

(i)  Currency risk (i) E#EPE
The Group has foreign currency transactions, AREBGFENERT S BHAE
which expose the Group to foreign currency risk. B AAZINERR - AQA KR
The Company will consider the use of foreign TEREEYRAINERBEYN
currency forward contracts to mitigate the risk R EAR R R o

when the need arise.

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying RBEHER EEERABE KX
amounts of foreign currency denominated RN ESFENEEEERBE
monetary assets and liabilities that are BEEmemEmT:
considered significant by the management are
as follows:
Assets Liabilities
BE =R
2016 2015 2016 2015

—E-XE —E—HE ZEBE-XRE —_ZE—1%HE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREFTT AR®BTR AR®FT

Us$ ETT 46 1,541 — 80,800
HK$ AT 399 3,384 286,075 495,684
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37. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group's sensitivity
to a 5% (2015: 5%) increase and decrease in
the functional currency of the relevant group
entities against the relevant foreign currencies
and all other variable were held constant. 5%
(2015: 5%) represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the end of the year for a 5%
change in foreign currency rates. On this basis,
there will be an increase in post-tax profit where
the functional currency of the relevant group
entities weaken against US$ by 5% or
strengthen against HK$ by 5%, and vice versa.

37. €@ T B @

(b) BEEMREEEEREE @

™5 R ks (&)

(i) EH¥EREE)
T RFAMFT A M 0] &R S
TENBERT AEBEHEHESE
EEREMNIAEEELEBNE &
R TES%(ZF —AF:5%)
BBURE c 5% (ZE—FF : 5%)
AEBEMRIINEEENSIEA G
BEEHNTH - AREINR
BENIINESENRENEEIE
B W FRBLINE [ R FF5%
FAEEBRE - ELAREET EAR
BEEERMNIEEY LETR
B5% 8 5Bt E 5% Bk
FlAEHEAN - R Z IR ©

Increase (decrease)
in post-tax profit

B % 0% R b0 CRL ™)
2016 2015
—E-XE —E—AF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBT T AREFTT
us$ =TT 2 (2,972)
HK$ BT (14,284) (18,461)

In the opinion of the Directors, the sensitivity
analysis above is unrepresentative of the
inherent currency risk as the year end exposure
does not reflect the exposure during the year.

EER/ LA GRE DM I T RE
REANEEERR RELFR
[ B 3 T BE f BR 2 6 EL B
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37. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Interest rate risk

The Group is mainly exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank
balances for the year ended 31 December 2016
and 2015 and a variable-rate bank borrowing
carrying prevailing interest rates at HIBOR (see
Note 26) for the year ended 31 December 2016
and 2015. In addition, the Group was also
exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed-rate bank borrowings, other borrowings,
bonds payable, amounts due to non-controlling
interests of a subsidiary, certain accounts
receivables and pledged bank deposits as at 31
December 2016 and 2015.

The Group currently does not have an interest
rate hedging policy. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure should
the need arise.

In the opinion of the Directors, the reasonably
possible change in interest rates for bank
balances and the variable-rate bank borrowing is
insignificant. No sensitivity analysis is presented.

Other price risk

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Group is no longer estimate the fair value of the
derivative financial liability embedded in
convertible bonds since it become non-
exercisable after the Original Maturity Date. The
fair value no longer affected by the share price
model were held constant.

In the opinion of the Directors, the sensitivity
analysis above is unrepresentative of the
inherent price risk as the pricing model used in
the valuation of the derivative financial liability
involves multiple variables and certain variables
are interdependent.

(b)

37. €@ T B @)

BREREEEREBERBE @

™ 5 & B ()
(i) FIEERE

(iii)

HE-_Z—R"FER_E—RFF+
ZA=Z+—BLFE AEEE
DESXBEBZHNNERBITEBD
RemeEfXRREBEE_Z —
RNRERZ_ZE—RE+_A=+1
—HIEFEWSRITEERFER
BEZEAERTEE(RNGE
26) e N RZFE—RFERZFE
—HEE+-_A=+—H A&EH
MEXBHEABETEFNERTEE -
HiufEE - EMANES - BN —EH
BAREEREZRE BTE
WHRBEBREEBREBTEROAF
BERER R -

7N 68 B IR B R B R B P ER
A BIEEERENERR - I
RNEEREEEHNEAMNERAR -

EHERB - ROTEBFHHE
ROTERFIETL LR
BRK o 3 5 B BB E 17 -

Htt B AR

BE-_FT—XR"Ft+-A=+—H
LFE AEBETHEFBRAR
BEEFRAERRERE 2ITL
ERMABEZAFE BRIRE
HRZEMESTA#EE 2F
BTBEXENELNEWFRST

s o
=

EERA/ LA GRE DAL T8
REANEERRAR REEITE
TRAGEHREMRANEBEL
SRISEEE METEEY
&1 46 B K %8 °
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)

Credit risk

At the end of the reporting date, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which would cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure by the
counterparties to discharge an obligation was arising
from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position, especially from the long due
accounts receivables.

Because of the nature of its dredging, water
management and marine related businesses, the
Group normally transacts with large PRC state-owned
companies, local governments and large private
enterprises with solid financial background, and hence
the customer base is typically small. The management
of the Company has delegated a team responsible for
performing background check before acceptance of
new projects and determination of credit limits and
credit approvals. Most of the customers have been
cooperating with the Group for many years and are
maintaining good relationship with the Group. Due to
its small number of customers, management regularly
visits each customer to ensure that there is no dispute
on the amounts due and understand reasons for
delaying repayment. In case repayment fall behind
schedule, the management discusses with each of the
customers for committing repayment in reasonable
time. In case customers are not able to commit
repayment in reasonable time, the management of
the Company assesses impairment losses by taking
reference to expected repayment amounts and dates
and respective effective interest rate of individual
customer. The management also reviews the
recoverable amount of individual customer regularly to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. Based on the settlement history
of the major customers, the Directors consider that
the Group’s credit risk on trade receivables has been
properly addressed.
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 37. €® T A @)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

(b) BEEMREEEEREE @

and policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group is commencing its capital financing
business. Hence, the customer base is small. The
management of the Company assesses the potential
borrower’s credit quality by investigating their
historical credit record and define their credit limit on
individual basis. The management of the Company
has delegated a team responsible for updating and
monitoring the financial capabilities of the borrowers
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with good reputation.

The Group also has a significant concentration of
credit risk in relation to its trade customers as follows:

=& &k (&)
AEETLERREABERK - AW
BEPER N - ARAIEBAEEHEER
AMBEEECEIGEEEEEY
RENEEARAEFEERE A2 AEE
EEZR—AABBEEMNNREESE
A B B 75 e 0 DA BE AR AF h i B AR
BEERE -

RBEENERERRER EBRR5Y
FRIEEREMRTT

JIIEREESTAR

2016 2015
—E-REF —ET—HF
% %
Amount due from the largest customer [& U & A & B X T8 {5 fiE Uk
as a percentage to total accounts RIBBRBNED L
receivables 18 14
Amount due from the five largest JEUW B K P R IE (1 FE U
customers as a percentage to total FIBBEZEN A DL
accounts receivables 51 54

As mentioned above, the number of customers is
small. Due to its small number, management regularly
visits each customers to ensure that there is no dispute
on the amounts due. In this regard, the Directors
consider that the Group’s concentration of credit risk
is mitigated.
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient cash reserves to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term. Having
considered the factors and circumstances set out in
Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Directors are satisfied that the Group will have
sufficient liquidity to meet its cash flows requirements
for the next twelve months from the end of the
reporting period.

The following tables detail Group’s contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. The tables have
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest dates on
which the Group can be required to pay.

The tables include both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating
rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from
prevailing interest rate at the end of the reporting
date.
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(b) BEEMREEEEREE @

REBE SRR
AEBZBRRABTERERB A LA
ZRBERHR - femERAE B
RARSRENENEEHERED
MBESHR - KEEEE WK REM
H2FTEEARRBERE EFEMAAE
BHEERARBDESUMEAE RS
HREARKXR T+ —EAANRERES
ko

TERFAINAEETRAENS DO
HeZXRNREASEANTNZER
HZREMAENAMRARSRER
%O

ZREENERAZHESRE - EHNER
MERFBAMEOAET - REBBE
TIHRREMRMBTNERE -



Annual Report 2016 —E—NFEFIR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B S R Y A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 i 2 = F— "F+_A=+—HIEFE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 37. €® T A @)

(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BT REREE B EZERBE @
and policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBEERERE
Liquidity and interest risk tables REBELRFERE K
Weighted
average On demand/ Total
effective less than 3 months to 1year to Over  undiscounted Carrying
interestrate 3 months 1year 2 years 2 years cash flows amount
mEFY  REX/ =fRZ ABERE
ERAE SR=@EA - -5EZ@ME WENL RELE RELE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARWTRT AR®TR ARWTR ARBTRE ARWTR
At 31 December 2016 R-ZZ-RE
+=A=1-"H
Non-derivative financial FiTELBERE
liabilities
Accounts payables FERER - 189,097 - - - 189,097 189,097
Other payables (excluding ~ E i 5 F B (R B A
current portion of B ES 2 BN
convertible bonds) #5) - 239,014 57,035 - — 296,049 296,049
Amounts due to directors ENEEHE - 28,480 - — - 28,480 28,480
Amounts due to non- - EAAE
controlling interests of a BRER TR
subsidiary
— non-interest bearing — it B - 2,476 - 56,967 — 59,443 59,443
— interest bearing at —REE ARG S
fixed rates 12 — — 11,922 — 11,922 10,644
Bank borrowings BAEE
— interests bearing at —RE TR R
fixed rates 497 157,903 322,775 - — 480,678 467,800
— interests bearing at —RFBHARE
floating rate 6.4 — 17,415 — — 17,415 17,415
Other borrowings Hifg &
— non-interest bearing — T8 - 3,538 - — - 3,538 3,538
— interest bearing at —REEFEHE
fixed rates 12 — 70,400 — - 70,400 97,384
Bonds payable EfE# 15 288,054 - - — 288,054 246,381
908,562 467,625 68,889 — 1,445,076 1,416,231
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37. Financial Instruments (continued)

37. €@ T B @

(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BT REREEHEZERBE @
and policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) RBESERE A
Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued) REELRFIEE K (E)
Weighted ~ On demand/ Total
average effective less than 3 months to 1 year to Over undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months 1 year 2 years 2 years cash flows amount
mEFH  KkEX/ =@RZ AURRE
ERAE SR=EA -5 —5Z@F WFUL nELE KELE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETR AREBTT ARETRT
At 31 December 2015 R-B-1&
t=H=+-B
Non-derivative financial Itz BERE
liabilities
Accounts payables e ER T — 229,776 — - - 229,776 229,776
Bills payable S — 4,000 3,572 - — 7,572 7,572
Other payables (excluding ~ E i e FUE (AR A
current portion of BRES 2 BE
convertible bonds) #5) — 158,420 93,308 — — 251,728 251,728
Amounts due to directors ENEZTE — 19,098 — — — 19,098 19,098
Amounts due to non- - EAAE
controlling interests of a BRER TR
subsidiary
— non-interest bearing — it B — 1,644 — 74,338 — 75,982 75,982
— interest bearing at —REEA RS
fixed rates 6.25 — — 11,895 — 11,895 11,195
Bank borrowings RITEE
— interests bearing at —REEF R
fixed rates 4.60 101,980 626,638 18,191 — 746,809 726,903
— interests bearing at —RFBHF RS
floating rate 3.59 7,698 = = = 7,698 7,698
Other borrowings Hihfg &
— non-interest bearing — T8 - 495 - 7,885 — 8,380 8,380
— interest bearing at —REEFEHE
fixed rates 6.25 — — 25,934 — 25,934 24,408
Convertible bonds AR ES 16.91 — 278,348 — — 278,348 249,553
523,111 1,001,866 138,243 — 1,663,220 1,612,293
Derivative financial liabilities ~ #74£ & @E &
Derivative financial liabilities ~ # A BT I (% 2 674
embedded in convertible SHARE
bonds — 7,030 — — — 7,030 7,030
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37. Financial Instruments (continued) 37. £/ T B

(c) Fair value () 2¥E

The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis using prices or rates from observable
current market transactions as input.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities measured at
amortised costs in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.

The derivative financial liabilities are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. At 31
December 2016, the fair value of the derivative
financial liabilities embedded in convertible bonds is nil
(2015: RMB7,030,000) respectively. The fair value of
the derivative financial liabilities embedded in
convertible bonds (representing the conversion options
of the convertible bonds issued by the Group) are
determined using Binomial Model, with inputs,
including: valuation date share price, conversion price,
time to maturity, risk-free rate, volatility and dividend
yield of the Company.

The significant unobservable input for the valuation is
the volatility used to determine the fair value in the
pricing models. Carrying amount of the derivative
financial liabilities embedded in convertible bonds
would be increased by Nil (2015: RMB3 million)/
decrease by Nil (2015: RMB3 million) with all other
input variables of the valuation models were held
constant.

The derivative financial liabilities embedded in
convertible bonds and the derivative financial liabilities
in relation to warrants are classified as Level 3 under
the fair value hierarchy at 31 December 2016.
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37. Financial Instruments (continued) 37. €M T A
(c) Fair value (Continued) () X2FEG®@
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of mMAABEESE eI A ZE =R
the financial liabilities embedded in convertible bonds SREENECHERNT :
is as below:
RMB’000
ARBTFTT
At 1 January 2015 R-_ZE—HE—H—H 14,423
Changes in fair value NEEEE) (7,921)
Exchange realignment BE i, 5 528
At 31 December 2015 R—_ZE—hEFE+-_HA=+—H 7,030
Changes in fair value N (B = F (7,030)
At 31 December 2016 R-ZE—RF+-_A=+—H —
38. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries 3. FENBARIFIE
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at the end RAGIRBERRNEIZMNBRAFE
of the reporting period are as follows: N
Country of
operation and  Issued and fully
date of paid ordinary  Attributable equity
incorporation/ share capital/ interest indirectly held Form of
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital by the Company Principal activities company
EEERK ERTRARE
HMRYL /K BRRA R AAEBEREN
MERARER JHAH BX ik R TEEHR AAERK
2016 2015
“E-XE —ZT—Af%F
Jiangsu Jiaolong Salvage Harbour PRC RMB72,754,776 51% 51%  Provision of marine Limited liability
Engineering Co. Ltd.* 22 July 1977 hoisting, installation
and other engineering
services
ITHERITEMBIREERAR HE ARE RtBELERERE . AREME
—ttEF 72,754,776 70 THREMIE

+A=Z+=H AR 7%
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38. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries
(Continued)

38B. TEMIB AT HERE @

ZE-REER
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Country of
operation and  Issued and fully
date of paid ordinary Attributable equity
incorporation/ share capital/ interest indirectly held Form of
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital by the Company Principal activities company
EEERR ERTRARY
HEMAL R BRRAER  AAABEESEH
o= NI VKB 'X P15 B 18 TEXH NCTEiAY
2016 2015
—2-R"% ZT-RF
Jiangsu Province Lugang PRC RMB85,800,000 — 100%  Provision of dredging  Limited liability
Construction Project Co. Ltd. 14 June 2004 services
(note 30)
TEHERERRIE H B AR R B R 75 AREME
AR A E (KHa£30) —TTMF 85,800,000 7C
NATHER
Jiangsu Xingyu Environment PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of dredging  Limited liability
Protection Company Limited* 20 March 2016 services
TEHAEFRARRER AR H AR REHZ RS BEREME
—E-REF 10,000,0007T
=A=+AH
Jiangsu Xiangyu Environment PRC US$75,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing of Wholly-owned
Protection Equipment Co. 18 August 2013 dredging machines foreign
Ltd.* enterprise
TEHATRRRBER LA i 75,000,000 SUETZ R SEBELE
—E-=F ey
NA+NR
Jiangsu Xingyu Holdings Group ~ PRC RMB39,315,800 note ii note i Provision of dredging  Limited liability
Limited* ("PRC Operational 13 July 2007 services
Entity"”) (note ii)
IHEFEREEERAR HE AR (it aZii) (Hfati)  RERZRS BEREME
(THEgeER]) (HiTi) —TTtF 39,315,8007C
+tA+=R
Jiangsu Xiangyu Port PRC US$80,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of dredging ~ Wholly-owned
Constructing Project 11 June 2010 services foreign
Administration Company enterprise
Limited* (“Xiangyu PRC")
(note i)
IHEATRREIRER H B 80,000,000 R HR R IEBE R FE
BERAR(HAFHED —E-ZF =Y

(B i) AH+—H
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38. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries

(Continued)

China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited FREIFABRIERER LT

38B. TEMIB AT HEE @

Country of
operation and  Issued and fully
date of paid ordinary Attributable equity
incorporation/ share capital/ interest indirectly held Form of
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital by the Company Principal activities company
EEERR ERTRARY
TR BRREAZEM  AQTEEEEH
B D R & B MHBH &x FE 15 B 1 TEXH NCTEiAN
2016 2015
—E-XF ZT-A8F
Jiangsu Xiangyu Water PRC Us$73,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of dredging ~ Wholly-owned
Management Company 3 August 2011 and water foreign
Limited* management enterprise
services
TEHATKERRAF i 73,000,000 REARKBERE IEHBEELE
—E——F ET7T PR 7%
NA=H
Power Wealth Engineering Hong Kong HK$100,000 100% 100%  Investment holding Limited liability
Limited 3 July 2002 and provision of
dredging
consultation services
HETRARAF BB 100,000 REZRRRERL ERAE
- T R 7%
+HA=H
Jiangsu Fengyu Property PRC RMB66,000,000 100% 100%  Property development  Limited liability
Development Company 4 December and investment
Limited* 2013
THETEXERRAA [ AR MEERERRKRE BREME
=5 66,000,000 7T
+=-AmA
Yancheng Juranzhijia Home PRC RMB1,000,000 100% 100%  Property management Limited liability
Building Material Commercial 15 June 2016
Management Limited*
EHEACIRERMAEER T H AR® e AREME
BRAT —ERF 1,000,0007T
ANA+TAA
Jiangsu Xingyu Commerce PRC RMB 10,000,000 100% 100%  Inactive Limited liability
Company Limited* 16 April 2015
TFHEATEBEERAR 5 AR AEREETD BREME
—E-AF 10,000,0007T

MA+RA
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38. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries
(Continued)

38B. TEMIB AT HERE @

Country of
operation and  Issued and fully
date of paid ordinary Attributable equity
incorporation/ share capital/ interest indirectly held Form of
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital by the Company Principal activities company
EEERR ERTRARY
TR BRRAZEM  AXTEEEEH
B D R & B YHBH &x FE 15 B 18 TEEH NCTEiAN
2016 2015
—E-XRF ZZ—hF
Huaian Shi Xiangyu Technology ~ PRC US$20,000,000 80% 80%  Lending and venture  Limited liability
Microfinance Ltd * 11 September capital financing
2016 business in the
technology sector
ELTAFRER ) EER B 20,000,000 BIRTEEERE ARAE
BRAFE ZT-RF e RXETHERD
AA+—H
Jiangsu Xiangyu Environmental ~ PRC US$50,000,000 100% 100%  Inactive Limited liability
Protection Industry 27 August 2016
Development Ltd*
THATRREFZREBRLAA HH 50,000,000 ARERLEED BREE
ZE-RE e
NA=++H
Jiangsu Lifu Infrastructure PRC US$49,980,000 100% 100%  Inactive Limited liability
Construction Co., Ltd* 25 June 2012
TN BERERBR LA B 49,980,000 REMEED AR EME
—E-—FR e
AZ+HH

Note: Details of disposal of Lugang are set out in note 30.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in
the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results
or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

* for identification only

Kfat - HERRBFBERINHIFE30 -
ERENEERAUAKEXEHEEFRE

BYEZASEWNBAR EERR WH
JIRMHM B AR ZFBRSREBRITE -

* S
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38. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries
(Continued)

Notes:

(U]

(ii)

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at
the end of the reporting period, or at any time during the year.

Consolidated structured entity

PRC laws and regulations prohibit or restrict foreign investors
from owning more than 50% equity interest in any enterprise
which owns vessels for conducting dredging business.

On 19 April 2011, Xiangyu PRC, the PRC Operational Entity and
its respective equity participants, being Mr. Liu and Ms. Zhou
entered into a series of agreements (the “Contractual
Arrangements”). The PRC Operational Entity is engaged in the
provision of dredging services of the Group.

Key provisions of the Contractual Arrangements are as follows:
Option Agreement

Xiangyu PRC, PRC Operational Entity, Mr. Liu and Ms. Zhou
entered into an exclusive option agreement (“Option
Agreement”) whereby Mr. Liu and Ms. Zhou have irrevocably
granted Xiangyu PRC an option to acquire, directly or through
one or more nominees, the entire equity interest held by Mr. Liu
and Ms. Zhou in PRC Operational Entity at a price (“Acquisition
Cost”) equivalent to the fair market value of such equity interest
or, where applicable, the amount as permitted by the applicable
PRC laws. The Acquisition Cost, when received, will be
contributed by Mr. Liu and Ms. Zhou to Xiangyu PRC as capital
surplus. Subject to the compliance with the PRC laws, Xiangyu
PRC may exercise the option at any time, in respect of all or part
of the equity interest of PRC Operational Entity and in any
manner at its sole discretion.

Pursuant to the Option Agreement, each of PRC Operational
Entity, Mr. Liu and/or Ms. Zhou has given undertakings that it
shall perform certain acts, or refrain from performing certain
other acts unless with the prior written consent of Xiangyu PRC,
including but not limited to the below matters:

(a) that PRC Operational Entity shall not alter its constitutional
documents or its registered capital;

(b) that any of PRC Operational Entity, Mr. Liu and/or Ms.
Zhou shall not incur any indebtedness or guarantee (other
than those incurred in the ordinary course of business and
disclosed to and approved by Xiangyu PRC in advance);

At

(0]

(i)

38B. TEMIB AT HEE @
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38. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i) (Continued)

Option Agreement (Continued)

()

(d)

(9)

(h)

that PRC Operational Entity shall not provide any loan or
guarantee to any third parties;

that PRC Operational Entity shall not dispose of or create
encumbrances over any part of its assets, business or
revenue and that Mr. Liu and Ms. Zhou shall not dispose
of or create encumbrances over the equity interest held by
them in PRC Operational Entity, except the security
created under the Equity Pledge Agreement (as defined in (i)
below);

that PRC Operational Entity shall not enter into any
material contracts over certain amount other than those in
its ordinary course of business and disclosed to and
approved by Xiangyu PRC in advance;

that PRC Operational Entity shall not distribute any
dividend (including any undistributed attributable profit
payable to the entity’s shareholders prior to the Option
Agreement becoming effective) to its shareholders and
that Mr. Liu and Ms. Zhou undertake that such
undistributed profit shall be retained in PRC Operational
Entity as its capital and/or reserved fund and shall give up
and assign or transfer to Xiangyu PRC any dividend
declared and distributed thereafter and payable to them
by virtue of their holding of the equity interest in PRC
Operational Entity;

that PRC Operational Entity shall not make investment or
engage in any merger or acquisition transactions; and

that at the request of Xiangyu PRC, Mr. Liu and Ms. Zhou
shall appoint such persons nominated by Xiangyu PRC to
act as the directors, supervisors and senior management
members of PRC Operational Entity.

The Option Agreement became effective on 19 April 2011 and
will expire on the date on which all the equity interests held by
Mr. Liu and Ms. Zhou in PRC Operational Entity are transferred to
Xiangyu PRC and/or its nominee(s).

38B. TEMIB AT HERE @
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38. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(Continued)
Proxy Agreement

Xiangyu PRC, PRC Operational Entity, Mr. Liu and Ms. Zhou
entered into a proxy agreement (“Proxy Agreement”) pursuant to
which Mr. Liu and Ms. Zhou have unconditionally and irrevocably
undertaken to authorise such person(s) as designated by Xiangyu
PRC (being PRC citizens) to exercise the shareholders’ rights in
relation to appointment of proxy and exercise of voting rights in
PRC Operational Entity under the articles of association of PRC
Operational Entity and the applicable PRC laws. Such
shareholders’ rights include but not limited to (i) calling and
attending the shareholders’ meetings of PRC Operational Entity; (ii)
exercising the voting rights on all matters requiring the
consideration and approval of shareholders and those pursuant
to articles of association of PRC Operational Entity.

Before Xiangyu PRC acquires the entire equity interests in PRC
Operational Entity contemplated under the Option Agreement,
Xiangyu PRC can exercise the voting rights of shareholders of
PRC Operational Entity.

The term of the Proxy Agreement commenced on 19 April 2011
and will expire on 18 April 2026, and will be renewable at the
election of Xiangyu PRC for successive terms of 10 years each
until termination by Xiangyu PRC with a 30-day prior notice to
PRC Operational Entity.

Composite Services Agreement

Xiangyu PRC and PRC Operational Entity entered into an exclusive
composite services agreement (“Composite Services Agreement”)
pursuant to which PRC Operational Entity will exclusively engage
Xiangyu PRC to provide consultation and other ancillary services
in enterprise management and consultancy services, dredging
project management and consultancy services.

In consideration of the provision of the aforementioned services
by Xiangyu PRC, PRC Operational Entity agrees to pay to Xiangyu
PRC fees on an annual basis in arrears. Fees payable to Xiangyu
PRC by PRC Operational Entity will be equivalent to the total
audited revenue less all the related costs, expenses, taxes and
statutory reserve of PRC Operational Entity. Xiangyu PRC reserves
the right to identify the items of expenses to be included as
related expenses when calculating the fees payable by PRC
Operational Entity and is entitled to adjust the fee payable by PRC
Operational Entity anytime based on the volume of service
provided.
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38. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(Continued)
Composite Services Agreement (Continued)

Pursuant to the Composite Services Agreement, PRC Operational
Entity shall not without the prior written consent of Xiangyu PRC
to dispose of or pledge its material assets, operation rights and/or
business; alter its registered capital; alter its scope of business;
declare dividends; and/or remove any of its directors and senior
management members. Pursuant to the Composite Services
Agreement, Xiangyu PRC is required to pay to PRC Operational
Entity a surety amount of not less than HK$22,276,000 for the
performance of its services provided to PRC Operational Entity
under the Composite Services Agreement. As a security for the
due payment of the consultation service fees and repayment of
the surety money by PRC Operational Entity to Xiangyu PRC
under the Composite Services Agreement, PRC Operational Entity
has agreed to pledge its interest in the three vessels owned or (as
the case may be) jointly-owned by it to Xiangyu PRC.

The term of the Composite Services Agreement commenced from
19 April 2011, and will expire on 18 April 2026, which will be
renewable at the request of Xiangyu PRC for successive terms of
10 years each until termination by Xiangyu PRC with a 30-day
prior written notice to PRC Operational Entity.

Equity Pledge Agreement

Xiangyu PRC, PRC Operational Entity, Mr. Liu and Ms. Zhou
entered into an equity pledge agreement (“Equity Pledge
Agreement”), pursuant to which Mr. Liu and Ms. Zhou granted a
continuing first priority security interests over their respective
equity interests in PRC Operational Entity to Xiangyu PRC for
guaranteeing the performance of the Composite Services
Agreement, the Option Agreement and the Proxy Agreement.
Mr. Liu and Ms. Zhou are responsible to record the pledge of
equity into the shareholders’ register on the effective date of the
Equity Pledge Agreement. PRC Operational Entity, Mr. Liu and
Ms. Zhou are also responsible to register the pledge of equity in
the State Administration for Industry and Commerce 10 days
after the effective date of the Equity Pledge Agreement.
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38. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(Continued)
Equity Pledge Agreement (Continued)

Pursuant to the Equity Pledge Agreement, without the prior
written consent of Xiangyu PRC, PRC Operational Entity shall not
alter its current shareholding structure and/or its nature or scope
of business, Mr. Liu and Ms. Zhou shall not allow PRC Operational
Entity to transfer or dispose of its assets or pledge or transfer
their respective equity interests in PRC Operational Entity in favor
of or to other third parties. Xiangyu PRC is entitled to receive all
dividends derived from the pledged equity interests. Xiangyu PRC
is entitled to demand repayment of the secured indebtedness
and/or to exercise its rights to sell the pledged equity interests on
occurrence of certain events of default including but not limited
to non-performance or breach of any of the Composite Services
Agreement, the Option Agreement and the Proxy Agreement; or
failure to repay other debts when due by PRC Operational Entity,
Mr. Liu or Ms. Zhou (as the case may be).

The Equity Pledge Agreement became effective from the date of
its execution and shall terminate upon performance of all
obligations under the Composite Services Agreement, the Option
Agreement and the Proxy Agreement in full.

Vessel Pledge Agreements

PRC Operational Entity and Xiangyu PRC have entered into three
vessel pledge agreements (“Vessel Pledge Agreements”) dated
19 April 2011, pursuant to which PRC Operational Entity has
pledged in favor of Xiangyu PRC (i) its entire interest in the
dredger “Zhuayang No. 101"; (ii) its 50% interest in the dredger
“Kaijin No. 1" and (jii) its 50% interest in the dredger “Kaijin No.
3" to Xiangyu PRC, as security for the due payment of the
consultation service fees and repayment of the surety money (as
well as related interest and expenses, etc.) then owing by PRC
Operational Entity to Xiangyu PRC under the Composite Services
Agreement.

Pursuant to the Vessel Pledge Agreements, without the prior
written consent of Xiangyu PRC, PRC Operational Entity shall not
pledge or dispose of its interests in the pledged vessels or any
part thereof. Xiangyu PRC is entitled to exercise its rights to sell
the pledged vessels on occurrence of certain events of default,
including but not limited to the non-payment of the secured
indebtedness or non-performance of the Composite Services
Agreement.
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38. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(Continued)
Vessel Pledge Agreements (Continued)

The Vessel Pledge Agreements became effective from the date of
its execution and shall terminate upon payment or repayment of
the consultation service fees, surety money and all other related
expenses under the Composite Services Agreement.

The Group has a contractual commitment to provide financial
assistance to the PRC Operational Entity. However, due to the
strategic importance of it to the Group, the Directors intended to
provide financing to the PRC Operational Entity to support the
working capital requirements. As at 31 December 2016, the bank
borrowings of the PRC Operational Entity of RMB329,022,000
(2015: RMB411,901,000) are secured by pledge of assets jointly
owned by the PRC Operational Entity and the Group, corporate
guarantee by the Company and personal guarantees provided by
Mr. Liu and Ms. Zhou, the directors of the Company. Unutilised
secured bank facilities amounted to approximately
RMB121,778,000 (2015: RMB145,803,000).

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the amount of revenue
and assets subject to the Contractual Arrangements accounted
for 61% (2015: 77%) and 80.8% (2015: 58%) of the Group's
total revenue and assets respectively.

The Directors, after consulting legal opinion, are of the view that
the terms of the Contractual Arrangements have in substance
enabled Xiangyu PRC to have power over the PRC Operational
Entity, rights to variable returns from its involvement with the
PRC Operational Entity, and has the ability to use its power to
affect its returns, despite the absence of formal legal equity
interest held by the Group therein. Accordingly, PRC Operational
Entity is accounted for as a consolidated structured entity as a
subsidiary of the Company.
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39. Subsidiary with Material 0. BEERFEREZNHE A
Non-Controlling Interests Al
The Group held 51% equity interest in Jiangsu Jiaolong at REBNR _ZE—RHER_ZE—RNE+-_A=
31 December 2015 and 2016. T AR AITERBKEES % B AE -
Place of Proportion of
establishment ownership interests and voting
Name of and principal rights held by Profit allocated to non-controlling Accumulated
subsidiary place of business non- controlling interest interest non-controlling interest
WELAREHE HEMAIBER FERERRENRER
TEEENY BRRRERELD AREFEREZEN R FERER
31.12.2016 31.12.2015 31.12.2016 31.12.2015 31.12.2016 31.12.2015
ZE-RF —Z-n% ZE-RE —“T-hf ZE-RF —2-n%
tZA=t-R +ZA=t+-A +tZA=t-B +ZA=t+-H +tZA=+t-B +ZA=1+-H
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTRT ARETE AR®TR ARETI

Jiangsu Jiaolong  PRC 49% 49% 6,456 7,353 160,136 158,136
THREE B

Summarised financial information in respect of Jiangsu MESERFERERNIHRENMBER
Jiaolong which has material non-controlling interest is set BEat g o N CBE e B S B R R & B R A
out below. The summarised financial information below HH AT B

represents amounts before intragroup eliminations:

2016 2015
—E-XEF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®BTR ARBT T

Current assets mENEE 247,321 240,261

Non-current assets EREBEE 239,330 312,201

Current liabilities mEEE (93,124) (85,399)
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39. Subsidiary With Material 0. EEERKEREEZNHRE L

Non-Controlling Interests (continued) a) (&)
2016 2015
—EB-REF —T—hf%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBFT
Non-current liabilities FEREEE (100,365) (133,872)
Equity attributable to owners of RNATFE AEGRER
the Company 133,026 175,055
Non-controlling interests F 22 % fE 7 160,136 158,136
Revenue W 5 154,076 155,375
Expense 53 (140,900) (140,368)
Profit for the year and total comprehensive 4 3 7 & €8 A1 2 [ UL 25 42 28
income for the year 13,176 15,007
Profit and total comprehensive income AKABIFAE ARG EXEH
attributable to the owners of Wz 48 58
the Company 6,720 7,654
Profit and total comprehensive income R RN SN 2T
attributable to the non-controlling U 35 48 %8
interests 6,456 7,353
Profit and total comprehensive income for 4 A5z Fll K & T UR %5 42 58
the year 13,176 15,007
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests s 15t 5 JE %2 A% # 25 &9 A% &, (4,456) Nil
Net cash (outflow) inflow from RESEHEEAMNIESCRE)
operating activities mAFERE (605) 23,256
Net cash outflow from investing activities % & E B E 4 IE & 7 H H&E (8.487) (2,082)
Net cash inflow (outflow) from BMEEHELENIEESTA
financing activities () 588 3,503 (14,901)
Net cash (outflow) inflow BWe O L) mAFE (5,589) 6,273
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40. Statement of Financial Position and

Reserves of the Company

40. R R HY B AR L R R A

2016 2015
—E-XRF —_ET—hF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT T ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSET ERBEE
Unlisted investments in subsidiaries REEBARIMIELEMRE 259,214 259,214
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries = NETE ] 979,465 971,202
Other receivables Ho A e W s IE — 14
Bank balances and cash RITHBRIRE® 173 1,415
979,638 972,631
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Other payables H b & < R IE 8,716 8,146
Bank borrowings RITEE — 7,698
Amounts due to directors JEHZE E A 1,875 18,318
Bonds payable ERES 246,381 —
Convertible bonds AR ES — 246,510
Derivative financial liabilities embedded in  #t A R #AIRIE S HTE S &
convertible bonds aE — 7,030
256,972 287,702
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 722,666 684,929
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERARBARG
LIABILITIES 981,880 944,143
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXK#iE
Share capital A% 2 123,483 102,045
Reserves B 858,397 842,098
TOTAL EQUITY AR 981,880 944,143

The Company’s statement of financial position was
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors
on 29 March 2017 and are signed on its behalf by:

LIU KAUIN
259 3E
DIRECTOR
EF

ZHOU SHUHUA
ERE
DIRECTOR
EZF

ARAMMBARRER T —LF=ZA=
THAhEEESSHERTETE  AHAT
AERREE:
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40.

Statement of Financial Position and

ZE-REER
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0. X 2FNMBRRREEE

Reserves of the Company (Continued) ()
Movement in the Company’s reserves: NEIEEREE
Share
Share Share option Other Accumulated
capital  premium reserves reserves loss Total
IR
RE  ROEE wE HitRE RiER @st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBETT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT AR®BTRT ARETRT
At1January2015 H=-ZT—AHF
—H—H 71,592 520,567 = 165,238 (147,625) 609,772
Placing of shares & 10 B &

(Note 29) (Bta£29) 30,453 348,560 = — = 379,013
Loss for the year FAEE = = = = (44,642) (44,642)
Total comprehensive & /A 2 [ f 5%

expense for the 5

year — — — — (44,642) (44,642)
At 31 December 2015 A —ZE—H4F

+=-A=+—H 102,045 869,127 — 165,238 (192,267) 944,143
Placing of shares W10 BL & (K75t 29)

(Note 29) 21,438 53,853 — — 75,291
Loss for the year FEREE — — — — (37,554) (37,554)
Total comprehensive 4 (A1 2 TH b 57 48 58

expense for the

year _ — — — (37,554) (37,554)
At 31 December 2016 A =& — X4

+-A=+—H 123,483 922,980 = 165,238 (229,821) 981,880
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41.

42,

Major Non-Cash Transaction

The net proceeds from the share placing was assigned to
the vendor to acquire prepaid land lease payments and
property and machinery of approximately RMB7,410,000
and HK$67,881,000 respectively.

Event after the Reporting Period

Extension of maturity of the Bonds

On 21 March 2017, CITIC and the Group entered into the
Second Amendment Agreement to further amend the terms
of the Bonds. Under the Second Amendment Agreement,
subject to further undertakings as set out in the
announcement of the Company on 22 March 2017, the
principal amount of the Bonds shall be amended to
HK$274,434,702 and the maturity date of the Bonds shall
be extended to 21 September 2017 with interest rates
amended as follows:

Period Interest rate per annum

From 25 March 2017 and 13%
up to 21 June 2017
From 22 June 2017 and 18%

up to 21 September 2017

41.

42.

FTEFRERS

BHOMEMSHREBEFEW DI EREIAE
155 34 AR #7,410,000 7T 67,881,000 7%
TUHTER LT E R TE A R W) ¥ R -

BEHRER

it R 18 2 2 H i5

RZE—+tF=ZA=-+—H ATNICELREH
N E eI HiE LWE—FEFTEFD
TR - BEBEF DB HE EXAQFZ
T—+F A+ _HAEMEHMNE — K
HEATIR - EH WA R IEEE] B274,434,702
B MEFNIPEAREIREE T —+F
NAZ+—H8 EFNEEBEFTOT :

HE F R =R
—E—+F=A-+HHEZE 13%
—E—+FEXA=-Z+—H

—E—+FXA-+-HEZE 18%

—F-tEFNAZ=t—H
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